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Tian Guoli, Chairman of the board of directors and
Executive Director
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China Baowu Steel Group
Corporation Limited
100

China Banking Regulatory
Commission
China
Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
China
Construction Bank (Brasil) Banco Multiplo S/A
China Construction
Bank (Europe) S.A.
CCB Financial Leasing
Corporation Limited
CCB Futures Co., Ltd.
PT Bank
China Construction Bank Indonesia Thk
CCB International
(Holdings) Limited
CCB Financial Asset
Investment Co., Ltd.
CCB Life Insurance
Company Limited
China Construction
Bank (London) Limited
China
Construction Bank (Malaysia) Berhad
China Construction
Bank (New Zealand) Limited
CCB Pension Management
Co., Ltd.
CCB Principal Asset
Management Co., Ltd.
CCB Property & Casualty
Insurance Co., Ltd.
China
Construction Bank (Russia) Limited Liability
Company
CCB Trust Co., Ltd.
China Investment
Corporation
The Company Law of the People®s
Republic of China
China Securities
Regulatory Commission

Central Huijin
Investment Ltd.
International Financial
Reporting Standards
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Ministry of Finance of the
People®s Republic of China
People®s Bank of China
2006 15

State Administration of
Foreign Exchange of the PRC
Securities and
Futures Ordinance

Sino-German
Bausparkasse Co., Ltd.
State Council of the
People®s Republic of China
State Grid China Co., Ltd.
Temasek Holdings
(Private) Limited
China Yangtze Power
Co., Limited.
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2014

OooooOodd
IFRS
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
12 31
452,456 417,799 8.30 457,752 437,398 389,544
117,798 118,509 (0.60) 113,530 108,517 104,283
23,777 23,552 0.96 15,405 10,825 17,313
594,031 559,860 6.10 586,687 556,740 511,140
(167,043) (171,515) (2.61) (194,826) (195,988) (188,185)
(127,362) (93,204) 36.65 (93,639) (61,911) (43,209)
299,787 295,210 1.55 298,497 299,086 279,806
243,615 232,389 4.83 228,886 228,247 215,122
242,264 231,460 4.67 228,145 227,830 214,657
12 31
12,903,441 11,757,032 9.75 10,485,140 9,474,510 8,590,057
(328,968) (268,677) 22.44 (250,617) (251,613) (228,696)
22,124,383 20,963,705 5.54 18,349,489 16,744,003 15,363,210
16,363,754 15,402,915 6.24 13,668,533 12,899,153 12,223,037
20,328,556 19,374,051 4.93 16,904,406 15,492,245 14,288,881
1,779,760 1,576,500 12.89 1,434,020 1,241,510 1,065,951
250,011 250,011 - 250,011 250,011 250,011
2,003,072 1,783,915 12.29 1,650,173 1,516,310 1,316,724
12,919,980 11,937,774 8.23 10,722,082 10,203,754 9,872,790
0.96 0.92 4.35 0.91 0.91 0.86
0.291 0.278 4.68 0.274 0.301 0.30
6.86 6.28 9.24 5.78 5.01 4.30
1.
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() 2017 2016 +/ (-) 2015 2014 2013

1.13 1.18 (0.05) 1.30 1.42 147

14.80 15.44 (0.64) 17.27 19.74 21.23

2.10 2.06 0.04 2.46 2.61 2.56

2.21 2.20 0.01 2.63 2.80 2.74

19.83 21.17 (1.34) 19.35 19.49 20.40

27.15 27.51 (0.36) 27.02 28.92 29,65

13.09 12.98 0.11 13.13 12.11 10.75

13.71 13.15 0.56 13.32 12.11 10.75

15.50 14.94 0.56 15.39 14.86 13.34

8.12 7.58 0.54 7.88 7.48 6.99

1.49 1.52 (0.03) 1.58 1.19 0.99

171.08 150.36 20.72 150.99 222.33 268.22

2.55 2.29 0.26 2.39 2.66 2.66

2014
1996
1954
2004
2005 10 27 939
2007 25 601939 2015
12 16 3,050
2015 12 17 4606 2017 12 21
60,000 2018 15
360030
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1954 10 2005 10 939
2007 601939 2017
232,898
1000
14,920 352,621
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@
2017 12 31 57.11
Central Huijin Asset Management Co., Ltd.
0.20 2003 12 16
828,209
@
29 30
2017 352,621 2016 2.72
4,792 2016 5.91 232,498
65.93 715
66,099
30 84,879 2407
31 40 83,658 23.73
41 50 135,581 38.45
51 59 48,319 13.70
60 184 0.05
480 0.13
28,064 7.96
203,954 57.84
95,192 27.00
12,745 3.61

12,186 3.46
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182,647 51.80
35,662 10.11
40,239 11.41
606 0.17
7,616 2.16
12,005 3.40
20,210 5.73
28,936 8.21
24,700 7.01

352,621 100.00
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2017 4.27
10 13.90

2017 12 31 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
4.27 4.03 5.67
10 13.90 13.37 14.46

10
2017 12 31

85,591 0.66
32,084 0.25
28,000 0.22
22,665 0.18
22,103 0.17
18,604 0.14
18,149 0.14
18,105 0.14
17,620 0.14
15,492 0.12
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31 2015 12 31

)

o 25 43.53 44.21 44.17

25 74.52 40.81 59.84

@ 70.73 68.17 69.80

(1) CBRC
(2) CBRC 2016
2017
1 3,881,374.26
2 7,544,548.52 657,049.29
3 1,946,820.02 97,276.44
4 5,597,728.50 559,772.85
5 9,061,665.95  3,085,240.67
6 5,980,485.65  1,485,219.49
7 2,979,932.64  1,498,773.52
8 101,247.66 101,247.66
9 -
10 1,941,977.76 257,658.58
11 69,792.22 69,792.22
12 5,299.00 5,299.09
13 1,866,844.44 182,567.27
14 42.02 -
15 2,190,716.73 311,862.03
16 4,311,810.57
17

184,483.85 183,468.38
18 1,346,608.43 872,643.35
19 71,107.03 70,775.90
20 1,602,199.31  1,126,887.63
21 3,881,374.26
22 3,184,922.94
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1
’3 €Y 121.99
(€))
30
2018 100 2017 90
20 2017
121.99
4.55
2017 12 31
2,705,300 282,956 - - - - - 2,988,256
- 85,221 194,429 80,625 128,814 11,149 - 500,238
- - 203,910 4,450 - - - 208,360
72,933 631,065 445,807 581,601 2,641,172 2,881,396 5,320,499 12,574,473
120,308 - 205,372 183,029 522,409 2,454,149 1,703,448 5,188,715
244,725 76,990 42,548 85,403 127,317 48,817 38,541 664,341
3,143,266 1,076,232 1,092,066 935,108 3,419,712 5,395,511 7,062,488 22,124,383
- - 97,125 107,684 341,708 770 - 547,287
- 764,478 347,584 287,101 250,648 65,779 5,044 1,720,634
- 19,854 136,833 97,323 153,550 6,588 - 414,148
- - 66,125 1,344 1,892 4,632 286 74,279
- 9,783,474 1,117,271 1,101,977 2,636,627 1,699,395 25,010 16,363,754
- - 60,085 150,352 95,633 235,506 54,950 596,526
4,022 135,125 74,668 78,171 255,819 49,822 14,301 611,928
4,022 10,702,931 1,899,691 1,823,952 3,735,877 2,062,492 99,591 20,328,556
2017 3,139,244 (9,626,699) (807,625) (888,844) (316,165) 3,333,019 6,962,897 1,795,827
2016 3,206,844 (8,539,761) (743,969) (373,094) (325,610) 2,534,117 5,831,127 1,589,654
2017 12 31 1,795,827
2016 206,173
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9,626,699

2017

VaR
VaR 99

VaR

2017 2016

12 31 12 31

112 167 252 105 106 157 265 91
59 84 148 50 61 52 144 20

47/396



EDINETOOOO
O000O000o0OoO0Ooo(Ees9r2)
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90 117 226 70 97 156 253 64
1 8 21 - 6 13 60 -
2017
CBRC
2017 12 31
122,593 2,865,663 - - - 2,988,256
- 364,272 128,267 7,699 - 500,238
- 208,360 - - - 208,360
- 7,514,939 4,660,444 336,579 62,511 12,574,473
120,309 460,631 522,564 2,362,479 1,722,732 5,188,715
664,341 - - - - 664,341
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907,243 11,413,865 5,311,275 2,706,757 1,785,243 22,124,383

- 204,808 341,709 770 - 547,287
- 1,462,200 202,473 51,471 4,490 1,720,634
19,854 234,157 153,549 6,588 - 414,148
- 67,469 1,892 4,632 286 74,279
121,264 11,569,194 2,987,851 1,674,005 11,440 16,363,754
- 251,877 79,399 210,334 54,916 596,526
611,928 - - - - 611,928
753,046 13,789,705 3,766,873 1,947,800 71,132 20,328,556
2017 154,197  (2,375,840) 1,544,402 758,957 1,714,111 1,795,827

2017 (2,375,840)  (831,438) (72,481) 1,641,630
2016 424,016  (1,839,375) 818,884 565,725 1,620,404 1,589,654

2016 (1,839,375) (1,020,491)  (454,766) 1,165,638

2017 12 31 2016
189,053 831,438
2,473,068 2016 286,939
PBC
100
PBC 100
100 100
100 100
2017 12 31 (46,727) 46,727 50,694 (50,694)

2016 12 31 (48,500) 48,500 43,566 (43,566)
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2017
FSAP
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
1,285,315 415,267 383,769 2,084,351 1,306,232 327,955 264,686 1,898,873
(1,151,780) (453,711) (326,808)  (1,932,299) (1,087,356) (351,161) (227,688) (1,666,205)
« ) 2,737,947 178,350 247,059 3,163,356 2,621,532 98,488 230,706 2,950,726
« ) (2,794,336) (105,881) (280,868)  (3,181,085) (2,824,058) (39,253) (261,184) (3,124,495)
(72,996) - - (72,996) (4,012) - - (4,012)
4,150 34,025 23,152 61,327 12,338 36,029 6,520 54,887
2017 12 31 61,327
2016 6,440
2017
IT
2017 AML

AML

AML
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2017
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2017
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37

2017
36 19
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2017
60
2017 12 31
15.50
13.71 13.09
2016 0.56 0.56 0.11

2017 12 31 2016 12 31

1,691,332 1,579,469 1,549,834 1,456,011
1,771,120 1,652,142 1,569,575 1,475,184
2,003,072 1,881,181 1,783,915 1,686,768
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13.09% 12.87% 12.98% 12.89%

13.71% 13.47% 13.15% 13.06%

15..50% 15.33% 14.94% 14.93%

12.38% 12.31% 12..550% 12.57%

15..40% 15.11% 15.31% 15.16%

2017 12 31 2016 12 31

250,011 250,011
M 109,968 132,800
198,613 175,445
259,600 211,134
883,184 784,164
3,264 4,069
@ (4,256) 798
® 2,556 2.752
® 2,274 2,083
320 (150)
3,902 3,002
79,636 19,659
152 82
138,848 155,684
92,838 58,281

266 375
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O

1,691,332 1,549,834
@ 1,771,120 1,569,575
® 2,003,072 1,783,915
@
)
(©)
O]
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
11,792,974 10,821,591
8,166,348 7,465,207
3,626,626 3,356,384
94,832 103,494
50,734 58,277
44,098 45,217
1,032,174 1,012,689
12,919,980 11,937,774
2017
2015 CBRC 2015
2017 12 31

7.52
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2017 12 31 2017 30 2017 30 2017 31
7.52% 7.12% 6.95% 7.01%
1,771,120 1,683,765 1,620,211 1,629,829
23,555,968 23,643,720 23,312,727 23,251,597
(@)
)
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
™ 22,124,383 20,963,705
@) (146,210) (99,697)
71,599 25,535
168 922
® 1,515,080 1,439,703
® (9,052) (8,587)
23,555,968 22,321,581
@
)
(€©)
O]
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
O 21,690,628 20,672,026
(9,052) (8,587)
21,681,576 20,663,439
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91,739 61,402
62,831 53,443
10 50
154,580 114,895
204,564 102,622
168 922
204,732 103,544
3,029,172 2,745,861

(1,514,092) (1,306, 158)
1,515,080 1,439,703
1,771,120 1,569,575
23,555,968 22,321,581
@ 7.52% 7.03%

@
@

2018

FRB ECB
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2017
2017
GDP 51.6 11.1
2017 GDP 6.9
82.7 CPI 1.6 2.9
FRB
2017
252 8.7 233
8.4 13.65
1.71 1.74
2017 299,787 1.55
243,615 4.83 34,657
8.30
127,362 36.65
2017 2016

452,456 417,799 8.30
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OooooOodd
141,575 142,061 (0.34)
117,798 118,509 (0.60)
594,031 559,860 6.10
(167,043) (171,515) (2.61)
(127,362) (93,204) 36.65
161 69 133.33
299,787 295,210 1.55
(56.172) (62,821) (10.58)
243,615 232,389 4.83
2017 452,456 34,657 8.30
76.17
2017 2016
/ / /
) )
12,332,949 515,427 4.18 11,198,284 477,204 4.26
4,567,181 170,713 3.74 4,281,294 156,204 3.65
2,847,380 43,027 1.51 2,615,994 39,512 1.51
578,376 15,279 2.64 709,735 19,615 2.76
191,028 5,708 2.99 157,860 4,102 2.60
20,516,914 750,154 3.66 18,963,167 696,637 3.67
(304,369) (274,175)
1,895,179 998,631
22,107,724 750,154 19,687,623 696,637
16,037,819 213,313 1.33 14,666,217 212,474 1.45
1,875,668 46,621 2.49 1,942,354 40,593 2.09
539,251 19,887 3.69 411,584 16,615 4.04
484,099 14,486 2.99 205,300 5,671 2.76
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101,842 3,301 3.33 128,026 3,485 2.72
19,038,679 297,698 1.56 17,353,481 278,838 1.61
1,383,210 848,040
20,421,889 297,698 18,201,521 278,838
452,456 417,799
2.10 2.06
2.21 2.20
2017
2.10 2.21
2017 2016
/
@ @
47,362 (9,139) 38,223
10,595 3,914 14,509
3,515 - 3,515
(3,511) (825) (4,336)
937 669 1,606
58,898 (5,381) 53,517
19,119 (18,280) 839
(1,447) 7,475 6,028
(790) 696 (99)
4,810 (1,538) 3,272
8,306 509 8,815
29,998 (11,138) 18,860
28,900 5,757 34,657
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@
34,657 28,900
5,757
2017 750,154 53,517 7.68
68.71
22.76  5.74 2.04
2017 2016
) )
6,291,705 267,676 4.25 5,835,605 264,376 4.53
2,314,327 95,743 4.14 2,172,900 95,207 4.38
3,977,378 171,933 4.32 3,662,705 169,169 4.62
@ 4,537,703 202,473 4.46 3,893,844 169,141 4.34
214,118 6,894 3.22 504,864 15,637 3.10
1,289,423 38,384 2.08 963,971 28,050 2.01
12,332,949 515,427 4.18 11,198,284 477,204 4.26
€))
38,223 8.01 515,427
14,509 9.29 170,713
6.68
3,515 8.90 43,027

8.85
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4,336
22.11 15,279
18.51 12
1,606 39.15
5,708 21.01
39
2017 18,860 6.76 297,698
71.65
15.66
2017 2016
) ()

8,430,224 104,137 1.24 7,517,512 100,649 .34
5,406,626 35,532 0.66 4,653,401 31,428 .68
3,023,598 68,605 2.27 2,864,111 69,221 .42
7,078,489 100,088 1.41 6,712,026 105,283 .57
3,063,410 9,298 0.30 2,739,082 8,279 .30
4,015,079 90,790 2.26 3,972,944 97,004 .44
529,106 9,088 1.72 436,679 6,542 .50
16,037,819 213,313 1.33 14,666,217 212,474 .45

839 0.39 213,313
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46,621
6,028
3,272 19.69 19,887
31.02
94 2.70
3,391
20.45
2017 2016
131,322 127,863 2.71
(13,524) (9,354) 44.58
117,798 118,509 (0.60)
23,777 23,552 0.96
141,575 142,061 (0.34)
2017 486 0.34 141,575
2017 2016
131,322 127,863 2.71
42,242 37,649 12.20
20,040 20,537 (2.42)
16,256 20,025 (18.82)
13,211 12,612 4.75
11,857 11,174 6.11
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9,906 11,368 (12.86)
9,341 7,584 23.17
3,330 2,938 13.34
1,525 1,830 (16.67)
3,614 2,146 68.41
(13.524) (9,354) 44.58
117,798 118,509 (0.60)
2017 0.60 117,798
1.34
19.83
12.20 42,242
20 30
2.42 20,040
WM
18.82 16,256
4.75 13,211
6.11 11,857
12.86 9,906

23.17 9,341
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2017 2016
4,858 3,975 22.21
2,195 2,558 (14.19)
(835) 11,098 (107.52)
17,559 5,921 196.55
23,777 23,552 0.96
225 0.96 23,777
883
4,858 11,098 835
2017
11,638 17,559
2017 2016
96,274 92,847
30,485 29,981
5,767 17,473
34,517 31,214
167,043 171,515
27.15 27.51
2017 0.36
27.15 4,472 2.61 167,043
3,427 3.69 96,274
504 1.68 30,485
11,706 66.99 5,767
2016 3,303

10.58 34,517
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2017 2016
123,389 89,588
1,973 690
764 306
413 970
796 (586)
2,000 2,926
127,362 93,204
2017 127,362 34,158 36.65
33,801 1,283
796
764
2017 6,649 56,172
18.74 25
2017
2017 12 31 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
12,903,441 11,757,032 10,485,140
(328,968) (268,677) (250,617)
12,574,473 56.84 11,488,355 54.80 10,234,523 55.78
@ 5,181,648 23.42 5,068,584 24.18 4,271,406 23.28
2,088,256 13.51 2,849,261 13.59 2,401,544 13.09
500,238 2.26 755,288 3.60 663,745 3.62
208,360 0.94 103,174 0.49 310,727 1.69

116,993 0.53 101,645 0.49 96,612 0.52
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@ 554,415 2.50 597,398 2.85 370,932 2.02
22,124,383 100.00 20,963,705 100.00 18,349,489 100.00
@
)
2017 12 31 2016 1,160,678 5.54 22.12
2016 1,086,118
9.45 2016 113,064 2.23
2016 138,995 4.88
2016 255,050 33.77
2016 105,186 101.95
2.04 56.84
0.76 23.42 0.08
13.51 1.34
2.26 0.45 0.94
2017 12 31 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
6,443,524 49.94 5,864,895 49.89 5,777,513 55.11
2,050,273 15.89 1,786,442 15.20 1,811,557 17.28
4,393,251 34.05 4,078,453 34.69 3,965,956 37.83
5,193,853 40.25 4,338,349 36.90 3,466,810 33.06
4,213,067 32.65 3,585,647 30.50 2,773,895 26.45
563,613 4.37 442,001 3.76 390,274 3.72
192,652 1.49 75,039 0.64 55,427 0.53
36,376 0.28 46,395 0.39 63,153 0.60
@ 188,145 1.46 189,267 1.61 184,061 1.76
122,495 0.95 495,140 4.21 433,153 4.13
1,143,569 8.86 1,058,648 9.00 807,664 7.70
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12,903,441 100.00 11,757,032 100.00 10,485,140 100.00
€
2017 12 31 2016 1,146,409 9.75
12,903,441
2016 578,629 9.87 6,443,524
263,831 14.77 314,798 7.72
2016 855,504 19.72 5,193,853
627,420 17.50 4,213,067
121,612 27.51 563,613
CCB 117,613 156.74
192,652
2016 10,019 36,376
2016 372,645
75.26 122,495
2016 84,921 8.02
1,143,569
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
3,885,329 30.11 3,471,042 29.52
2,123,492 16.46 1,964,685 16.71
5,539,863 42.93 5,095,325 43.34
1,354,757 10.50 1,225,980 10.43
12,903,441 100.00 11,757,032 100.00
2017
155,949 13,275 99,453 268,677
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45,602 7,524 88,831 141,957
- - (18,568) (18,568)
- - (3.143) (3.143)
(205) (2,919) (24,352) (27,476)
- (5,270) (31,721) (36,991)
- 1,192 3,320 4,512
12 31 201,346 13,802 113,820 328,968
2017 12 31 328,968 2016
60,291 2016 20.72 171.08
2016 0.26 2.55
25
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
4,714,014 90.97 4,445,214 87.70
113,244 2.19 303,398 5.99
354,390 6.84 319,972 6.31
5,181,648 100.00 5,068,584 100.00
2017
2017 12 31 5,181,648
2016 113,064 2.23
2016 268,800 6.05 90.97
2016  3.27 2016 190,154
2.19 2016 3.80
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
578,436 11.16 488,370 9.64
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1,550,680 29.93 1,633,834 32.23

2,586,722 49.92 2,438,417 48.11

465,810 8.99 507,963 10.02

5,181,648 100.00 5,068,584 100.00

2017 12 31 2016 12 31

4,474,161 94.91 4,257,384 95.77

142,899 3.03 106,761 2.40

43,256 0.92 38,085 0.86

53,698 1.14 42,984 0.97

4,714,014 100.00 4,445,214 100.00
2017 12 31 4,474,161 216,777
5.09 239,853 52,023

2017 12 31 2016 12 31

3,254,126 69.03 2,667,258 60.00

37,712 0.80 21,722 0.49

814,909 17.29 361,574 8.13

170,730 3.62 892,154 20.07

436,537 9.26 502,506 11.31

4,714,014 100.00 4,445,214 100.00

2017 12 31 985,639
814,909
170,730 82.68 17.32
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(%)
2014 13,880 5.44 2019 -
2014 11,540 5.67 2024 -
2014 11,340 5.79 2021 14 -
2014 10,630 5.61 2021 -
2010 10,000 4.1 2021 13 -
2011 10,000 4.39 2018 28 -
1
2010 8,280 +0.50% 2020 25 -
2011 8,280 4.62 2021 22 -
2013 7,860 4.97 2018 10 24 -
2013 7,580 4.43 2023 10 -
(€))
2017 12 31 116,993 2016 15,348
15.10 24
2017 12 31 3,166
1,035 37
2017 12 31 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
16,363,754 80.50 15,402,915 79.50 13,668,533 80.86
1,720,634 8.46 1,935,541 9.09 1,761,107 10.42
506,526 2.03 451,554 2.33 415,544 2.46
547,287 2.69 439,339 2.27 42,048 0.25
74,279 0.37 190,580 0.98 268,012 1.58
@ 1,026,076 5.05 954,122 4.93 749,162 4.43

20,328,556 100.00 19,374,051 100.00 16,904,406 100.00
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€H)
2017 12 31 20.33 2016 954,505
4.93 2016 960,839 6.24
16.36 2016
214,907 11.10 1,720,634
2016 144,972 32.11 596,526
2016 107,948
24.57 547,287
2016 116,301 61.02
80.50 2016
1.00
8.46 2016 1.53 2.93
0.60 2016 0.42 2.69
0.37 2016 0.61
2017 12 31 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
8,700,872 53.17 8,008,460 51.99 6,891,295 50.42
5,723,939 34.98 5,145,626 33.41 4,213,395 30.83
2,976,933 18.19 2,862,834 18.58 2,677,900 19.59
7,105,813 43.43 6,927,182 44.98 6,367,364 46.58
3,169,395 19.37 2,986,109 19.39 2,584,774 18.91
3,936,418 24.06 3,941,073 25.59 3,782,590 27.67
557,069 3.40 467,273 3.03 409,874 3.00
16,363,754 100.00 15,402,915 100.00 13,668,533 100.00
2017 12 31 2016 692,412 8.65
8,700,872 55.05 1.43
2016 178,631 2.58 7,105,813
2016 89,796 557,069
2016 761,599 9.37 8,893,334
2016 1.81 56.26 2016
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109,444 1.61 6,913,351
43.74
(Ef: +EART (Eir - +EART
.ﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁ:ﬁ;zﬁ 0 .ﬁﬂ%?ﬁﬁﬂf
F&i _ Fai
A T o ERRE
| FIN B ERiL S
e ' 16 1
2017
38 -
49
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
250,011 250,011
79,636 19,659
135,225 133,960
(26,004) (976)
198,613 175,445
259,680 211,193
886,921 786,860
(4,322) 348
1,779,760 1,576,500
16,067 13,154
1,795,827 1,589,654
2017 12 31 2016 206,173 12.97

1,795,827
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2016 0.54
8.12
22
2017 12 31
3,029,172 2016 304,646
37,373 1,110,481
63

2017 12 31 2016 12 31
12,345,554 95.67 11,241,249 95.61
365,596 2.83 337,093 2.87
72,919 0.57 71,412 0.61
97,522 0.76 82,505 0.70
21,850 0.17 24,773 0.21
12,903,441 100.00 11,757,032 100.00

192,291 178,690
1.49 1.52
2017
2017 12 31
192,291 2016 13,601
2016 0.03 1.49 2.83
2016 0.04
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31

6,443,524 166,044 2.58 5,864,895 152,323 2.60

2,050,273 80,638 3.93 1,786,442 92,547 5.18

4,303,251 85,406 1.94 4,078,453 59,776 1.47

5,193,853 21,811 0.42 4,338,349 21,548 0.50

4,213,067 10,199 0.24 3,585,647 10,175 0.28

563,613 5,039 0.89 442,001 4,343 0.98

192,652 1,386 0.72 75,039 1,196 1.59

36,376 1,620 4.45 46,395 2,106 4.54

188,145 3,567 1.90 189,267 3,728 1.97

122,495 - - 495,140 - -

1,143,569 4,436 0.39 1,058,648 4,819 0.46

12,903,441 192,291 1.49 11,757,032 178,690 1.52

2017 12 31 2016 12 31

6,443,524 49.94 166,044 2.58 5,864,895 49.89 152,323 2.60
1,304,691 10.11 13,806 1.06 1,207,636 10.27 5,970 0.49
1,178,373 9.13 75,000 6.3 1,177,985 10.02 69,764 5.92
913,395 7.08 3,282 0.36 749,690 6.38 4,573 0.61
819,916 6.35 2,998 0.37 658,347 5.60 4,456 0.68
822,782 6.38 4,210 0.51 689,258 5.86 985 0.14
436,275 3.38 33,564 7.69 410,923 3.50 37,016 9.01
414,867 3.22 9,236 2.23 342,531 2.91 8,652 2.53
378,620 2.93 778 0.21 314,032 2.67 502 0.16
252,989 1.96 6,549 2.59 236,382 2.01 7,402 3.13
222,694 1.73 11,625 5.22 216,421 1.84 11,040 5.10
6,199 0.05 - - 5,745 0.05 - -
67,471 0.52 412 0.61 72,631 0.62 203 0.28
41,510 0.32 394 0.95 30,607 0.26 432 1.41
25,245 0.20 8 0.03 21,138 0.18 - -
409,857 3.18 7,188 1.75 416,799 3.55 5,784 1.39
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5,193,853 40.25 21,811 0.42 4,338,349 36.90 21,548 0.50
122,495 0.95 - - 495,140 4.21 - -
1,143,569 8.86 4,436 0.39 1,058,648 9.00 4,819 0.46
12,903,441 100.00 192,291 1.49 11,757,032 100.00 178,690 1.52
2017
2016
2016
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
4,001 0.03 5,020 0.04
2017 12 31 2016 1,019
4,001 0.01
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
53,390 0.42 56,174 0.48
20,547 0.16 28,326 0.24
30,334 0.24 37,776 0.32
54,543 0.42 51,357 0.43
7,058 0.05 4,466 0.04
165,872 1.29 178,099 1.51
2017 12 31 2016 12,227
165,872
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803,442 79,090
2016
97,456 2016 513,025
84,160 8,792
2016
2016 2017 CcB
GAAP IFRS
GAAP IFRS
2017 12 31 2017 12 31
2017 2016
82,724 27.59 98,329 33.31
137,736 45.95 129,269 43.79
54,617 18.22 66,008 22.36
24,710 8.24 1,604 0.54
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299,787 100.00 295,210 100.00
2017 2017 2016
692,412 8.65 8,700,872 11.24
3.99
2017 2016
578,629 9.87 6,443,524
2016 0.02 2.58
3,357,453 2016 461,297
15.93 52.11 0.65
125,845 2016 19,802 319,000
34,290 170,825
1,765,087 e
2007 354,153
20.9
2017 CBRC
2016 168,690 11.70 1,610,582
2016 296,091 605,014
2016 2.09 93.00
2017 5.9
1.3
2017
CCB
Yinxiaotong Yinyitong
720
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Dangfeiyun Huifeiyun
Electronic Gongdexiang
2017 2017
2016 573,795 458,501
2016 253,984 1,198,008
2017
1.6 20
e+
20
2017 132 1,371
UAE 14
2017 1.17 2.05
4,501
14 91.9
e+ 12.6
2017
2017
2016 2.29 24.72 11.54

2016 0.98 38.24 3.56
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2017
PBC
Yu Dao Tong Da Jianguanyi
SWIFT-AMH
2017
2016 1.22 7.94
500 1.63
2017
2017 2016 178,631 2.58
7,105,813 6.14 0.12
2017
2016 855,504 5,193,853
2017
2016 627,420 17.50 4,213,067
156,339 2016 127,464
36,376 4,671
2017 Jianyuan
83,866 Jianxin
1,400
Wechat
FM
2017
2016 12.86 106.93
219,044 9.13 2,618,912 563,613
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2017
898 491 2017
15.40
2017
46.85 185
2017 10
8,949 15.24 67,670
19.57 940,200
ccB
2017
727,641 2,048,992
2017 27.1

10,084

2017
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454,946
6.77
24
28
2017
2017
1,366,555 W 65.53
673,924
W 2017
12,679 WM
WM 2,085,256 W
WM 354,436
MEA
2017 400,095
CCB
FI7s®
1,568 120 MeA
184,530 MEA
MEA MEA
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2017
2.53

30

WM
31.82
NAMeS
Qianyuan
7,947,669
2017
1,730,820
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China Merchants Group
2017 ccB
ccB CCB
2017
29 ccB CCB ccB CCB CCB
ccB ccB ccB
60 2017 7,196
69.46
ccB
CCB China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation
Limited 6,511 17,600
43
CCB
2017 CCB 370,672 49,391
2017 2,835
ccB
CCB China Construction Bank (London) Limited
2009 200 1.5
CCB
ccB
2017 CCB 9,356
3,387 2017 240
ccB
ccB China Construction Bank (Russia) Limited
2013 4.2

CCB
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CCB
CCB
2017 CCB 3,753 669
2017 64
CCB
CcB China Construction Bank (Europe) S.A.
2013 200
CCB
CCB 2016 12 2017
CCB
2017 CCB 11,006 1,388
2017 39
CCB
ccB China Construction Bank (New Zealand)
Limited 2014
50 2016 100 150
CCB
CCB
2017 CCB 8,448 950
2017 51
CCB
CCB China Construction Bank (Brasil) Banco
Maltiplo S/A 1938
S.A. BIC BIC 2007
BOVESPA 2014 BIC
2015 12 99.05 2015 BIC
2017 12 CCB 100
CCB
2017 CCB
2017 CCB 38,608
3,669 2017 1,798

ccB
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ccB China Construction Bank (Malaysia)
Berhad 2016 822.6
2017
ccB
2017 CCB 4,323
1,317 2017
CCB
CCB PT Bank China Construction Bank
Indonesia Thk PT Thk
1.66
102 2016
PT Thk 60 2017
CCB
CcB
2017 ccB
7,575 1,179 2017 36
CCB ccB
CCB CCB ccB CCB ccB
ccB CCB
27
2017
2017 441,931 19.14
22.86 6,499
CCB
ccB CCB Principal Asset
Management Co., Ltd. 200 65
Principal Financial Services, Inc.
China Huadian Capital Holdings Company Limited 25 10 CCB
CSRC
2017 CcB 2017
CCB 1.31
488,001 360,910
ccB
CCB Principal Capital Management Co., Ltd. 463,425
CCB 4,421 3,706

1,017
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ccB
CCB CCB Financia Leasing Corporation
Limited 8
2017 CCB
2017 CCB
138,013 13,149 1,222
ccB
ccB CCB Trust Co., Limited 1,527
Heifei Xingtai Financial Holding (Group) Co.,
Ltd. 67 33
2017 1,409,670 CCB 19,110
11,540 1,852
ccB
CCB CCB Life Insurance Company Limited 4,496
China Life Insurance Co.,
Ltd. (Taiwan) the National Council for Social Security Fund
China Jianyin Investment Limited
Shanghai Jin Jiang International Investment and Management Company Limited
Shanghai China-Sunlight Investment Co., Ltd. 51 19.9 14.27
5.08 4.9 4.85 CCB
2017 ccB
2017 CCB 128,376
11,001 375
CCB
ccB CCB Property & Casualty Insurance Co., Ltd. 2016 10
CCB
Ningxia Traffic Investment Co., Ltd. Yinchuan Tonglian
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Capital Investment Operation Co.

2017 CCB
228

CCB
CCB

M&A

2017 CCB

CCB

2017

10,994

ccB

CCB

CCB
80 20

2017 CCB
6,740

ccB

CCB

CCB

2017 CCB

2017 CCB
2.37

CCB
CCB
2017
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, Ltd. 90.2 4.9 4.9 CCB

1,128 740

CCB International (Holdings) Limited

601
M&A
CCB 77,961
1,438
CCB Futures Co., Ltd. 561
Shanghai Liangyou (Group) Co., Ltd.
CCB Trading Company Limited ccB
CSRC
2017 CCB
656 21
CCB Pension Management Co., Ltd. 2.3
85 15
391,758
2,484 2,214

CCB Financial Asset Investment Co., Ltd.
12
CBRC
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CBRC
CCB
2017 CCB
48 589,700 100,800
2017 CCB 12,020
20
Sino-German Bausparkasse Co., Ltd.
Bausparkasse
Schwaebisch Hall AG 75.10 24.90
2017 18,337
2017 28,797 2,903
45
2017 27
2,819.50 1,378
2017 27
18,197 3,404
13,186 281
2017 2016

53,279 17.77 39,885 13.51
43,439 14.49 36,973 12.52
35,143 11.72 47,629 16.13
48,105 16.05 46,280 15.68
45,837 15.29 52,778 17.88
2,450 0.82 13,651 4.63
59,357 19.80 51,243 17.36
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12,177 4.06 6,771 2.29
299,787 100.00 295,210 100.00
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
4,687,993 14.68 3,287,924 13.18
3,479,166 10.89 2,248,437 9.02
4,916,680 15.39 2,341,560 9.39
4,063,059 12.72 3,227,603 12.94
3,294,459 10.32 2,745,765 11.01
1,100,318 3.45 966,670 3.88
8,672,547 27.15 8,456,699 33.91
1,726,043 5.40 1,666,409 6.67
@ 31,940,265 100.00 24,941,067 100.00
@
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
2,288,830  17.74 31,460 1.37 2,117,133  18.02 41,539 1.96
1,041,337  15.05 27,777 1.43 1,762,963  14.99 29,426 1.67
2,131,045  16.52 38,302 1.80 1,946,622  16.56 29,199 1.50
2,176,159  16.86 32,154 1.48 1,982,785  16.86 26,654 1.34
2,117,740  16.41 34,973 1.65 1,953,377  16.61 29,435 1.51
672,300 5.21 18,920  2.81 643,515 5.47 14,794 2.30
574,506  4.45 5,867 1.02 452,941 3.85 4,206 0.95
1,001,515 7.76 2,838 0.28 897,696 7.64 3,347 0.37
12,003,441  100.00 192,291 1.49 11,757,032 100.00 178,690 1.52
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31
2,951,029 18.03 2,820,430 18.31
2,551,496 15.59 2,352,719 15.28
2,896,463 17.70 2,743,537 17.81
3,200,877 19.56 3,000,106 19.48
3,137,692 19.18 2,957,827 19.20
1,044,470 6.38 1,071,195 6.95
24,658 0.15 11,565 0.08
557,069 3.41 445,536 2.89
16,363,754 100.00 15,402,915 100.00

2017 14,920 37
341 13,297 1,213
14,890 30 500
316 184 44
2017
2025
94
50
2017 1,840 306
288 1,500
97,007 ATM 29,047
14,776 ATM
3,846 7.66
88
1,031 14,790

21,456
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STM
ATM STM™
12
61
1.3
2017
Huishenghuo
WeChat
Yueshenghuo
2017 2016 19.34
2016 12.87 381
WeChat 2016 35.39
87.59 57.32
144 .68 50.802
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136
0.7

266.38 SMS
WeChat

72.12 2017

2017



E.ccb.com
2017

545
2017

ccB

24

2017

23,000

EDINETOOOO

O000O000o0OoO0Ooo(Ees9r2)

2016 14.35 270.73
2016 24.04 6.03 2017
9,022 36.35 2017
2,371 272.4

e.ccb.com

5.1 27
186,764
CCB WeChat
594
1,266 99.26 Al
80
9,700

QR NFC
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2017

WeChat

QR
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2,400

UAE
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32
2018
Al
2018 16.0

2017 12 31

- 250,010,977,486 -

- 752,500,000 -
2017 12 31

1.00 240,417,319,880
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OOoooOodd
1.00 9,593,657,606
250,010,977, 486
2017 12 31
100.00 152,500,000
100.00 600,000,000
752,000,000
2018 15
52(2)(a)
b
(2017 12 31 )
2010 11 19 234,282,741,606 234,282,741,606 10 0.7
2010 12 16 250,010,977, 486 250,010,977, 486 10 0.7
(2017 12 31 )
2015 12 16 152,500,000 3,050,000,000
2017 12 21 600,000,000 60,000,000,000
®)
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OooooOodd
329,810 45,638
284,172 2018 28 344,007 43,696
300,311
)
329,810 2017 12 31
10
o 57.03| 142,590,494,651( ) -
0.08 195,941,976( ) -
36.71| 91,780,584,796 +29,446,884
OXO) ¢
1.07| 2,666,087,431( ) +98,807,092
@ 0.80| 2,000,000,000( ) -
@ ® 0.64| 1,611,413,730( ) -
@ 0.41] 1,015,613,000( ) -
0.34 856,000,000( ) -
o 0.20 496,639,800( ) -
@ 0.10 244,802,920 ) -47,103,204
0.06 156,370,388( ) +156,370, 388
005L  FH002
€))
() 2017 12 31 1,611,413,730 1,015,613,000
2,000,000,000 600,000,000
600,000,000
91,780,584,796
(3) 2017 12 31
54,131,000 1,315,282,730
230,000,000 12,000,000
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10
2017
2017
72,753
30.03
1
57
2017 2018 29 2017
1 2017 231,680 10 23,168
2 2012 20
13,943
3 2017 0.291 2018 16
72,753
4 2017
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
6.71 6.41 7.94 6.10 7.20
(¥93) (¥89) (¥111) (¥85) (¥100)
5.08 4.92 5.06 4.31 5.72
(¥71) (¥69) (¥70) (¥60) (¥80)
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2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
5.08 6.73 7.47 5.73 7.68
(¥88) (¥117) (¥129) (¥99) (¥133)
3.96 3.78 4.60 4.53 5.46
(¥69) (¥65) (¥80) (¥78) (¥95)
10 11 12
6.58 7.10 6.92 7.12 7.08 7.21
(¥92) (¥99) (¥96) (¥99) (¥99) (¥100)
5.91 6.32 6.45 6.59 6.68 6.61
(¥82) (¥88) (¥90) (¥92) (¥93) (¥92)
10 11 12
6.87 7.75 7.10 7.29 7.51 7.73
(¥119) (¥134) (¥123) (¥126) (¥130) (¥134)
6.04 6.49 6.70 6.96 6.77 6.86
(¥105) (¥112) (¥116) (¥121) (¥117) (¥119)
@
22 18.5
57 2017 10 2019
Tian Guoli
59 2015 2017
Wang Zuji
59 2015 2017
Pang Xiusheng
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57 2015 2017
Zhang Gengsheng

52 2017 2019
Feng Bing

52 2017 2019
Zhu Hailin

58 2015 2017
Li Jun

50 2017 2019
Wu Min

45 2017 2019
Zhang Qi

61 2015 2017
Hao Aiqun

57 2016 10 2017
Anita Fung Yuen Mei

74 2017 2019

Malcolm
Christopher McCarthy

70 2016 10 2017
Carl Walter

66 2013 10 2018
Chung Shui Ming Timpson

63 2013 12 2018
Murray Horn

63 2012 2017
Wang Hongzhang

55 2014 2017
Guo Yanpeng

52 2011 2017
Dong Shi

52 2014 2017
Zhang Long

79 2013 10 2017
Wim Kok

60 2014 2019
Guo You

53 2004 2018
Liu Jin
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60 2013 2018
Li Xiaoling

60 2016 2018
Li Xiukun

56 2016 2018
Jin Yanmin

57 2016 2018
Li Zhenyu

62 2013 2018
Bai Jianjun

59 2015
Wang Zuji

59 2010
Pang Xiusheng

57 2013
Zhang Gengsheng

51 2013 12
Yang Wensheng

54 2014
Huang Yi

60 2014 12
Yu Jingbo

53 2015
Zhu Kepeng

47 2017
Zhang Lilin

52 2017
Liao Lin

57 2018
Huang Zhiling

58 2014
Xu Yiming

60 2013 2017
Zeng Jianhua

60 2007 2018
Chen Caihong
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10,845

17,925

@

15

2017

2016

2016

2017

2017

2017

2017

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2017

17

15

28

2020

235,400
19,304 12,366
22,567 14,456
25,838
2017
CBRC
2017
2017
2017
2017
2020

Kenneth Patrick Chung

1992
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15,739 3,971
18,751
19,417
2017 10
2017
2017 28
2017
2017
2017

1957 2009 12

1980



EDINETOOOO
O000O000o0OoO0Ooo(Ees9r2)

oooooog
1996 ( )
« D
( )
« )
2018
2017
2020
Wu Jianhang 1961 2014
2013 10 2014 2007 12 2013 10 CcB
2004 10 2007 12
2003 2004 10 1997 2003
1994 1997
1984 1991
2003
2017
2020
Fang Qiuyue 1959 2015
2017 ccB 2014
2015 2011 2014
2000 2011 1998 2000
1997 12 1998
1992 1997 12
1987
2010 EMBA
2018
17
Lu Kegui 1961 2017
2013 2017
2011 2013 2011 2011

2008 2011 2000
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2008 1998 2000 1995
1998 1988 1995
1982
2018
17
Cheng Yuanguo 1963 2017
2017 CCB 2014 2017
2011 2014
2010 2015 10 CCB 2005
2011 2001 2005
1995 2001
1986
2018
Wang Yi 1962 2013 11
2009 11 2013 11
2008 12 2009 11 2005
2008 12 2001 2005
1992 2001
1984 2010
2018 17
2018 17
2018 17
2018 14
2018 31
CBRC 2018
CBRC 2017
CBRC 2017
2017 12 22

CBRC
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OoOoOoOoOodno
2017
(©))
2017 10 2018 3
Tian Guoli
13
2013 2013 2017
2010 12 2013
1999 2010 12
1983 1999
1983
2015
Wang Zuji 2012 2015
2008 2012
2006 2008
2005 2006
2005 2005 2004
2005 2003 2004
2000 2003
1997 2000
1]
2009
2015 2010
Pang Xiusheng 2013 2014 2009 12
2010 2006 2009 12
2006
2005 2006
2003 2005 2003
2003 1995 2003

1995
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2015 2010
Zhang Gengsheng ccB 2010 12
2013 2006 10 2010 12
2004 2006 10
2000 2004
2003 1998 2000
1996 12 1998
1984
2010 EMBA
2017 2015 2017
Feng Bing 1988 2015
1988 2001
2017 2012 2017
Zhu Hailin 1992 2012
1992
2000
2015 2008 12 2015
Li Jun

11

BNP

1995
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2017 2011 12 2017
Wu Min 2017 2017
2017 2017
2015 2016
2006 10 2011 11
1991 2006
1994 1999 2002
2008 2011
1991 2002
2006 2009
2012
2017 2011 2017
Zhang Qi 2001
1991 2001
1995 1998 2001
2015 2003 2015 CBRC
Hao Aiqun
1983 2003
1982
2016 10 2008 2015 HSBC
Anita Fung Yuen Mei 1996
2015 HSBC
CEO 2010 11 2015
2011 2015
HSBC HSBC
2011 11
2014

1995
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2017 2009 12 2016 10
Malcolm Christopher
McCarthy
(Ofgem)
(FSA) J.C.
UK NIBC N.V. NIBC N.V.
plc plc
ICE
ICE
ICE ICE
ICE IFRS
2016 10
Carl Walter 2001

2011 JP

JP
1999 2001
1990 1998 12
1981 1990
2012
1970 1980

1981
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2013 10

Chung Shui Ming
Timpson
2006 2012
1979 1983
1976 1987
1998
2000

2013 12

Murray Horn
ANZ
ANZ
1993 1997
2000

2013

2014 2004 2014
Guo You

2001 11 2004
1999 12
2001 11
1998 1999 12 1994 11
1998

PBC
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2004 2014
Liu Jin 2004 11 2014 2003
2004 2001
11 2003
1984 1999
2008
2013 2007 2013
Li Xiaoling 2006 2007 2001
2006
2003
2016 2015 2014
Li Xiukun 2015 2011 2014
2006 2011
2003 2006 2000
2003
2013
2016 1 2014 12 2015 12
Jin Yanmin CCB 2014
11 2014 12 2011 2014 11
2011 2011
2009 2011
2007 2009
2006 2007
2001 2006
1983 2010
EMBA
2016 2014
Li Zhenyu 2012 11 2014 2009 2012
11 1985
1982 1985
1982
2013 11
2013 11

112/396



EDINETOOOO
O000O000o0OoO0Ooo(Ees9r2)

oooooog

2013
Bai Jianjun

1987 PBC
1996 10 1997 10 1990
1991 10 1987
2003

Wang Zuji
Pang Xiusheng
Zhang Gengsheng

2013 12 2013 12
Yang Wensheng 2010 12 2013

2010 11 2010 12 2006 10

2010 11 2001 2006 10

2000 2001
1993

2014 2013 12 2014

Huang Yi 2010 2013 12 CBRC
2003 2010 CBRC
1999 2003
1997 1999

1997
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2014 12 2011 2015
Yu Jingbo 2013 2015
2011 2012 10 2005
2011 2004 2005
1999
1997 1999
1985
1998
2015 2012 10 2015
Zhu Kepeng 2010 2012 10
2004 12
2004 12 2005
2002 12 2004 12
1996
2017 2017
Zhang Lilin 2014 2017
2012 2014
2012
2009 2012
2006 12 2009 2006
11 12
2005 2006 11
2005
1997
2017 2015 2017
Liao Lin 2013 2015
2011 2013
2003 11 2011
1989 2009
2018 2013
Huang Zhiling 2011 2013
2006 2011
1999 2006
1997 1999 1994 11
1997

1991
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2014 2005 2014
Xu Yiming 2003 2005
2001 2003
1994
@
2017
( (D)
Tian Guoli - 213.4 61.2 274.6
Wang Zuji - 519.1 141.1 660.2
Pang Xiusheng - 467.2 138.6 605.8
Zhang Gengsheng - 467.2 138.6 605.8
Feng Bing (2) - - -
Zhu Hailin (2) - - - -
Li Jun (2) - - - -
Wu Min (2) - - - -
Zhang Qi  (2) - - - -
Hao Aiqun (2) - - - -
Anita Fung Yuen Mei 390.0 - - 390.0
Malcolm Christopher 170.8 170.8
McCarthy
(Carl Walter) 440.0 - - 440.0
Chung Shui Ming Timpson 440.0 - - 440.0
Murray Horn 470.0 - - 470.0
Guo You - 519.1 141.1 660.2
Liu Jin - 660.0 175.1 835.1
Li Xiaoling - 649.7 168.0 817.7
Li Xiukun (3) 50.0 - - 50.0
Jin Yanmin (3) 50.0 - - 50.0
Li Zhenyu (3) 50.0 - - 50.0
Bai Jianjun 250.0 - - 250.0
Yang Wensheng - 467.2 138.6 605.8
Huang Yi - 467.2 138.6 605.8
Yu Jingbo - 467.2 138.6 605.8
Zhu Kepeng - 467.2 138.6 605.8
Zhang Lilin - 264.7 73.9 338.7
Liao Lin - 657.0 157.1 814.1
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Huang Zhiling (4) - - - -

Xu Yiming - 788.4 187.0 975.4

Wang Hongzhang - 346.1 75.4 421.5

Guo Yanpeng (2) - - - -

Dong Shi (2) - - -

Zhang Long 136.7 - - 136.7
Wim Kok 190.0 - - 190.0
Zeng Jianhua - 131.4 29.9 161.3
Chen Caihong - 712.8 131.2 844.0
(1) 2015
@
®
O) 2018
®)
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2017
14

2017 15 2016 2016
2017 2015
2017

92
2017 15
2017 16
2017 10 2017
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100
2017 10
2017 10 10

2017 2016 2017 2017

15

2013
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14

2017

2017 29 27 14 17 30 10
10 26 12 20

60 96

2017
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172 172 100
7/9 2/9 100
9/9 0/9 100
9/9 0/9 100
5/5 0/5 100
5/5 0/5 100
8/9 1/9 100
5/5 0/5 100
5/5 0/5 100
9/9 0/9 100
8/9 1/9 100
5/5 0/5 100
9/9 079 100
9/9 0/9 100
9/9 0/9 100
4/4 074 100
4/4 074 100
3/3 0/3 100
4/4 074 100

33

2017
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2017
CSRC 2003 56
PBC CBRC
2017 12 31
959,243
2017 12 31
2016 2017 2017
2017
2017
CIC
2017
15
10

2017 12 31
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14

2017
96
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2018 27 2018

2017
2016 2017 2017

CSRC
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2017
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2017

2016
2017

2017
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10
2017
2017 12 10 29 27 19 30 10
26 12 21
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2016
2017
8/8 0/8 100
8/8 0/8 100
8/8 0/8 100
7/8 1/8 100
6/8 2/8 100
8/8 0/8 100
7/8 1/8 100

2017
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2017

2017

IFRS 9
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2017

C0SO

2017

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP
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PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP
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2017
2017
2017
2017 12
31
2017 2016
137.00 125.00
6.04 3.35
2017
2018
2018 29 2017
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( ) 2017 12 31
C ) 1ASB
IFRS
38 59 131
2017 12 31
23 103
193

17.32 2018 UFJ
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Ooooodo
2017 12 31
12 31
2017 2016
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
750,154 12,992,667 696,637 12,065,753
(297,698) (5,156,129) (278,838) (4,829,474)
6 452,456 7,836,538 417,799 7,236,279
131,322 2,274,497 127,863 2,214,587
(13,524) (234,236) (9,354) (162,011)
7 117,798 2,040,261 118,509 2,052,576
« ) 8 4,858 84,141 3,975 68,847
9 2,195 38,017 2,558 44,305
«C Y ) 10 (835) (14,462) 11,008 192,217
«
49,009 848,836 55,340 958,489
(31,450) (544,714) (49,419) (855,937)
« ) 11 17,559 304,122 5,921 102,552
594,031 10,288,617 559,860 9,696,775
12 (167,043) (2,893,185) (171,515) (2,970,640)
426,938 7,395,432 388,345 6,726,135
(123,389) (2,137,097) (89,588) (1,551,664)
(3,973) (68,812) (3,616) (62,629)
13 (127,362) (2,205,910) (93,204) (1,614,293)
161 2,789 69 1,195
299,787 5,192,311 295,210 5,113,037
16 (56,172) (972,899) (62,821) (1,088,060)
243,615 4,219,412 232,389 4,024,977
593 10,271 (839) (14,531)
208 3,603 68 1,178
801 13,873 @771) (13,354)
(38,151) (660,775) (27,841) (482,206)
9,230 159,864 7,055 122,193
3,403 58,940 (3,930) (68,068)
/

¢ ) 470 8,140 (150) (2,598)
(4,748) (82,235) 5,885 101,928
(29,796) (516,067) (18,981) (328,751)
( ) (28,995) (502,193) (19,752) (342,105)
214,620 3,717,218 212,637 3,682,873
242,264 4,196,012 231,460 4,008,887
1,351 23,399 929 16,090
243,615 4,219,412 232,389 4,024,977
213,837 3,703,657 212,418 3,679,080
783 13,562 219 3,793
214,620 3,717,218 212,637 3,682,873
17 0.96 17 0.92 16

( / )

144 259 ( )
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12 31
2017 2016
¢ ) (¢ ) ( ) ( )
18 2,988,256 51,756,594 2,849,261 49,349,201
19 175,005 3,031,087 494,618 8,566,784
157,036 2,719,864 202,851 3,513,379
20 325,233 5,633,036 260,670 4,514,804
21 578,436 10,018,512 488,370 8,458,568
22 82,980 1,437,214 89,786 1,555,094
23 208,360 3,608,795 103,174 1,786,974
24 116,993 2,026,319 101,645 1,760,491
25 12,574,473 217,789,872 11,488,355 198,978,309
26 1,550,680 26,857,778 1,633,834 28,298,005
27 2,586,722 44,802,025 2,438,417 42,233,382
28 465,810 8,067,829 507,963 8,797,919
30 7,067 122,400 7,318 126,748
32 169,679 2,938,840 170,095 2,946,045
33 14,545 251,919 14,742 255,331
34 2,752 47,665 2,599 45,015
35 2,751 47,647 2,947 51,042
36 46,189 799,993 31,062 537,994
37 71,416 1,236,925 75,998 1,316,285
22,124,383 383,194,314 20,963,705 363,001,371
39 547,287 9,479,011 439,339 7,609,351
40 1,336,995 23,156,753 1,612,995 27,937,073
41 383,639 6,644,627 322,546 5,586,497
42 414,148 7,173,043 396,591 6,868,956
22 79,867 1,383,296 90,333 1,564,568
43 74,279 1,286,512 190,580 3,300,846
44 16,363,754 283,420,219 15,402,915 266,778,488
45 32,632 565,186 33,870 586,628
46 54,106 937,116 44,900 777,668
47 199,588 3,456,864 211,330 3,660,236
48 10,581 183,263 9,276 160,660
49 596,526 10,331,830 451,554 7,820,915
36 389 6,737 570 9,872
50 234,765 4,066,130 167,252 2,896,805
20,328,556 352,090,590 19,374,051 335,558,563
51 250,011 4,330,191 250,011 4,330,191
52 79,636 1,379,296 19,659 340,494
53 135,225 2,342,007 133,960 2,320,187
54 (26,004) (450,389) (976) (16,904)
55 198,613 3,439,977 175,445 3,038,707
56 259,680 4,497,658 211,193 3,657,863
57 886,921 15,361,472 786,860 13,628,415
(4,322) (74,857) 348 6,027
1,779,760 30,825,443 1,576,500 27,304,980
16,067 278,280 13,154 227,827
1,795,827 31,103,724 1,589,654 27,532,807
22,124,383 383,194,314 20,963,705 363,001,371
2018 27
144 259 ( )
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12 31
( )
2016 12 31 250,011 19,659 133,960 (976) 175,445 211,193 786,860 348 13,154 1,589,654
59,977 1,265  (25,028) 23,168 48,487 100,061 (4,670) 2,913 206,173
()] 1,271 (25,028) 242,264 (4,670) 783 214,620
@
147 147
®) (1,322) (1,328)
59,977 3,422 63,399
(6)
23,168 (23,168)
48,487 (48,487)
(69,503) (69,503)
(1,045) (1,045)
(€% i)
2017 12 31 250,011 79,636 135,225  (26,004) 198,613 259,680 886,921 (4,322) 16,067 1,795,827
12 31
( )
2015 12 31 250,011 19,659 135,249 23,058 153,032 186,422 672,154 (5,565) 11,063 1,445,083
(1,289)  (24,034) 22,413 24,771 114,706 5,913 2,091 144,571
() (921)  (24,034) 231,460 5,913 219 212,637
@
(269) 590 321
13 13
1,343 1,343
(99) (45) (144)
®
22,413 (22,413)
24,771 (24,771)
(68,503) (68,503)
(1,067) (1,067)
(29) (29)
2016 12 31 250,011 19,659 133,960 976) 175,445 211,193 786,860 348 13,154 1,589,654
144 259 (
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2016 12 31 4,330,191 340,494 2,320,187 (16,904) 3,038,707 3,657,863 13,628,415 6,027 227,827 27,532,807
1,038,802 21,910  (433,485) 401,270 839,795 1,733,057 (80,884) 50,453 3,570,916
@ 22,014 (433,485) 4,196,012 (80,884) 13,562 3,717,218
@
2,546 2,546
(104) (22,897) (23,001)
1,038,802 59,269 1,098,071
®
401,270 (401,270)
839,795 (839,795)
(1,203,792) (1,203,792)
(18,099) (18,099)
(2,026) (2,026)
2017 12 31 4,330,191 1,379,296 2,342,097  (450,389) 3,439,977 4,497,658 15,361,472 (74,857) 278,280 31,103,724
12 31
( )
2015 12 31 4,330,191 340,494 2,342,513 399,365 2,650,514 3,228,829 11,641,707 (96,386) 191,611 25,028,838
(22,325) (416,269) 388,193 429,034 1,986,708 102,413 36,216 2,503,970
@ (15,952) (416,269) 4,008,887 102,413 3,793 3,682,873
@
(4,659) 10,219 5,560
225 225
23,261 23,261
(1,715) (779) (2,494)
®
388,193 (388,193)
429,034 (429,034)
(1,186,472) (1,186,472)
(18,480) (18,480)
(502) (502)
2016 12 31 4,330,191 340,494 2,320,187 (16,904) 3,038,707 3,657,863 13,628,415 6,027 227,827 27,532,807
144 259 ( )

135/396



EDINETOOOO
O000O000o0OoO0Ooo(Ees9r2)

ooooooo
12 31
2017 2016

( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
299,787 5,102,311 295,210 5,113,037

13 127,362 2,205,910 93,204 1,614,293
12 17,414 301,610 16,017 277,414
(3,182) (55,112) (3,704) (64,153)

32 554 1,412 24,456
(161) (2,789) (69) (1,195)
9 (2,195) (38,017) (2,558) (44,305)
(531) (9,197) 479) (8,296)

12,110 209,745 11,362 196,790
10 835 14,462 (11,098) (192,217)
(138) (2,390) (159) (2,754)

451,333 7,817,088 399,138 6,913,070
P 32,837 568,737 (328,481) (5,689,291)
47,448 821,799 10,762 186,398
(92,424) (1,600,784) (211,099) (3,656,235)

(105, 468) (1,826,706) 208,433 3,610,060
(1,299,971) (22,515,498) (1,258,420) (21,795,834)
56,768 983,222 (166,173) (2,878,116)
(1,360,810) (23,569,229) (1,744,978) (30,223,019)

110,473 1,913,392 395,118 6,843,444

766,290 13,272,143 1,829,273 31,683,008
¢ 79,857 1,383,123 (16,216) (280,861)
18,588 321,944 92,919 1,609,357
(115,297) (1,996,944) (78,104) (1,352,761)

141,011 2,442,311 12,653 219,150
(54,551) (944,823) (65,264) (1,130,372)

42,196 730,835 57,993 1,004,439

988,567 17,121,980 2,228,372 38,595,403

79,090 1,369,839 882,532 15,285,454

1,446,732 25,057,398 777,941 13,473,938

2,237 38,745 2,566 44,443

2,911 50,419 1,187 20,559
(1,525,529) (26,422,162) (1,363,040) (23,607,853)
(22,263) (385,595) (27,742) (480,491)
(1,544) (26,742) (1,393) (24,127)
(97,456) (1,687,938) (610,481) (10,573,531)

34,989 606,009 16,522 286,161

3,569 61,815 13 225

59,977 1,038,802

(144) (2,494)
(70,688) (1,224,316) (69,574) (1,205,022)
(6,347) (109,930) 11,711) (202,835)
(12,708) (220,103) (10,474) (181,410)
/(C 8,792 152,277 (75,368) (1,305,374)
(18,211) (315,415) 14,520 251,486

(27,785) (481,236) 211,203 3,658,036

58 599,124 10,376,828 387,921 6,718,792
58 571,339 9,895,591 599,124 10,376,828
730,411 12,650,719 687,994 11,916,056
( (297,536) (5,153,324) (262,259) (4,542,326)

144 259 (
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6
2017 2016
43,027 39,512
7,166 11,595
8,113 8,020
11,046 4,164
5,708 4,102
159,667 152,040
301,921 289,477
206,598 172,078
6,908 15,649
750,154 696,637
(14,486) (5,671)
(34,736) (33,579)
(11,885) (7,014)
(3,391) (3,485)
(19,887) (16,615)
(110, 651) (105,232)
(102,662) (107,242)
(297,698) (278,838)
452,456 417,799
(€Y)
2017 2016
3,143 3,675
39 29
3,182 3,704
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2017 2016
42,242 37,649
20,040 20,537
16,256 20,025
13,211 12,612
11,857 11,174
9,906 11,368
9,341 7,584
3,330 2,938
1,525 1,830
3,614 2,146
131,322 127,863
(7,710) (5,378)
(1,284) (1,132)
(4,530) (2,844)
(13,524) (9,354)
117,798 118,509
2017 2016
(1,138) (1,034)
1,404 2,421
471 185
4,121 2,403
4,858 3,975
14,024 (2016 9,587
(2016 12,161 )
2017 2016
486 131
1,310 2,097
399 330
2,195 2,558
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2017 2016
2,549 3,390
(4,048) 5,546
278 732
33 906
353 524
(835) 11,098

2017 2016
26,349 45,684
14,455 2,817
2,449 1,428
5,756 5,411
49,009 55,340
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2017 2016
26,946 47,023
4,504 2,396
31,450 49,419
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2017 2016

64,274 62,093
10,213 8,997
6,214 6,296
2,609 2,567
12,923 12,846
37 45

4 3
96,274 92,847
14,049 13,804
9,578 9,341
2,882 2,890
1,988 2,071
1,988 1,875
30,485 29,981
5,767 17,473
2,306 2,213
172 142
32,039 28,859
167,043 171,515

2017 2016

141,957 101,757
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457 217
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307 89
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2017 2016
) ( )
15,589 16,336
31,914 35,941
1,056 1,183
554 365
49,113 53,825
2017 2016
1
1
1 1
1 1
1
1
1 1
2017 2016
63,737 60,380
60,753 58,713
1,377 875
1,607 792
(352) (187)
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56,172 62,821
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2017 2016
299,787 295,210
74,947 73,803
(573) (577
() 9,340 10,648
() (27,190) (20, 866)
(352) (187)
56,172 62,821

2017 2016 12 31

2017 2016
242,264 231,460
(1,045) (1,087)
241,219 230,393
250,011 250,011
0.96 0.92
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2017 2016
73,876 73,296
@ 2,665,738 2,566,219
@) 209,080 183,764
39,562 25,982
2,914,380 2,775,965
2,988,256 2,849,261
)
2017 2016
17.0 17.0
5.0 5.0
PBOC
2017 2016
163,521 482,348
11,541 12,336
175,062 494,684
G7) (66)
175,005 494,618
2017 2016
147,945 466,765
27,117 27,919
175,062 494,684
G7) (66)
175,005 494,618
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2017 2016
173,762 121,238
151,583 139,555
325,345 260,793
( 39 (112) (123)
325,233 260,670
@
2017 2016
276,308 172,492
49,037 88,301
325,345 260,793
( 398 (112) (123)
325,233 260,670
21
2017 2016
@
189,447 141,330
1,312 1,825
190,759 143,155
@
10,211 8,690
23,076 16,553
354,390 319,972
387,677 345,215
578,436 488,370
@D
@
2017 2016
10,812 15,173
543
22,395 9,064
58,485 65,307
97,212 51,786
189,447 141,330
() 189,447 141,330
26 502
189,447 141,330
)
()]
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152 123
1,160 1,702
1,312 1,825
1,171 1,701
1,067 1,682
141 124
1,312 1,825
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@
2017 2016
10,211 8,690
10,211 8,690
®)
2017 2016
8,037 10,934
15,039 5,619
23,076 16,553
837 15
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22,239 16,538
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©
2017 2016
218,322 213,182
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354,390 319,972
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2017 2016
332,480 980 487 470,809 3,278 2,492
5,307,995 78,909 78,581 4,650,215 73,183 83,025
(@) 182,632 3,091 799 333,553 13,325 4,816
5,823,107 82,980 79,867 5,454,577 89,786 90,333
@
2017 2016
651 2,649
47,728 35,373
(€)) 5,395 10,751
53,774 48,773
20,545 25,987
74,319 74,760
2013 ( )
CBRC
@
(€)
2017 2016
49,087 469 (98) 45,148 507 (69)
325 12 348 24
33,193 1,051 (418) 21,491 (823)
51,684 918 (69)
134,289 2,450 (585) 66,987 531 (892)
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2017 2016
1,354 1,163
680 2,286
145 218
39,583 29,789
69,550 63,359
5,681 4,830
116,993 101,645
@
2017 2016
7,365,095 6,711,679
122,737 112,259
7,487,832 6,823,938
4,252,698 3,625,574
203,218 87,346
41,417 51,189
567,683 447,244
214,878 209,586
5,279,894 4,420,939
135,715 512,155
12,903,441 11,757,032
38) (328,968) (268,677)
(113,820) (99,453)
(215,148) (169, 224)
12,574,473 11,488,355
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12,711,150 22,493 169,798 12,903,441
(201,346) (13,802) (113,820) (328,968)
12,509,804 8,601 55,978 12,574,473
2016 12 31
11,578,342 22,254 156,436 11,757,032
(155, 949) (13,275) (99,453) (268,677)
11,422,393 8,979 56,983 11,488,355
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2017 12 31 1.49 (2016 12 31 1.52 )
© @ 65(1)
€6))
2017
155,949 13,275 99,453 268,677
45,602 7,524 88,831 141,957
(18,568) (18,568)
(3,143) (3,143)
@) (205) (2,919) (24,352) (27,476)
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12 31 201,346 13,802 113,820 328,968
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1,023 2,881 3,904
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@
O)
2017
8,701 6,594 5,640 1,138 22,073
15,569 20,668 24,730 3,047 64,014
28,556 22,547 22,715 2,658 76,476
564 1,072 1,458 215 3,309
53,390 50,881 54,543 7,058 165,872
0.42 0.40 0.42 0.05 1.29
2016
9,921 5,943 4,608 911 21,383
15,879 29,972 22,248 1,973 70,072
29,794 28,213 22,970 1,473 82,450
580 1,974 1,531 109 4,194
56,174 66,102 51,357 4,466 178,099
0.48 0.56 0.43 0.04 1.51
®
2017 12 31
45,522 (2016 57,058
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@ 1,461,824 1,348,814
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O} 57,133 262,380
®) 1,550,680 1,633,834
@
2017 2016
985,559 772,775
36,742 21,299
228,104 94,430
89,327 321,228
122,092 139,082
1,461,824 1,348,814
) 1,428,927 1,320,530
22,662 51,784
32,897 28,284
1,461,824 1,348,814
)
)
2017 2016
( DES ) 913 887
30,810 21,753
57,133 262,380
88,856 285,020
54,172 76,525
1,957 4,180
34,684 208,495
88,856 285,020
1999 DES
(3) 2017 12 31 1,502,144 (2016
12 31 1,351,960 ) 91,716
(2016 12 31 293,459 )
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27
2017 2016
1,908,032 1,603,894
434 422
552,057 258,080
27,045 456,139
102,564 122,931
2,590,132 2,441,466
( 38) (3.410) (3,049)
2,586,722 2,438,417
@ 2,575,216 2,401,617
4,000 2,522
11,506 36,800
2,586,722 2,438,417
2,522,112 2,456,614
@
28
2017 2016
@ 49,200 49,200
304,554 228,762
20,000
13,462 50,271
29,096 33,662
©) 51,612 147,419
467,924 509,314
( 39 (2,114) (1,351)
465,810 507,963
406,864 281,640
1,181 485
58,946 226,323
465,810 507,963
@ ccB 1998 ( MOF )
49,200 2028 2.25
PBOC PBOC
@
2018 2027 10 2.00 8.50
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@
( CCBFI
cCB
Participacgdes Ltda.
( CCBFLCL
( CCB
ccB ( ccB
C ) ( CCB
(
C ) ( CCB
(
( ) (
)
( ) ( CCB
( ) ( CCB
)
( ) ( CCB
(
( cCB
( CCBIG
(a) 2017
CCBFI 100
(b) 2017 10 cCB
Ltda. ( )
©
(2016 12 31 27

)

- Investimentos e

400
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Ogoooood
2017 2016

(@) 12,000
®) 9,542 6,906
8,163 8,163
3,902 3,902
3,409 3,409
2,861 2,861
1,955 1,955
1,629 1,629
1,502 1,502
1,352 1,352
1,334 1,334
976 976
851 851
676 676
130 130
©) 1,378 1,378
51,660 37,024

2017 12 31

- Investimentos e Participacdes

27
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O000O000o0OoO0Ooo(Ees9r2)

ooooOood
(2 ccB
CCBFI 12,000 100 100
CCB 4,281 99.99 0.01 100
Investimentos e
Participacoes
Ltda
CCBFLCL 8,000 100 100
CCB 4,496 51 51
ccB 1,527 67 67
2,300 85 85
CCB 200 100 100
1,500
CCB 200 100 100
2,000 75.1 75.1
ccB 1,663,146 60 60
CCB 823 100 100
CCB 199 100 100
CcB 4,200 100 100
50,000 100 100
CCB 200 65 65
CCBIG 100 100
( ) 601 100 100
(
CcBl
)
( 6,511 100 100
) 17,600
( CCB
)
( 2,957 100 100
)
(
CCB
)

(3) 2017 12 31
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30
(@)
2017 2016
7,318 4,986
1,544 2,408
(1,549) (326)
161 69
(42) ®
(365) 189
12 31 7,067 7,318
@
2,370 12.66 12.66 2,967 611 63 41
10,000 50.00 50.00 2,064 1,662 254 114
701 28.53 28.53 1,211 465 24 23
( )
900 49.67 33.00 1,014 13 8
( )
876 31.49 31.49 877 @)
( )
31
(@)
2017 2016 12 31
2017 2016
17,405 5,408
178 155
79,231 275,035
48,356 121,527
3,430 4,184
3,398 3,451
151,998 409,760
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Ogoooood
2017 2016 12 31
2017 2016
2,661 4,773
19,760 21,491
«C ) 471 132
1,486 2,102
«C Y ) (3,623) 3,033
55 30
20,810 31,561
2017 12 31 1,730,820
(2016 12 31 1,794,708 2017 12 31
@
( 2190
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OooooOodd
32
/
2017 119,972 25,543 54,987 20,501 42,193 263,196
1,082 6,305 4,109 6,229 2,309 20,034
/¢ ) 3,111 (4,568) 59 1,398
(1,295) (634) (4,166) (3,875) (2,264)  (12,234)
2017 12 31 122,870 26,646 54,989 22,855 43,636 270,996
2017 (30,328) (34,598) (1,478)  (26,201)  (92,605)
(4,192) (5,791) (1,058) (4,066)  (15,107)
364 4,038 286 2,126 6,814
2017 12 31 (34,156) (36,351) (2,250)  (28,141)  (100,898)
« 39
2017 (418) (75) ®) (496)
@ @
3 75 78
2017 12 31 (415) ) 3) (419)
2017 89,226 25,543 20,389 18,948 15,989 170,095
2017 12 31 88,299 26,646 18,638 20,604 15,492 169,679
/
2016 113,844 27,274 51,305 10,440 40,338 243,201
1,602 5,286 6,423 9,909 2,318 25,538
/¢ ) 4,513 (6,065) 50 1,502
13 (952) (2,791) 152 (1,965) (5,543)
2016 12 31 119,972 25,543 54,987 20,501 42,193 263,196
2016 (26,319) (32,101) (633)  (24,116)  (83,169)
(4,016) (5.,070) (852) (3.866)  (13,804)
7 2,573 7 1,781 4,368
2016 12 31 (30,328) (34,598) (1,478)  (26,201)  (92,605)
« 3
2016 (423) (75) ®) (501)
(46) (46)
5 46 51
2016 12 31 (418) (75) ®3) (496)
2016 87,102 27,274 19,204 9,732 16,219 159,531
2016 12 31 89,226 25,543 20,389 18,948 15,989 170,095
@
(2) 2017 12 31 19,512 (2016 12 31 22,952 )
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12

12

12

12

31

31

31

31

38)

187/396

EDINETOOOO
O000O000o0OoO0Ooo(Ees9r2)

OooooOodd
2017 2016
21,206 21,217
499 86
(210) ©7)
21,495 21,206
(6.322) (5.844)
(535) (505)
47 27
(6,810) (6,322)
(142) (142)
2

(140) (142)
14,742 15,231
14,545 14,742
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OooooOodd
/
2017 7,688 1,128 8,816
851 121 972
(115) (38) (153)
2017 12 31 8,424 1,211 9,635
2017 (5,851) (358) (6,209)
(628) (107) (735)
50 19 69
2017 12 31 (6,429) (446) (6,875)
( 39
2017 [€h) ) ®)
(€h) @
1 1
2017 12 31 (8) ®)
2017 1,836 763 2,599
2017 12 31 1,995 757 2,752
/

2016 6,435 959 7,394
1,307 178 1,485

(54) ©) (63)

2016 12 31 7,688 1,128 8,816
2016 (5,018) (265) (5,283)
(858) (98) (956)

25 5 30

2016 12 31 (5,851) (358) (6,209)

( 39

2016 [€H) ) ®)
2016 12 31 (6 ) ®)
2016 1,416 687 2,103
2016 12 31 1,836 763 2,599
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35
[€)) cCB CcCB CcCB
2017 2016
2,947 2,140
566
(196) 241
12 31 2,751 2,947
@)
2017 12 31
(2016 12 31 )
36
2017 2016
46,189 31,062
(389) (570)
45,800 30,492
@
2017 2016
/C ) C )
/C ) /C_ )
31,341 8,162 1,899 458
153,278 38,023 111,883 27,952
23,511 5,814 24,749 6,188
(26,160) (5,810) (17,429) (3.536)
181,970 46,189 121,102 31,062
(1,446) (343) (2,115) (501)
28 7
(556) (46) 447) (76)
(2,002) (389) (2,534) (570)
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€3]
2017 (43) 27,959 6,188 (3,612) 30,492
(233) 10,064 (374) (2,244) 7,213
8,095 8,095
2017 12 31 7,819 38,023 5,814 (5,856) 45,800
2016 (8,529) 31,507 5,945 (4,168) 24,755
121 (3,548) 243 556 (2,628)
8,365 8,365
2016 12 31 (43) 27,959 6,188 (3,612) 30,492
37
2017 2016
@
1,589 1,773
624 745
953 955
3,166 3,473
9,463 7,782
6,095 23,494
3,401 3,489
3,254 3,297
431 5,664
49,628 33,139
75,438 80,338
¢ 39
(1,035) (1,062)
(2,987) (3,278)
71,416 75,998
(1) 2017 12 31 606
(2016 12 31 161 )
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OooooOodd
2017
/ 12 31

(D) Y/
19 66 ) 57
20 123 1) 112
25(3) 268,677 123,389 (26,107)  (36,991) 328,968
1,309 457 57 1,823
4,076 307 119 (30) 4,472
27 3,049 413 (52) 3,410
28 1,351 796 (33) 2,114
32 496 1 (78) 419
33 142 @ 140
34 8 1 @ 8
37 4,340 1,613 (1,931) 4,022

283,637 126,957 (26,016)  (39,033) 345,545

2016
/ 12 31
C ) )/

19 7 59 66
20 36 90 ®) 123

24 1 @
25(3) 250,617 89,588 (37,881)  (33,647) 268,677
1,051 217 41 1,309
4,317 89 (330) 4,076
27 2,033 970 46 3,049
28 1,908 (586) 29 1,351
32 501 46 (1) 496
33 142 142
34 8 8
37 4,582 752 (994) 4,340
265,203 91,225 (38,146)  (34,645) 283,637

Y
2017 2016

484,657 385,375
62,630 53,964
547,287 439,339
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40
€))
2017 2016
149,749 413,150
1,187,246 1,199,845
1,336,995 1,612,995
@
2017 2016
1,181,374 1,442,126
155,621 170,869
1,336,995 1,612,995
41
€))
2017 2016
353,317 297,639
30,322 24,907
383,639 322,546
©)
2017 2016
148,424 118,944
235,215 203,602
383,639 322,546
42
2017 2016
354,382 324,443
39,927 31,313
19,839 40,835
414,148 396,591

2017 2016 12 31
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43

2017 2016
63,322 167,088
3,632 15,640
66,954 182,728
401 5,500
6,924 2,352
74,279 190,580

44

2017 2016
5,767,595 5,206,395
3,204,950 3,022,447
8,972,545 8,228,842
3,312,456 3,120,699
4,078,753 4,053,374
7,391,209 7,174,073
16,363,754 15,402,915

2017 2016

€Y

83,365 99,822
97,050 80,930
22,491 28,264
290,235 313,110
493,141 522,126
(@) 29,635 14,121
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45

OooooOodd
2017
12 31
24,813 64,274 (65, 459) 23,628
2,735 10,213 (8,975) 3,973
193 6,214 (6,244) 163
2,252 2,609 (2,123) 2,738
€Y
964 12,923 (12,994) 893
970 25 (1,435) (440)
1,940 76 (342) 1,674
3 4 ) 3
33,870 96,338 (97,576) 32,632
2016
12 31
25,291 62,093 (62,571) 24,813
2,288 8,997 (8,550) 2,735
135 6,296 (6,238) 193
2,123 2,567 (2,438) 2,252
(€))
906 12,846 (12,788) 964
128 842 970
2,315 91 (466) 1,940
4 3 ) 3
33,190 93,735 (93,055) 33,870
@
@
2017
12 31
664 9,622 (9,697) 589
42 312 (317) 37
258 2,989 (2,980) 267
964 12,923 (12,994) 893
2016
12 31
635 9,429 (9,400) 664
33 485 (476) 42
238 2,932 (2,912) 258
906 12,846 (12,788) 964
®)
( )
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OooooOodd
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
7,131 6,664 6,161 6,536 970 128
212 186 187 183 25 3
(519) 919 (519) 919
74 80 74) (80)
(627)  (638) (627)  (638)
842 (842)
6,197 7,131 6,637 6,161 (440) 970
2017 2016
4.00 3.00
7.00 7.00
12.4 12.8
(2010 2013 )
0.25 0.25
(121) 125
45 (44)
7.9 (2016 12 31
2017 2016
411 1,185
532 359
5,557 4,522
137 95
6,637 6,161
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OooooOodd
46
2017 2016
44,359 35,526
68
7,549 7,039
2,198 2,267
54,106 44,900
47
2017 2016
175,126 185,018
7,550 15,801
2,307 2,312
14,605 8,199
199,588 211,330
48
2017 2016
2,946 2,292
7,635 6,984
10,581 9,276
49
2017 2016
@ 321,366 199,008
) 71,331 47,163
®) 144,898 145,599
) 58,931 59,784
596,526 451,554
@
@
( 2017 2016
2014 2017 2.375 2,085
2014 28 2019 28 1.375 2,002 2,047
2014 27 2017 27 3.45 1,250
2014 2019 3.25 3,904 4,170
2014 2017 3.35 800
2014 2019 3.75 600 600
2014 2021 4.00 600 600
2014 11 18 2019 11 18 3.75 1,000 1,000
2014 11 18 2021 11 18 3.95 1,000 1,000
2014 11 18 2024 11 18 4.08 600 600
2015 20 2020 20 3.125 4,555 4,865
2015 11 2020 11 1.50 3,902 3,655
2015 18 2018 18 4.317 231 241
2015 18 2019 18 4.30 7 7
2015 18 2020 18 115 120
1.2
2015 16 2018 18 3.935 69 72
2015 28 2020 28 3.25 3,253 3,475
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oOoOooodn
2015 10 2019 10 3.945 57 59
2015 18 2018 18 2,031 2,003
1.15
2015 10 19 2017 10 19 4.30 990
2015 11 26 2017 11 26 4.00 1,000
2015 12 2018 18 15 15
1.15
2015 12 29 2020 27 3.80 92 96
2016 30 2026 30 4.08 3,500 3,500
2016 16 2019 16 3.10 47 48
2016 31 2019 31 2.38 1,434 757
2016 31 2021 31 2.75 1,967 1,934
2016 18 2020 18 2.95 475 496
2016 10 18 2020 10 18 3.05 7 7
2016 10 21 2021 10 21 2.25 1,757 4,865
2016 11 2019 11 3.05 3,200 4,000
2016 11 2021 11 3.05 800 1,000
2016 12 22 2019 12 22 3.35 46 48
2017 17 2020 17 0.63 3,902
2017 2022 26 A 1,012
CNLR
0.18
B
CNLR
0.64
2017 31 2020 29 7,808
LIBOR 0.77
2017 13 2022 13 2.75 3,904
2017 2018 1.87 163
2017 27 2019 27 2.37 488
2017 10 25 2022 10 25 3.15 651
2017 10 25 2020 10 27 2.20 78
2017 10 26 2020 10 26 2.08 2,432
2017 11 2022 11 3.93 692
2017 12 2020 12 2.29 5,205
2017 12 2020 12 2.75 3,253
2017 12 2022 12 3.00 2,603
2017 12 22 2018 12 21 3.25 2,798
72,255 47,405
(924) (242)
12 31 71,331 47,163
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©)
PBOC CBRC HKMA
C ) 2017 2016
2009 24 2024 26 4.00 (@) 28,000 28,000
2009 2024 11 4.04 (D) 10,000 10,000
2009 11 2019 11 393 427
©
2009 12 18 2024 12 22 4.80 @ 20,000 20,000
2010 27 2020 27 8.50 ©) 1,713 1,883
2010 30 2017 10 15 7.31 ©) 222
2011 11 2026 11 5.70 e 40,000 40,000
2012 11 20 2027 11 22 4.99 (W) 40,000 40,000
2014 20 2024 20 4.25 @ 4,880 5,212
144,986 145,744
(88) (145)
12 31 144,898 145,599
) 2019 26
2019 26 7.00
(b) 2019 11
2019 11 7.04
©) BIC 2017 10 15
) 2019 12 22
2019 12 22 7.80
Q) 2021 11
() 2022 11 22
@ 2019 20
O]
« ) 2017 2016
2014 15 2029 18 5.98 (@) 20,000 20,000
2014 11 12 2024 11 12 4.90 (b) 2,000 2,000
2015 13 2025 13 3.875 (©) 13,014 13,899
2015 12 18 2025 12 21 4.00 (@) 24,000 24,000
59,014 59,899
(83) (115)
12 31 58,931 59,784
) 2024 18
(b) 2019 11 12
2019 11 12
12 CNH HIBOR 1.538
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2020 13
2020 13
2020 12 21
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50
2017 2016
112,914 95,892
16,136 966
13,986 3,190
11,731 11,473
9,552 10,388
8,887 8,259
5,032 4,501
3,382 3,074
53,145 29,509
234,765 167,252
51
2017 2016
H ) 240,417 240,417
A ) 9,594 9,594
250,011 250,011
H A
52
@
( ) ( ) )
2015 2015 12
16 4.65 20 152.5 3,050 19,711
2017 2017 12
”n 4.75 100 600 60,000
(75)
79,636
)
@
)
4.65
20.4850
)
CBRC
2020 12 16
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(

)

)

)

)

5.125

CBRC

5.125

5.125 )

CBRC

2017 12 27 )
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(€D)
CBRC
@
CBRC CSRC
(©)]
2017 2017 12 31
( (
( ) ) ) ) ( ) )
2015 152.5 19,659 152.5 19,659
2017 600 59,977 600 59,977
152.5 19,659 600 59,977 752.5 79,636
@
2017 2016
1. 1,779,760 1,576,500
() 1,700,124 1,556,841
@ 79,636 19,659
1,045 1,067
1,045 1,067
2. 16,067 13,154
(€Y 12,645 13,154
@ 3,422
53
2017 2016
134,537 134,543
320 (150)
368 (433)
135,225 133,960
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12 31

12 31
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2006
10

15

MOF
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O000O000o0OoO0Ooo(Ees9r2)

OooooOodd
2017
)/

(1,381) 405 (976)
(39,394) 9,541 (29,853)
1,896 474) 1,422
(37,498) 9,067 (28,431)

764 (191) 573
4,048 (1,012) 3,036
74) 68 (206)
4,538 (1,135) 3,403
(34,341) 8,337 (26,004)

2016

)/
30,791 (7,733) 23,058
(20,531) 5,228 (15,303)
(6,401) 1,600 (4,801)
(26,932) 6,828 (20,104)
306 an 229
(5,546) 1,387 (4,159)
(5,240) 1,310 (3,930)
(1,381) 405 (976)
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56
2017 2016
MOF ) 254,104 205,933
@ 2,124 2,124
(©)] 2,866 2,546
586 590
259,680 211,193
(1) MOF
2012 30  MOF
( [2012] 20 )
1.5
@
©)
57
2017 15 2016 12 31
2016 12 31 69,503
2017 15
(4.65 ( )
) 1,045 ( ) 2017 12 18
2018 27 2017 12 31
(1) 2017 231,680 10 23,168 (2016 22,413
)
(@) 13,943 (2016 34,228 ) MOF

3) 0.291 ( (2016 0.278 ) 72,753
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59

60

2017

12 31

35,938

12 31

2017 12 31
5,156
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oOoOooodn
2017 2016
73,876 73,296
209,080 183,764
60,910 60,921
59,220 229,622
168,253 51,521
571,339 599,124
2017 12 31
(2016 12 31 36,577 )
153,397 (2016 12 31 69,530 )
13,375 (2016
) 2017 12 31
13,352 (2016 12 31 5,216 )
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OoOooOodnd
2017
48,813 44,573 38,519 52,282 53,586 12,290 186,954 15,439 452,456
/C ) 23,973 19,223 33,632 28,890 25,935 11,576 (136,706) (6,523)
72,786 63,796 72,151 81,172 79,521 23,866 50,248 8,916 452,456
17,095 15,584 18,332 16,872 11,383 3,813 31,780 2,939 117,798
/
; 1,022 1,567 637 362 407 189 (1,392) 2,066 4,858
1,288 5 189 11 245 457 2,195
/¢ X( 481 35 658 199 (2.846) 638 (835)
«C ) 58 790 1,569 561 2,625 149 3,394 8,413 17,559
92,730 81,742 92,724 99,814 94,146 28,017 81,429 23,429 594,031
(25,727) (21,426) (26,204) (30,140) (27,754) (11,324) (16,748) (7,720) (167,043)
(13,724) (16,877) (31,377) (21,669) (20,555) (14,243) (5.324) (3,593) (127,362)
100 61 161
53,279 43,439 35,143 48,105 45,837 2,450 59,357 12,177 299,787
1,932 1,916 7,655 2,666 2,006 1,054 1,687 6,209 25,125
2,581 1,750 3,166 3,343 2,704 1,417 1,624 829 17,414
2017
4,687,992 3,479,166 4,916,680 4,058,155 3,294,459 1,100,318 8,672,547 1,723,881 31,933,198
1 4,904 2,162 7,067
4,687,993 3,479,166 4,916,680 4,063,059 3,294,459 1,100,318 8,672,547 1,726,043 31,940,265
46,189
(9,862,071)
22,124,383
4,675,179 3,479,313 4,887,516 4,058,490 3,303,501 1,110,903 7,050,551 1,624,785 30,190,238
389
(9,862,071)
20,328,556
600,582 422,504 767,363 492,226 348,508 155,452 242,537 3,029,172
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Oooooood
2016
40,351 36,855 34,408 45,352 49,218 11,517 191,503 8,595 417,799
/C ) 28,147 22,638 36,501 30,117 25,491 12,653 (153,546) (2,001)
68,498 59,493 70,909 75,469 74,709 24,170 37,957 6,594 417,799
17,974 16,352 19,581 17,983 13,301 5,821 24,865 2,632 118,509
/
; 388 517 (686) 122 44 46 1,051 2,493 3,975
1,908 5 1 278 2 87 277 2,558
«C ) 759 29 501 254 8,780 775 11,098
/¢ X 173 709 1,812 522 2,987 221 (3,202) 2,699 5,921
89,700 77,076 91,646 94,875 91,297 30,258 69,538 15,470 559,860
(26,634) (21,740) (27,905) (31,221) (29,002) (11,658) (16,683) (6,672) (171,515)
(23,181) (18,363) (16,112) (17,404) (9,517) (4,949) (1,612) (2,066) (93,204)
30 39 69
39,885 36,973 47,629 46,280 52,778 13,651 51,243 6,771 295,210
2,351 1,873 7,896 3,110 2,533 1,209 2,233 5,935 27,140
2,433 1,639 2,731 3,032 2,483 1,280 1,674 745 16,017
2016
3,287,924 2,248,437 2,341,529 3,223,419 2,745,765 966,670 8,456,699 1,663,306 24,933,749
31 4,184 3,103 7,318
3,287,924 2,248,437 2,341,560 3,227,603 2,745,765 966,670 8,456,699 1,666,409 24,941,067
31,062
(4,008,424)
20,963,705
3,292,293 2,252,473 2,325,284 3,220,764 2,742,194 966,764 7,020,522 1,561,611 23,381,905
570
(4,008,424)
19,374,051
570,239 403,398 699,060 418,924 318,757 151,838 2,800 159,510 2,724,526
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2017

150,924 101,139 173,958 26,435 452,456
73,083 74,348 (139,552) (7,879)

224,007 175,487 34,406 18,556 452,456
30,739 61,298 19,850 5,911 117,798
(6,128) (1,357) 11,687 656 4,858

2,195 2,195

681 (1,516) (835)

(556) 526 (700) 18,289 17,559

248,062 235,954 65,924 44,091 594,031

(59,291) (83,839) (9,582) (14,331) (167,043)

(106,047) (14,379) (1,725) (5,211) (127,362)

161 161

82,724 137,736 54,617 24,710 299,787

5,110 7,974 849 11,192 25,125

5,701 8,897 947 1,869 17,414
2017

6,837,261 5,377,252 8,475,693 1,648,535 22,338,741

7,067 7,067

6,837,261 5,377,252 8,475,693 1,655,602 22,345,808

46,189

(267,614)

22,124,383

10,072,832 7,502,694 900,534 2,119,721 20,595,781

389

(267,614)

20,328,556

2,016,432 761,613 251,127 3,029,172
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2016
165,280 62,914 171,382 18,223 417,799
/C ) 52,430 95,564 (141,946) (6,048)
217,710 158,478 29,436 12,175 417,799
33,038 60,426 21,352 3,693 118,509
¢ ) « ¥ (7,075) 673 8,801 1,576 3,975
2,558 2,558
« ) 9,066 2,032 11,098
«C Y () (58) (256) 9,998 (3.763) 5,921
243,615 219,321 78,653 18,271 559,860
(59,923) (88,569) (10,179) (12,844) (171,515)
(85,363) (1,483) (2,466) (3,892) (93,204)
69 69
98,329 129,269 66,008 1,604 295,210
5,376 9,040 1,095 11,629 27,140
5,014 8,433 1,021 1,549 16,017
2016
7,064,795 4,522,379 8,195,103 1,564,749 21,347,026
7,318 7,318
7,064,795 4,522,379 8,195,103 1,572,067 21,354,344
31,062
(421,701)
20,963,705
9,780,961 7,169,317 834,943 2,009,961 19,795,182
570
(421,701)
19,374,051
1,917,363 647,498 159,665 2,724,526
61
2017 2016
2,736,842 2,398,103
2,736,842 2,398,103
62
@
@
2017 2016
401 5,500
628,172 655,915
6,924 2,352
635,497 663,767
()
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2017 2016 12 31
@
2017 2016
192,768 191,077
396,467 383,530
801,618 690,144
1,390,853 1,264,751
276,629 296,606
60,821 107,160
898,422 776,775
41,216 37,383
266,865 160,141
94,366 81,710
3,029,172 2,724,526
&)
CBRC
2017 2016
1,110,481 1,073,108
(€)
2017 2016
5,720 5,717
4,289 4,396
3,024 3,194
3,350 5,076
2,423 2,756
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2017 12 31
)

O)

Q)
2017 12 31

®

79,431

(2016 12 31

(

10,499

14)
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18,806 21,139
2017 2016
5,882 9,294
(2016 12 31
MOF PBOC
2017 12 31
75,695 )
(2016 12 31 7,783 )
48)
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64
€))
CIC
CIC 1 5,500 2007 29 CIC
2003 12 16 828,209
2017 12 31 57.11
144,986 (2016 12 31 145,744 )
@
2017 2016
1,096 0.15 460 0.07
128 0.04 106 0.04
2017 2016
140 0.12 151 0.15
28,000 0.22 0.00
2,199 0.14 0.00
9,140 0.35 12,770 0.52
6,114 0.46 20 0.00
55 0.00 865 0.01
0.00 6 0.00

288 0.01 288 0.01
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(

(

)

)

2017 2016
32,102 4.28 28,755 4.13
10,237 3.44 2,528 0.91
667 0.51 228 0.18
198 1.46 295 3.15
() 724 0.46 612 0.40

2017 2016
36,672 20.95 72,746 14.71
71,066 21.85 69,487 26.66
22,323 3.86 8,111 1.66
7,522 9.06 3,581 3.99
62,500 30.00 10,897 10.56
21,747 18.59 14,606 14 .37
30,553 0.24 53,297 0.46
215,607 13.90 234,915 14.38
458,789 17.74 419,087 17.19
28,925 6.21 46,959 9.24
15 0.02 80 0.11
) 194,730 14.56 34,485 2.14
109,661 28.58 68,722 21.31
6,739 8.44 7,332 8.12
1,255 1.69 15,904 8.35
14,455 0.09 18,471 0.12
423 0.21 3,058 1.45
1,251 0.53 0.00
10,231 0.34 23,159 1.18
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2017 2016
604 12
571 4
27
7
2017 2016
7,497 680
98
448
2,223 1,547
2
264
82 5
®
M ®)
2017 2016
1,320 1,154
577 1,651
1,820 3,421
542 646
65 50
399 315
(94) (370)
811 3
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oOoOooodn
2017 2016
4,871 11,254
90,481 86,820
1,424 1,087
120 81
10,653 6,259
9,074 2,271
656 690
455 486
38,480 49,931
19,547 9,315
58,017 105,653
1,288 3,715
3,821 3,974
94 611
840 890
1,033 110
2017 12 31
53,726 (2016 12 31 44,793 )
2017 12 31
2017 12 31
4,613 (2016 12 31 173 )
10,721 (2016 12 31 4,478 )
O]
(
)
®
2017 2016 12 31
2017 12 31 3,183 (2016 12 31
2,950 ) CCB 8.73 (2016 12

31 8.73 )
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2017 2016 12 31
14 (
)
2017
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

467 51 88 606

467 51 88 606

467 51 88 606

265 27 47 339

467 51 88 606

657 43 114 814

788 51 136 975

131 8 22 161

713 16 115 844

4,422 349 786 5,557
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2016
CcC»
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

631 150 781
631 150 781
631 150 781
631 150 781
1,977 169 2,146
1,977 169 2,146
1,977 169 2,146
8,455 1,107 9,562

)

(
)
( ) 2017 12 31
2017 12 31
( ) 2016 12 31 2016
2016 12 31
( ) 2015
Q)
( )
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01 180
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EDINETOOOO
O000O000o0OoO0Ooo(Ees9r2)

OooooOodd
2017 2016
2,914,380 2,775,965
175,005 494,618
325,233 260,670
554,048 469,992
82,980 89,786
208,360 103,174
116,993 101,645
12,574,473 11,488,355
1,461,824 1,348,814
2,586,722 2,438,417
465,810 507,963
65,238 69,405
21,531,066 20,148,804
3,029,172 2,724,526
24,560,238 22,873,330
2017 2016
169,798 156,436
(113,820) (99,453)
55,978 56,983
22,493 22,254
(13,802) (13,275)
8,691 8,979
30,483 31,522
4
21
30,483 31,547
() (3.164) (6,804)
27,319 24,743
3,856,502 3,442,193
2,035,372 1,880,508
5,441,687 5,002,018
1,347,106 1,222,076
12,680,667 11,546,795
() (198,182) (149,145)
12,482,485 11,397,650
12,574,473 11,488,355
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2017
4,112 14,678 29,810
3,523 8,170 139,988
7,635 22,848 169,798
2016

3,632 15,005 27,773
5,644 7,266 128,663
9,276 22,271 156,436

2017 2016
1,429,583 11.08 516,193 1,287,693 10.95 520,293
1,318,827 10.22 410,706 1,323,238 11.24 464,514
981,704 7.61 347,367 826,410 7.03 309,203
867,818 6.73 199,689 726,706 6.18 192,922
522,242 4.05 284,698 448,576 3.82 316,657
477,404 3.70 266,890 492,343 4.19 252,177
395,163 3.06 193,538 324,204 2.76 167,715
280,721 2.18 70,228 259,268 2.21 76,772
250,698 1.94 28,685 250,530 2.13 29,755
107,297 0.83 18,035 130,037 1.11 33,862
74,831 0.58 24,972 90,685 0.77 34,986
70,981 0.55 16,912 77,445 0.66 21,415
710,563 5.50 87,281 586,803 4.99 80,183
7,487,832 58.03 2,465,194 6,823,938 58.04 2,500,454
5,279,894 40.92 4,429,426 4,420,939 37.60 3,820,851

135,715 1.05 512,155 4.36
12,903,441 100.00 6,894,620 11,757,032 100.00 6,321,305
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10
2017

/

( )
13,844 (8.651) (26,573) (10,184) 549
76,557 (51,220) (39,504) (47,638) 15,896

2016

/

( )
6,004 (3,935) (21,943) (2,412) 250
71,443 (44,348) (29,902) (44,859) 14,272

@
2017 2016
2,288,830  17.74 1,476,742 2,117,133  18.02 1,360,362
2,176,159  16.86 1,346,200 1,982,785  16.86 1,197,869
2,131,045  16.52 1,024,363 1,946,622  16.56 892,618
2,117,740  16.41 1,206,486 1,953,377  16.61 1,124,332
1,941,337  15.05 1,370,326 1,762,963  14.99 1,312,827
672,309  5.21 341,388 643,515  5.47 296,115
574,506 4.45 452,941 3.85
1,001,515  7.76 129,115 897,696  7.64 137,182
12,903,441  100.00 6,894,620 11,757,032 100.00 6,321,305
2017

38,302 (22,645) (39, 339)
34,973 (19,205) (37,230)
32,154 (19,135) (35,432)
31,460 (21,038) (40, 866)
27,777 (18,022) (31,612)
18,920 (11,925) (15,798)
5,867 (394) (10,640)
2,838 (1,456) (4,231)
192,291 (113,820) (215,148)
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2016
29,199 (15,573) (31,505)
29,435 (14,557) (30,102)
26,654 (14,557) (28,012)
41,539 (27,423) (32,173)
29,426 (18,429) (24,124)
14,794 (7.885) (10,423)
4,29 (9,471)
3,347 (1,029) (3.,414)
178,690 (99,453) (169,224)
60(1)
®©
2017 2016

3,885,329 3,471,042

2,123,492 1,964,685

5,539,863 5,095,325

1,354,757 1,225,980

12,903,441 11,757,032

@
2017 2016
4,001 0.03 5,020 0.04
% 998 0.01 2,321 0.02
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2017 2016

25 29

(25) (29)

646,592 815,896

489 5,238

61,661 37,488

708,742 858,622

) (144) (160)
708,598 858,462
708,598 858,462
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)

O

OooooOodd
2017
AAA AA A A
632 632
200 200
832 832
(434)
398
2,042,536 1,158,184 8,698 24,490 25,461 3,259,369
6,891 5,837 25,089 37,817
803,872 3,665 1,545 13,491 822,573
253,410 100,733 12,765 31,369 8,443 406,720
164,026 282,420 29,681 15,708 5,319 497,154
8,278 22,641 19,218 695 454 51,286
3,279,013 1,573,480 96,996 85,753 39,677 5,074,919
) (6,913)
5,068,006
5,068,404
2016
AAA AA A A
347 347
718 120 838
200 200 400
1,265 200 120 1,585
(878)
707
1,892,081 728,643 21,717 6,253 21,988 2,670,682
12,087 9,681 21,768
359,789 50 1,735 361,574
865,663 166,698 30,002 36,798 6,701 1,105,862
137,574 290,981 16,148 11,610 6,092 462,405
115,341 15,941 13,237 2,500 147,019
3,382,535 1,202,313 92,520 57,161 34,781 4,769,310
) (4,831)
4,764,479
4,765,186
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( VaR )
@) VaR
VaR
VaR
VaR VaR
99
VaR
2017
12 31
112 167 252 105
59 84 148 50
() 90 117 226 70
1 8 21
2016
12 31
106 157 265 91
61 52 144 20
) 97 156 253 64
6 13 60
) VaR

VaR

VaR VaR
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VaR

99

VaR

VaR

®

46,727

50,694

VaR

(2016 12 31

(2016 12 31

VaR

48,500

43,566
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AIR ) ( )
2017
@®

1.51 122,593 2,865,663 2,988,256

2.64 364,272 128,267 7,699 500,238

2.99 208,360 208,360

) 4.18 7,514,939 4,660,444 336,579 62,511 12,574,473
) 3.74 120,309 460,631 522,564 2,362,479 1,722,732 5,188,715
664,341 664,341

3.66 907,243 11,413,865 5,311,275 2,706,757 1,785,243 22,124,383

2.99 204,808 341,709 770 547,287

2.49 1,462,200 202,473 51,471 4,490 1,720,634

3.37 19,854 234,157 153,549 6,588 414,148

3.33 67,469 1,892 4,632 286 74,279

1.33 121,264 11,569,194 2,987,851 1,674,005 11,440 16,363,754

3.69 251,877 79,399 210,334 54,916 596,526

611,928 611,928

1.56 753,046 13,789,705 3,766,873 1,947,800 71,132 20,328,556

2.10 154,197 (2,375,840) 1,544,402 758,957 1,714,111 1,795,827
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2016
(O)

1.51 110,050 2,739,211 2,849,261
2.76 599,855 153,084 2,349 755,288
2.60 101,581 1,593 103,174
) 4.26 6,682,710 4,406,772 320,988 77,885 11,488,355
) 3.65 310,718 534,360 583,313 2,004,704 1,642,807 5,075,902
691,725 691,725
3.67 1,112,493 10,657,717 5,144,762 2,328,041 1,720,692 20,963,705
2.76 142,591 296,602 146 439,339
2.09 1,447,097 450,354 36,010 2,080 1,935,541
2.88 19,947 247,942 128,702 396,591
2.72 187,932 1,008 1,574 66 190,580
1.45 110,999 10,313,397 3,377,431 1,593,009 8,079 15,402,915
4.04 158,133 71,781 131,577 90,063 451,554
557,531 557,531
1.61 688,477 12,497,092 4,325,878 1,762,316 100,288 19,374,051
2.06 424,016 (1,839,375) 818,884 565,725 1,620,404 1,589,654

/ /

2017 12 31 ( )64,750
(2016 12 31 76,096 )
@
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2017
( (
) )
2,796,711 102,635 88,910 2,988,256
() 538,969 151,775 17,854 708,598
11,304,255 832,693 437,525 12,574,473
4,927,815 167,193 93,707 5,188,715
589,623 31,493 43,225 664,341
20,157,373 1,285,789 681,221 22,124,383
484,657 35,805 26,825 547,287
() 1,378,896 277,483 138,534 1,794,913
392,984 20,628 536 414,148
15,453,722 593,332 316,700 16,363,754
269,389 226,549 100,588 596,526
511,113 77,123 23,692 611,928
18,490,761 1,230,920 606,875 20,328,556
1,666,612 54,869 74,346 1,795,827
268,286 (294,407) 55,765 29,644
2,673,845 153,622 201,705 3,029,172
2016
( (
) )
2,627,642 132,659 88,960 2,849,261
() 677,609 164,499 16,354 858,462
10,318,156 815,966 354,233 11,488,355
4,874,843 122,967 78,092 5,075,902
508,602 153,120 30,003 691,725
19,006,852 1,389,211 567,642 20,963,705
385,374 28,964 25,001 439,339
() 1,740,191 275,673 110,257 2,126,121
380,632 15,162 797 396,591
14,539,781 568,294 294,840 15,402,915
213,579 213,937 24,038 451,554
512,886 28,376 16,269 557,531
17,772,443 1,130,406 471,202 19,374,051
1,234,409 258,805 96,440 1,589,654
213,538 (280,450) 89,001 22,089
2,461,840 88,183 174,503 2,724,526
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2017
2,705,300 282,956 2,988,256
85,221 194,429 80,625 128,814 11,149 500,238
203,910 4,450 208,360
72,933 631,065 445,807 581,601 2,641,172 2,881,396 5,320,499 12,574,473
24,386 150,934 103,563 150,580 128,825 20,148 578,436
88,855 37,644 31,627 127,903 931,628 333,023 1,550,680
13,953 36,360 220,316 1,186,205 1,129,798 2,586,722
2,841 11,479 23,610 207,401 220,479 465,810
7,067 7,067
244,725 76,990 42,548 85,403 127,317 48,817 38,541 664,341
3,143,266 1,076,232 1,092,066 935,108 3,419,712 5,395,511 7,062,488 22,124,383
97,125 107,684 341,708 770 547,287
764,478 347,584 287,101 250,648 65,779 5,044 1,720,634
19,854 136,833 97,323 153,550 6,588 414,148
66,125 1,344 1,892 4,632 286 74,279
9,783,474 1,117,271 1,101,977 2,636,627 1,699,395 25,010 16,363,754
60,085 150,190 91,918 19,140 33 321,366
162 3,715 63,355 4,099 71,331
140,044 4,854 144,898
12,967 45,964 58,931
4,022 135,125 74,668 78,171 255,819 49,822 14,301 611,928
4,022 10,702,931 1,899,691 1,823,952 3,735,877 2,062,492 99,501 20,328,556
3,139,244 (9,626,699)  (807,625) (888,844)  (316,165) 3,333,019 6,962,897 1,795,827
30,749 45,943 145,336 98,848 11,604 332,480
870,778 893,633 3,430,481 110,477 2,626 5,307,995
33,184 61,192 84,471 3,513 272 182,632
934,711 1,000,768 3,660,288 212,838 14,502 5,823,107
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2016
2,592,203 257,058 2,849,261
85,218 306,393 138,820 218,544 6,313 755,288
78,001 23,580 1,593 103,174
75,438 484,321 401,828 700,215 2,644,332 2,901,246 4,271,975 11,488,355
18,378 62,282 133,374 152,097 107,723 14,516 488,370
285,020 29,090 66,362 168,110 783,090 302,162 1,633,834
5,318 44,950 200,830 1,053,776 1,133,543 2,438,417
45,048 26,747 53,056 178,486 204,626 507,963
7,318 7,318
229,069 89,276 34,077 79,502 173,739 55,946 30,116 691,725
3,207,426 915,873 962,037 1,222,550 3,612,301 5,086,580 5,956,938 20,963,705
83,176 59,415 296,602 146 439,339
982,735 226,509 167,189 491,880 61,488 5,740 1,935,541
19,947 131,301 116,642 128,701 396,591
184,074 3,858 1,008 1,574 66 190,580
8,336,446 966,975 1,113,365 2,723,870 2,244,258 18,001 15,402,915
61,274 65,381 57,153 15,037 163 199,008
2,084 4,023 36,959 4,007 47,163
218 100,230 45,151 145,599
13,828 45,956 59,784
582 116,506 52,697 67,710 234,456 78,943 6,637 557,531
582 9,455,634 1,706,006 1,595,644 3,937,911 2,552,463 125,811 19,374,051
3,206,844  (8,539,761)  (743,969) (373,004)  (325,610) 2,534,117 5,831,127 1,589,654
70,611 77,418 204,710 106,484 11,586 470,809
771,445 782,146 2,949,614 140,260 6,750 4,650,215
47,553 98,665 177,124 10,177 34 333,553
889,609 958,229 3,331,448 256,921 18,370 5,454,577
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2017

547,287 563,332 99,448 110,503 352,611 770
1,720,634 1,751,770 766,491 351,816 291,385 260,618 74,705 6,755

414,148 418,613 19,854 138,903 98,501 154,750 6,605
74,279 75,774 66,326 1,374 2,030 5,658 386
16,363,754 16,725,423 9,785,489 1,131,863 1,138,058 2,735,162 1,905,745 29,106
321,366 359,190 63,261 150,660 104,893 40,339 37
71,331 82,226 201 1,796 8,139 67,539 4,551
144,898 204,878 36 1,224 5,913 175,336 22,369
58,931 80,778 2,758 28,842 49,178
216,642 216,642 24,349 26,551 28,197 124,193 13,352
19,933,270 20,478,626 10,596,183 1,878,405 1,821,698 3,751,067 2,305,539 125,734
1,390,853 1,133,818 85,704 8,111 37,721 83,073 42,426
1,638,319 398,492 232,930 425,987 542,427 38,483

2016

439,339 448,505 84,409 59,995 303,955 146

1,935,541 1,971,240 982,986 230,278 168,537 512,184 69,621 7,634
396,591 399,304 19,947 132,354 117,192 129,811

190,580 190,852 184,290 3,903 1,019 1,574 66
15,402,915 15,773,027 8,337,879 978,905 1,142,665 2,829,974 2,462,243 21,361
199,008 201,424 61,772 65,817 58,028 15,639 168
47,163 53,205 208 2,196 5,196 40,721 4,884
145,599 179,558 1,231 6,185 124,329 47,813
59,784 80,834 2,814 24,277 53,743
189,807 189,807 67,124 12,538 19,252 85,665 5,228
19,006,327 19,487,756 9,407,936 1,684,754 1,580,788 3,934,831 2,738,550 140,897
1,264,751 1,043,081 71,231 15,313 70,347 52,127 12,652
1,459,775 317,599 163,731 367,089 566,264 45,092
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2017
2,050 187,397 189,447
1,312 1,312
10,211 10,211
837 22,239 23,076
228,995 125,395 354,390
82,881 99 82,980
176,791 1,282,194 2,839 1,461,824
8,181 63,806 4,419 76,406
189,171 1,845,273 165,202 2,199,646
413,676 472 414,148
79,769 98 79,867
493,445 570 494,015

2016
3,134 138,196 141,330
1,825 1,825
8,690 8,690
421 16,132 16,553
55,116 264,856 319,972
89,320 466 89,786
59,380 1,283,715 5,719 1,348,814
40,617 231,378 9,349 281,344
105,377 1,797,725 305,212 2,208,314
395,883 708 396,591
89,788 545 90,333
485,671 1,253 486,924
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2017 2016 12 31
2017
2017
8,600 16,132 264,856 466 5,719 9,349 305,212 (708) (545) (1,253)
114 162 2,398 (243) (264) 46) 2,121 204 242 446
(81) (50) (131)
3,546 19,532 396,578 715 5,160 425,531 (287) (287)
(2,139) (13,587)  (538,437) (124)  (3,250)  (9,994)  (567,531) 319 205 524
2017 12 31 10,211 22,239 125,395 99 2,839 4,419 165,202 “72) (98) (570)
2016
2016 586 2,326 208,204 883 9,604 5,027 226,630 (519) (864) (1,383)
19) (113) 7,600 (361) 275 (19) 7,363 55 275 330
424 (34) 390
8,221 20,155 397,871 690 9,837 436,774 (369) (369)
(98)  (6,236)  (348,819) (56)  (5,274)  (5,462)  (365,945) 125 44 169
2016 12 31 8,600 16,132 264,856 466 5,719 9,349 305,212 (708) (545) (1,253)
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2017 2016
/( ) 1,964 603 2,567 7,782 (89) 7,693
@
)
2017 2016
465,810 480,353 466,521 13,832 507,963 512,409 358,488 153,921
2,586,722 2,535,280 23,186 2,512,094 2,438,417 2,494,243 1,351 2,492,892
3,052,532 3,015,633 23,186 2,978,615 13,832 2,946,380 3,006,652 1,351 2,851,380 153,921
()
2017 12 31
211,511 (2016 12 31 212,166 )
203,829 (2016 12 31 205,383 )
®
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CBRC ( )
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2017 2016
(@) (b)(c) 13.09 12.98
(@) (b)(c) 13.71 13.15
(@) (b)(c) 15.50 14.94
250,011 250,011
C)) 109,968 132,800
198,613 175,445
259,600 211,134
883,184 784,164
3,264 4,069
e (4,256) 798
) 2,556 2,752
( ) G) 2,274 2,083
320 (150)
3,902 3,902
) ( 79,636 19,659
152 82
( ) 138,848 155,684
@ 92,838 58,281
266 375
(h) 1,691,332 1,549,834
(h) 1,771,120 1,569,575
h) 2,003,072 1,783,915
O 12,919,980 11,937,774
(a) 2014
)
© (ccB
)
()
®
) ( )
(g) 2014
(@)

(i) 2017 12 31
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2017 2016
2,973,506 2,842,072
126,766 389,062
157,036 202,851
286,797 318,511
395,536 360,628
75,851 81,425
194,850 67,391
111,436 98,040
12,081,328 11,084,938
1,402,017 1,473,168
2,550,066 2,410,110
575,994 508,363
51,660 37,024
187,486 211,908
144,042 145,421
13,657 14,277
1,831 1,588
43,821 28,281
91,671 106,344
21,465,351 20,381,402

2017 2016
546,633 438,660
1,323,371 1,582,881
318,488 311,095
413,523 395,769
73,730 83,332
53,123 170,067
16,064,638 15,114,993
29,908 31,779
51,772 43,653
197,153 210,035
8,543 7,336
538,989 386,491
39 53
95,324 54,015
19,715,234 18,830, 159




2018 27

2016 12 31

(O
@

®

2017 12 31

2015 12 31

(©)
@

2016 12 31
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2017 2016

250,011 250,011
79,636 19,659
135,791 134,520
(24,463) (1,213)
198,613 175,445
254,864 206,697
856,109 766,312
(444) (188)
1,750,117 1,551,243
21,465,351 20,381,402

250,011 19,659 134,520 (1,213) 175,445 206,697 766,312 (188) 1,551,243
59,977 1,271 (23,250) 23,168 48,167 89,797 (256) 198,874
1,271 (23,250) 231,680 (256) 209,445
59,977 59,977
23,168 (23,168)
48,167 (48,167)
(69,503) (69,503)
(1,045) (1,045)
250,011 79,636 135,791 (24,463) 198,613 254,864 856,109 (444) 1,750,117
250,011 19,659 135,441 22,549 153,032 182,319 658,545 (1,460) 1,420,096
(921)  (23,762) 22,413 24,378 107,767 1,272 131,147
(921)  (23,762) 224,128 1,272 200,717
22,413 (22,413)
24,378 (24,378)
(68,503) (68,503)
(1,067) (1,067)
250,011 19,659 134,520 (1,213) 175,445 206,697 766,312 (188) 1,551,243
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68
69
CIC
70
I1ASB
2017 12 31
(1) IFRS 2018
(2) IFRS 15 2018
(3) IFRS 16 2019
(4) IFRS 17 2021
(1) IFRS
IFRS 2014 IFRS IAS 39
IFRS
ocl )
ocl
ocl
ocl
( )
IFRS ( ECL
ECL IAS 39 IFRS
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12 ECL
12 ECL ECL

ECL

ECL

IFRS IAS 39

IFRS
IAS 39

ECL IFRS 2018

(2 IFRS 15
IFRS 15

IFRS 15

IFRS 15

IFRS 15 IAS 18 IAS 11

IFRS 15

3) IFRS 16
IFRS 16
IFRS 16

IAS 17
IFRS 16
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*“i CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AS AT 31 DECEMEER 2017
(EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF RMB, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

i ; Nm.e BI.‘:‘IT_ i 21]1_5_
Interast incoma T50,154 B96.637
Interest expense (297,698) [278.838)

Higt intoreat income. L] [A53400: 5,1

Fee and commission income 131,322 127,863
Fae and commission axpanse {13,624) 18,354)

MNet fee and commission income T 117,798 118,509
MNet trading gain B 4,858 3875
Dividend income 8 2,195 2,558
MNet {loss)/gain arising from investment securities 10 (835) 11,008

Cither aperating income, net:
= CHiver Operating income 49,009 55.340
- O operaling expense (31,4501 (49,419

Other cporaing Income et e AT, 5821
Operating income 594,031 550,860
Operating expenses 12 (167,043) (171,515

..... 46988 3883:s

Impaiment losges on:
= Loans and advances to cuslomers (123,389) (BS,588)
= Others (3,973) (3,616)

TP SRS i e S S S s o 00 SRR, SRR

Share of profit of associates and joint ventures L 69

Profit before tax 209,787 #5210

Income tax expenss 16 (56,172) {52,821)

i OSSO ... . SOOI ot

The notes on pages 144 to 259 form part of these financial statements.

China Construction Bank Corpoaration Annual Hoport 2017
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MNote 2m7 2018
Other comprehensive incomae:
Itemns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 593 (B3
Dthers 208 i3
Iterns that may be reclassified subsequentty to profit or loss
Lesses of available-for-sale financial assets asising during the period 138,151) (27.841)
Income tax impact relating to avasiable-for-sale financial assets 9,230 7.055
Redagsification adjustments included in profit or loss 3,403 13,830
Met gainfloss) on cash flow hedges A4T0 (150)
Exchange difference on translating foreign operations {4,748} 5,885
O i e R (B8R
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax |28,895) (18,752)
Total comprehensive income for the year 214,620 212,637
Net profit atirbutable to:
Equity shareholders of the Bank 242,264 231460
Man-contralling inferess 1,351 929
243,615 232369
Total comprabensiva income atiributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Bank 213,837 212418
Mon-controtling interests 783 218
214,620 212,637
Basic and diluted eamnings per share (in RMB Yuan) 17 0.96 .82

The notes on pages 144 to 258 form part of these financial statements.

China Construction Bank Corpaoration Annual Roport 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMEER 2017
(EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF RMB, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

ot 2017 2016
Assets:
Cash and deposita with central banks 18 2,888,256 2,840,261
Depaosits with banks and non-bank financial institutions 18 175,005 484, 618
Precious metals 157,036 202,851
Placements with banks and non-bank financial institutions 20 325,233 260,670
Financial assets at fair value through peofit or koss 21 578,438 488,370
Positive falr value of derivatives 2z 82,930 80,786
Financial assets hald under resale agreements 23 208,360 103,174
Interest receivable 24 116,993 101,645
Loans and advances to customers 25 12,574,473 11,488,355
Avadable-for-safe financial assets 26 1,550,680 1,633,834
Held-to-maturity imestments 27 2,586,722 2438417
Investment classified as receivables 28 465,810 507 863
Intarests in associates and joint vantures a0 7087 7318
Fixed asgets 3z 169,679 170,085
Land wse rights 33 14,545 14,742
Intarsgibie assels 2 2,752 2,599
Goodwill 35 2,751 2847
Defarred tax asssls a6 48,189 31.0682
Qther assats 37 71,416 75.998
Total assets 22,124,383 20,963,705
Liabilities:
Bomowings from central banks 39 547,287 439,339
Depaosits from banks and non-bank financial institutions a0 1,336,995 1,612,885
Placermsnts from banks and non-Bank Gnanssl institulions 41 383,639 322548
Finamcial hahilities at fair value through profit or loss az a4, 148 F95.501
Megative fair value of derivatives 22 79,887 80,333
Finarncial assets sold under repurchase agreements 43 74,279 190,580
Deposits from customers. 44 16,363,754 15,402 815
Accrued staff costs 45 32,632 33,870
Taxes payable 46 54,106 44,900
Interest payabie a7 199,588 211,330
Provisions 48 10,581 9,276
Debt securities issued L) 506,526 451,554
Deferrad tax liabilities 36 389 &70
Other liabdities 50 234,765 167.252
Total fiabifitles . e 20 B28,B08 19,374,051
Equity:
Share capital 1) 260,011 250,01
Cither equéty instruments
Proference Shares 52 79,636 19,659
Capital reserve 53 135,225 133,960
Investment revaluation resene 54 (26,004} (B7E)
Surplus reserve 55 188,613 175,445
Genaral reserve 58 259,680 211,183
Rakaingd samings 57 888921 TBB.BEBD
Exchange resenve {4,323) 348
Total equity attributable 1o equity sharehalders of the Bank 1,779,760 1,676,500
Mon-coniralling interests 16,067 13.154
L ol T —— WPRIRUNOON L L
Total liabilities and equity 22,124,383 20,963,705

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2018,
Wang Zujl Chung Shul Ming Timpson Carl Walter

Vioe chairman, axecuiive direcior and president  Independant non-Bxecuive aireclor  InGBDemndernt mon-execiiive aiecior

Tha notes on pages 144 to 258 form part of these financial statements.

China Construction Bank Corpoaration Annual Hoport 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR EMNDED 31 DECEMEBER 2017 AND 2014
(EXPRESSED IM MILLIONS OF RMB, UMLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
_____ . Adiribariable 15 aquity sharshokders of the Bank
Orfer equity
Tt - Irrirsimeer M-
Share  peafenencn Capitsl  revahation Surpiny Genial Fataned Evchongn  controling Tebl
3 28 31 Decamber 2016 2001 19.659 130,560 o] 1Ta4E 211,15 T, Bl e 1315 15854
Mo turng Be - S5 1265 et il 45,487 100061 HETH 251 TS
{§ Total comprsbensiva income for B year - - 1 oo | - - ke HETR ™ BN
& Changes in share capial
Egtabishmant of nubsdares - - - - - - - - "W 7
i Cargensereholings n sinadiines - - (] - - - - - [ (i |
§ Caotal mecion by ol equty ot - B - - - - - - 1 6%
@ Pechl datributon
Approgeeiion b3 Surpha st - - - - 16 - [ - = =
i Appeoprion i panersl rasenve - - - - = e [sa.48m) - -. -
o ADpropnabon 10 oREnany sharsnhoies = - - - - = m - - m
W Divicends paid o prenenca
Sphiidiny = = = = = = {108 = = {L.ne5
v Dwidends paid
e T - - - - = = = = {1m L]
At 38 1 Decastbar 217 p=t .58 15,25 26,0004 158613 250 50 BN ] 18067 L THET
Aiebetalsie & Bty Sharshoitkns of the Bk
Ot egpaty
sy - impstoand Hene
Snara praference Capetef myELEion Sumis Jeneradl Retanad Excranga conimiing Todl
] ey rehars 15 ] teaarE B 15es ety Bty
As 28 31 Decamber 2015 = 1868 15048 ol 150 1582 BT L] 0 1850
Monermpets during e year < - [LEE [BA154) 24 U 114705 5813 2 LLCIL
{IF Tental comprabenuive isome for B peoe - : =] 18T - : TAE0 5013 Ha N
@ Changes in ghare capial
i Aogustionof sibskares . - [ - : = . 3 @) 0
i Capdalinacionby
o emnling e . . - - - - - - k| 13
§  Establshvind of submiiiss - - = = g = = 3 § 303 1303
¥ (rerce neareoidng in sbsadiares - - o] - - - - - &5 neg
B Peolit dstribarbon
Apptopriaon 5 SRS esenve - - - - 2413 - 243 - -
i Appeopriation $7 general nesing - - - - - M 2aTm) - - -
w  Covicends paed o probininge
shaghoidars - = - & = = {1067 3 - {107
v Diwidends paed o non-contnoling
o z z E z & &
£ o 1 Decamber 206 B 18,658 13860 2] 15445 21118 TofBs0 Fal 13154 1. 536

The motes on pages 144 to 259 form part of these financial statements.

China Construction Bank Corpaoration Annual Roport 2017
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i CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(EXPRESSED IN MILLIOMNS OF RMB, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

Mote 2017 2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 209,787 285210
Agustments e
- Imipalament lossas 13 127,362 93,204
- Depreciation and amortization 12 17,414 16.017
= Interest incomea from impaired financial assats {3,182) {3.704)
= Revaluation loss on financial instrumants at fair value theough profit or loss 32 1412
- Share of profit of associates and joint ventures (181) [{32]
- Dividend income ) (2,195) {2.558)
- Unrealisad foreign exchange gain {531} (478
- Interest expense on bonds issuad 12,110 11,362
= Met lossfgain} on disposal of imestmaent securities 10 83as (11,088
= Met gain on disposal of fixed assets and other long-term assets (138} (158
3w ssends
Charngas i Goeraing assels:
et decreasedincrease) in deposis with central banks and with banks and
non-bank fmancial institutions a2.8ar [X28.481)
Met decrease in placements with banks and non-bank financial institutions 47,448 10,762
Met increase in financial assais at fair value theough profit or loss (2 424) (211,099
et (increase)/decrease in financial assets held under resale agreaments (105, 468) 208,433
Met increass in loans and advances to customears (1.299,971) [1,258.420)
Mot decreasaincreass) in other operating assets 56,768 (166,173
il |1,MH,MD} (1,744,878)
Mot increase in bomowings from central banks 110,473 5118
MNet incréase in deposits from customens and from banks and non-bank financia institulions 766,290 1,629.273
Met increasefdecrease) in placements from banks and non-bank financial institutions 79,857 (16.218)
Net increasa in financial liabdlities at fair value through profit or loss 18,584 a2.819
Net decrease in financial assets sold undar repurchase agreaments {115,297} (TE.104)
Mot increase in certificates of deposit issusd 141,011 12,652
Ingome 1ax paid [54,551) (65.264)
MNet increase in ather operating liabilities 42,196 57.883
Met cash from operating activities . Tﬁ,m BR2 532

The notes on pages 144 to 258 form part of these financial stataments,

China Construction Bank Corpoaration Annual Hoport 2017
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Mot 2M7 2018
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale and redemptlion of investments 1,446,732 TIT.8d41
Dividends recaived 2,237 2.566
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets and ather long-termn assels 2911 1.187
Purchase of imvestment securities (1,625,529) (1,363,040
Purchase of fixed assets and other long-term asseis (22,263} [27.742)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and joint veniures (1,544) {1.383)

Net cash used in investing activiies

Lulizles ML i A

Cash flows from financing activities

Issun of bonds 34,989 16.522
Capital contribution by non-controlling interests 3,569 13
Contribution by preference shareholders 59,977 -
Consideration paid for acquisition of non-conftrolling interests = (1ad)
Dividends paid (70,638) (69.574)
Aepaymant of borrowings (8,347} (11711
I_r11ere_ral paid on bonds issued ﬂ {1 l:l.d?'d;!
SRR R TIc (et Wiy W v gy Stk N L A T Eoie)
_Effsct of sxchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ’ ; Lm0 14520
Met [decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents 127.785) 211,203
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January 58 589,124 3878921
Gash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 55 571,338 589,124
Cash flows from operating activities include:
Interest received Ta0411 GET 804
Interest paid, excluding interest expenss on bonds isswed (297,536) (262.259)

The notes on pages 144 to 259 form part of these financial stataments.

China Construction Bank Corpaoration Annual Roport 2017
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF RMB, UNLESS OTHERWISE S5TATED)

COMPANY INFORMATION

The history of China Construction Bank Corporation (the "Bank”™) dates back to 1854, which was previously known as
the Peopla’s Construction Bank of China when it was established. It administered and disbursed government funds

for construction and infrastructure refated projects under the state economic plan. The People's Construction Bank of
China gradually became a full service commergial bank following the establishment of China Development Bank in 1994
to assume its policy lending funchons. In 1996, the Peapla®s Construction Bank of China changed its name to China
Construction Bank ("CCB"). On 17 September 2004, China Construction Bank Corporation was formed as a joint-stock
commercial bank in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") as a result of a separation procedure undertaken by

its pradecessor, China Construction Bank, In October 2005 and September 2007, the Bank's H-shares and A-shares
were listed on Hong Kang Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 939) and Shanghat Stock Exechange (Stock Code: 601939)
respectively. As at 31 December 2017, the Bank issued the total ordinary share capital of RMB250.011 million, with a par
value of RMB1.00 per share,

The Bank obtained its finance permit No.BO0OO4HT 11000001 from the China Banking Regulatory Commission (the
“CBRC") of the PRC. The Bank obtained its unified social credit code No 511100001 000044477 from the Beijing
Administration for Industry and Commerce. The registered office of the Bank is located at No.25, Finance Street, Xicheng
District, Beijing, the PRC.

The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are the provision of corporate and
personal banking services, conducting treasury business, the provision of asset management, trustes, finance leasing,
investment banking, insurance and other financial services. The Group operates in Mainland China and also has a
number of overseas branches and subsidiaries. For the purpose of these financial statements, Mainland China refers {o
the PAC excluding Heng Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC ("Hong Kang™), Macaw Special Administrative
Region of the PRC (*Macau®) and Taiwan. Overseas refers to countries and regions other than Mainland China,

Tha Bank is under the supervision of the banking regulatery bodies ampowaered by the State Council of the PRC (the
“State Council"). The overseas financial operations of the Bank are under the supervision of their respective local
jurssdictions. Gentral Huijin Investment Ltd, (*Huijin™), a wholly owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation
(*CIC"), exarcises its nghts and obligations as an investor on behalf of the PRC govarnmeant,

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the board of directors of the Bank on 27 March 2018,

BASIS OF PREPARATION
The Group uses the calendar year as the accounting year, which is from 1 January to 31 December,

Thesa financial statermants comprise the Bank and its subsidianes and tha Group's interests in associates and joint
ventures.

(1) Basis of measurement

These financial stataments have been prepared an the historical cost basis except that: (i) financial instruments
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value; (i) derivative financial instruments are measured at
fair value, (i) available-for-sale financial assets are measwred at fair value; and (w) certain non-financial assets are
measured at designated cost. The measurement basis of major assets and liabilities are further explained in Mote
4,

(2} Functional and presentation currancy

These financial statements are presented in RMB, unless otherwise stated, rounded to the nearest million, which
is the functional currency of the domestic operations of the Group. The functional currencies of overseas branches
and subsidiaries are determined in accordance with the primary economic envirenment in which they cperate, and
are transiated into RME for the preparation of these financial statements according to Mote 4(2)(b).
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2  BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
(3} Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and associated assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions (o accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Judgemnents that have a significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of
maternial adjustments in the subsequent pericd are discussed in Note 4(24),

3  STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accardance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™)
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("LASB"). These financial statements also comply with

the disclosure requirements of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622}, and the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Aules Governing the Listing of Securities on Tha Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,

The Group has adopted the following new or revised IFRSs and Interpratations effective for the current year, There is no
early adoption of any new IFRSs and Interpretations not yet effective for the year ended 31 Decamber 2017.

Amendments to LAS 7, “Statement of cash flows™.

These amendments AS 7 introduce an additional disclosure that will enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in [abilities arising from financing activities, The amendment is part of the IASB's Disclosure intiative, which
continues to explore how financial statement disclosure can be improved.

Amendments to 1AS 12, “Income taxes”.

These amendments clarify the requirements for recognising deferred tax assets on unrealized losses. The amendments
clarify the accounting for deferred tax where an asset is measured at fair value and that fair value is below the assat’s tax
base, They also clarify certain other aspects of accounting for deferred tax assets,

Amandmant to IFRS 12, “Disclosure of interest in othar entities”.

This amendment clarifies that the disclosure requirement of IFRS 12 is applicable to interest in entities classified as held
for sale except for summarised financial information (para B17 of IFRS 12}, Previously, it was unclear whether all other
IFRS 12 requirements were applicable for these interests, The objective of IFRS 12 was to provide information about
nature of interests in other entities, risks associated with these interests, and the effect of these interests on financial
statements. The Board noted that this objective is relevant to interests in other entities regardiess of whether they are
classified as held for sale.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by the Group to all periods presented in thesa
financial statements.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF RMB, UNMLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(1) Consolidated financial statements

(@

e

Business cormbinations

The consideration transferred by the acquirer for the acquisition and the identifiable assets acquired,
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumad in a business combination are measured initially at theair fair
values al the acquisition date. Whera the cost of a business combination exceeds the Group's interest in

the fair value of the acquiree's identifiable net assets, the difference is recognised as goodwill in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in Mote 4(9); where the cost of a business combination is less than the
Group's interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the difference is recognised in profit
or loss.

Acquigition date mentioned above iz the date that the Group effectively obtains control of the acquiree.

Suphsidianes ana nor-coniroling fferesis

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Bank has control. The Bank controls
an entity when the Bank has the power over the entity, and is exposed to, or has the rights to the variable
returns from its involvement with the enfity, and has the ability to affect thosa returns through its power over
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Bank. They
are deconsolidated from the date that contrel ceases.

A structured enfity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant
factor in deciding who contrals the entity, such as when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only
and the relavant activities are directed by means of contractual arrangemants,

For the separate financial statemeants of the Bank, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost.

Al initial recognition, investment in subsidiaries is measured at the cost of acguisition determined at the
acquisition date when the subsidiaries are acquired through business combination or the capital injected into
the subsidiarias set up by the Group. Impairment losses on investments in subsidiarias are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policies as set out in Mote 4(11).

The financial results and performance of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. When preparing the consolidated
financial staterments, the Bank makes necessary adjustments on the accounting period and accounting
policies of subsidiaries to comply with those of the Bank.

Significant intragroup balances and trangactions, and any significant profits or losses ariging from intragroup
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The portion of a subsidiary's net assets that is attributable to equity interests that are not awned by
the Bank, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, is treated as non-controlling interests and

presented as “non-controlling interests” in the consolidated statement of financial position within total equity.

The portion of net profit or loss and other comprehensive income of subsidiaries for the year attributable to
non-controlling interests is separately presented in the consolidated statemeant of comprehensive income as
a component of the Group's net profit,
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4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
(1) Consolidated financial statements {continued)

fc/

Associales and jodint arrangements

An associate is an enterprise in which the Group has significant influence, Significant influence is the power
to participata in the financial and operating palicy decisions of the investes but is not contral or joint control
over those policy decisions.

Joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control. The classification of
a joint arrangement &s a joint operation or a joint venture depends upon the rights and obligations of the
parties to the arrangement. Jaint contrad is the contractually agreed sharing of control over an economic
activity, and exists only when the strategic financial and operafing decisions relating to the activity raqguire
the unanimous consent of the parties sharing the control. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures.

Investments in associates or joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in the consalidated
financial statements and are initially recorded at acquisition cost. and adjusted thereafter for the post
acquisition change in the Group's share of net assets of the associates or joint ventures. The Group's share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the associates or joint ventures for the year is recognised in the
consalidated statement of comprehensive income. The Group's interest in associates or joint ventures is
included from the date that significant influance or joint control commences until the date that significant
influence or joint control ceases.

Profits and losses resulting from transactions bebtween the Group and its associates or joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the associates or joint ventures,

The Group discontinues recognising its share of net losses of the associates or joint ventures after the
carrying amount of investments in associates and joint ventures together with any long-term interests

that in substance form part of the Group's net investment in the associates or joint ventures are reduced

to zero, except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations to assume
additional ipsses. Where the associates or joint ventures make net profits subsequently, the Group resumes
recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.

(2) Translation of foreign currencies

fa

it/

Transiation of foraign curency fransactions

Foreign currency fransactions are, on initial recognition, translated into the functional currency at the
spot exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign cumencies are transiated into the functional currency at the spot exchange rates
at that date. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items
denominated in foraign currencies that are measured at historical cost are translated into functional
cumency using the spot exchange rates at the transaction dates. Non-monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated using the spot exchange rates at the
dates the fair values are determined; exchangs differences are recognised in profit or loss, except for the
differences arising from the translation of available-for-sale equity instruments, which ara recoanised in other
comprehensive incomea.

Transiation of financial statemeants denaminated 7 foreign cumrencies

Foreign currency financial statements of overseas branches and subsidiaries are translated into RMEB for
the preparation of consolidated financial statements. At the end of each reporting period, the assets and
liahilities in the financial statements denominated in foreign currencies are translated into RME at the spot
enchange rates ruling at that date, The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated into RMB
at the spot exchange rates or the rates that approximate the spot exchange rates on the transaction dates.
Foreign exchange differences arising from foreign operations are recognised as “exchange reserve” in the
shareholders' equity in the statement of financial position, The effect of exchange rate changes on cash is
presented saparately in the statement of cash flows.
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4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
(&) Financial instruments

(@

Calegorisalion

The Group classifies financial instruments into differant categories at inception, depanding on the purposes
for which the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred. The categories are: financial assets and
firancial Babilities at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, [oans and receivables,
available-for-zsale financial assets and other financial liabilities.

Financial assets and financial liabilifies at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value threugh profit or loss includs those classified as held for
trading, and those designated as at fair value through profit or loss,

& financial asset or financial liability is classified as held for rading if it is: (i) acquired or incurred principally
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term; (i) part of a portfolio of identified financial
instrurments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking; or (i) a derivative (axcept for a derivative that is a designated and effective hedging
instrumeant or a financial guarantes contract).

Financial assels or financial liabilities are designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition when; i} the financial assets or financial liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported intermally
an a fair value basis; (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch in the
gain and loss recognition arising from the difference in the measurament basis of the financial assets or
financial Babilities; or (i) if a contract containg one or more embedded derivatives, an entity may designate
the entire hybrid (combined) contract as a financial asset or financial liability at fair value through profit or
loss unless the embedded derivativels) does not significantly medify the cash flows that otherwise would be
required by the contract; or it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar hybnid (combined) instrument is
first congidered that separation of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited.

Held-to-matunty investments

Held-to-maturity investmants are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity that the Group has the positive intention and ability to hald to maturity, other than: (i) those
that the Group, upon initial recognition, designates as at fair value through profit or loss or as available-for-
sale; or (i) those that meet the definition of loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market, other than: (i) those that the Group intends to sell immediately or in the
near future, which will be classified as held for trading; (i) thosa that the Group, upon initial recagnition,
designates as at fair valuse through profit or loss or as available-for-sale; or (i) those where the Group may
not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of credit deteriaration, which will
be classified as avallable-for-sale. Loans and recalvables mainly comprise deposits with central banks,
deposits and placements with banks and non-bank financial institutions, financial assets held under resale
agraements, loans and advances to customers, and investment classified as receivables,

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale
or are not classified as: (i) financial assets at fair value through profit o loss; (i) held-to-maturity investments;
or (jii} lrans and receivables.

Cither financial liabilitias

Other financial liabilities are financial labilities other than those designated as at fair value through profit or
loss and mainly comprise borrowings from central banks, deposits and placemeants from banks and non-
bank fimancial institutions, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements, deposits from customers and
debt securities issued.

Investment securities in the financial statements comprise the secunties classified as heald-ta-maturity
invastments, available-for-sale financial assets and investment classified as receivables.
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4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
(3) Financial instruments {continued)

)

Derivatives and Hedge gocounting

The Group uses derivatives to hedoe its exposure to foreign exchanges and interest rate risks, Derivatives are
recognised at fair value at the trade date upon initial recognition, and subsequently measured at fair value.
The positive fair value is recognised as an asset while the negative fair value is recognised as a liability.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on whather the derivative is
designated and qualified as a hedging instrument, and if 5o, the nature of the item being hedged. For
derivatives not designated or qualified as hedging instruments, including those that are intended to provide
effactive economic hedges of specific interest rate and foreign exchange risks, but not qualified for hedge
accounting, changes in the fair value of these derivatives are recognised in “net trading gain”™ of the
consofidated statement of comprehensive incoms,

The Group documents, at inception, the relationship betwean hedging instruments and hedged items, as
well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group
alzo documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives
that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows

of hedged items. These criteria should be met before a hedge can be qualified to be accounted for under
hedge accounting.

i Fair vailuve hedge

Fair value hedge is a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of a recognized asset or lability
or an unrecognised firm commitment, or an identified portion of such an asset, liability or firm
cammitmeant, that is attributable to a particular risk and could affect profit or loss.

The changes in fair value of hedging instruments that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges
are recorded in profit or loss, together with the changes in fair value of the hedged itemn attributable to
the hedged risk. The net difference is recognised as ineffectiveness in the profit or loss.

If the hedge no longer meats the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustmeant to the carmying amount
of a hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is amortised to profit or loss over the
period to maturity. If the hedged item is de-recognised, the unamortised carrying value adjustment is
recognised immediately in the profit or loss.

i} Cash flow hedge

Cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability (such as all or some future interest
payments on variable rate debt) or a highly protxable forecast transaction that could ultimately affect
the profit or loss.

The effective portion of changes in the fair valus of hedging instruments that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in othar comprahengive income and accumulated in eguity
in the “capital reserve”. The ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the profit or loss.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to the profit or loss in the same periods when the
hedged item affects the profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or the hedge designation is revoked or when a hedge no
Ionger meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrumeant
existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is reclassified to the profit or loss when the
forecast transaction ullimately occurs, When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
curmulative gain or loss existing in equity is immediataly transferred 1o the profit or loss.
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4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
(3) Financial instruments (continued)

e/

e

(e

Embedoed derivalives

Certain derivatives are embedded into non-derivative hybrid instruments (the host contracts), The embeddead
derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for as a separate derivative when (i) the
economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closaly related to the host contract;
{ii} a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative; and [} the hybrid {combined) instrument is not measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. When the embedded derivative is separated, the host contract is accounted for
as a financial instrument In accordance with the accounting policies as set out in Note 4(3)a).

Recogrition and derecogiilion
All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position, when and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contraciual provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial asset if the part being considered for derecognition meets one of the
following conditions; (i) the confractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expine; (i)

the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset have been transferred and the Group
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or (i) the Group retains
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to
pay the cash flows to the eventual recipient in an agreemeant that meets all the conditions of transfer of cash
flews and transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assel.

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset derecognised and the consideration
received and the cumulative changes in fair value previcusly recognised in equity are recognised in profit or
loss.

It the Group neither transters nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, but retaing control, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset to the extant of its continuing
involvermnent in the financial asset. If the Group has not retained control, it derecognises the financial asset
and recognises separately as assets or liabilities any rights and obligations created or retained in the
transfer.

The financial liability ks derecognised only when: (i) the underlying present abligation specified in the
contracts is discharged, cancelled or expired, or (i) an agreement between the Group and an existing lender
to replace the original financial liability with a new financial liability with substantially different terms, ora
substantial medification of the terms of an existing financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of
the original financial liability and recognition of a new financial liability.

The difference between the carmying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
is recognized in profit or loss.

Measurement

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value plus, in the case of a financial instrument not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
the instrument. Transaction costs for financial instruments at fair value through profit or oss are expensed
imimeciately.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables and other financial
lighilities are measured at amortised cost, while other categories of financial instruments are measured at fair
value, without any deduction for fransaction costs that may occur on sale or other disposal, Investments in
available-for-sale equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured, and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted eguity instruments are measured at cost less impairment losses, if any,

Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are
recagnised in profit or loss.
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4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
{3) Financial instruments {continued)

(e

Measurement foontinuedl

Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprahensive income and accumulated separately in equity, except for impairmeant
losses and foreign exchange gains and losses on maonetary items such as debt securities which are
recognised in profit or loss.

When the available-for-sale financial assels are sold, gains or losses on disposal are recognised in profit or
loss. Gains or losses on disposal include those previously recognised in other comprehensive income beaing
transferred to the profit or loss.

For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss when the financial asset or financial liability is derecegnised or impaired, and through the amortisation
Process.

fmpadrnernt

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses the carrying amount of financial assets (except for
those at fair value through profit or loss). If there is any objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired,
the Group will recognise the impairment loss in profit or loss. Losses expectad as a result of future evants,
no matter how likely, are not recognised as impairment losses.

Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired includes one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset where the event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset that can be refiably estimated. Objective avidence includes the following evidence:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- the Group, for econamic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, granting to the
borrower a concassion that tha GI"O-I.IF would not otherwise consider,

- it becoming probable that the borrower will @nter bankruptcy or other financial regrganisation;
- disappearance of an active market for financial assets because of significant financial difficulties;

- chservable data indicating that there iz a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from
a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot
yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the group, including adverse changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the group, an increase in the unemployment rate in the geographical
area of the borrowers, a decrease in property prices for morigages in the relevant area, or adverse
changes in industry conditions that affect the borrowers in the group;

= significant changes in tha technological, market, economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effact on the issuer of an equity instrument;

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an invesiment in an equity instrument below its
cost; and

- other objective evidence indicating there is an impairment of the financial assel.
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4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
(3) Financial instruments (continued)

w

fmparrment fcomtinued!
Loans and receivablas and held-fo-matunty investmeants
Individual assessment

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments, which are considered individually significant, are
assessed individually for impairment. If there iz ebjective evidenca that an impairmeant (o83 on loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at amorfised cost has been incurred on an individual
basis, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flaws discaurted at the asset's original effective interest rate, and
recognised in profit or loss.

Cash flows relating to short-term loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investrments are not discounted
if the effect of discounting is immaterial. The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
fiows of a collateratised loan or receivable reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs
fior obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

Collective agsessment

Homogeneous groups of loans and advances to customers not considered individually significant and
individually assessed and loans and receivables and hald-to-maturity investments with no objective evidence
of impairment on an individual basis are assessed for impairment losses on a collective basis. If there is
obezervable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those financial assets, the impairment is recognised
and recorded in profit or loss,

For homogeneous groups of [oans and advances that are not considered individuaily sigrificant, the Group
adopts a roil rate methodology to assess impairment losses on a collective basis. This methodology utilises
a stafistical analysis of historical trends of probability of default and amount of conseguential loss, as well as
an adjustment of obsarvable data that reflects the current ecanomic conditions,

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments which are individually significant and therefore have
been individually assessed but for which no impairment can be identified, are grouped together in portfolios
of similar credit risk characteristics for the purpose of assessing a collective impairment loss. The collective
impairment loss is assessed after taking into account; (i) historical loss experience in portfolios of similar risk
characteristics; (i} the emergence period between a loss occurring and that loss being identified; and (i) the
current economic and credit environments and whether in management's experience these indicate that the
actual losses level is likely to be greater or less than that suggested by historical experience.

The emergence period bebween a loss occurring and its identification is determined by management based
on the historical experience,

Impairment losses recognised on a collective basis represant a transitional step which identifies the
impairment losses on individual assets (which are subject to individual assessment) in the pool of financial
assets that are collectively assessed for impairment.

At the end of each reporting period, collective assessment covers thase loans and receivables and held-
to-rmaturity investments that were impaired but were not individually identified as such until some time in
the future. As soon as information is available to specifically identify objective evidence of impairment on
individual assets in a pool, those assets are removed from the pool of collectively assessed financial assels.
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4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
{3 Financial instruments {continued)

"

fmpairment feomfinuedl!
Loans and receivablas and held-fo-mafurty investments (continuedl
Impairment reversal and loan write-offs

If, in a subsequent peried, the amount of the impairment loss on loans and recevables and held-to-
maturity investments decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after

the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed, The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss, The reversal shall not result in & carmying amount of the financial asset
that excesds the amortised cost at the date of tha raversal had the impairmeant not been recognisad.

When thie Group determines that a loan has no reasonable prospect of recovery after the Group has
completed all the necessary legal or other proceedings, the loan is written off against its allowance for
impairment losses, If in a subsequent period the loan written off is recovered, the amount recovered will be
recognised in profit or loss through impainment losses.

Rescheduled lcans

Rezcheduled loans are loans that have been restructured due to deterioration in the borrower's financial
position to the extent that the borrower is unable to repay according to the original terms as appropriate.
Rescheduled leans are assessed individually and classified as impaired loans and advances upon
restructuring. Rescheduled loans are subject o ongoing monitenng. Once a rescheduled loan has met
gpecific conditions by the end of the observation period of normally & months, with the approval from
management, they would no longer be considered as impaired.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, the cumulative loss ansing from decline in fair value
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to the profit or loss even thouwgh the
finrancial asset has not been derecognised. The amount of the cumulative loss that is removed from equity is
the difference betweean the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amartisation) and current fair
walue, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss. For availabile-
for-zale investments in equity instruments measurad at cost, the amount of any impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the camrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset and recognised
in profit or loss,

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets increases and the increase

can be objectively related to an event occwring after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss shall be treated in accordance with the following principles: (i) the impairment loss on debt instruments
classified as available-for-sale shall be reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognised in profit or loss;
(i) the: impairment loss on equity instruments classifisd as available-for-sale shall not be reversad through the
profit or loss, Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income; or (i) the impairment loss in respect of available-for-sale equity investments carried at cost shall not
b reversad.
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4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

)

(4

@

)

W

Fair valve meascuremeant

If there is an active market for financial instruments, the fair value of financial instruments is based on the
prices within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of fair value in the circumstances, and without
any deducticn for fransaction costs that may occur on sales or disposals. A quoted price is from an active
market where price information is readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, industry group
ar pricing service agency and that price information represents actual and regularly occurring orderly
fransactions.

If a quoted market price is not available, the fair value of the financial instruments is estimated using
valuation technigues. Valuation techniques applied include the price used by market participants in

an orderly transaction, reference to the fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models. The Group selects valuation technigques that are
commanly accepted by market participants for pricing the instruments and these techniques have bean
demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market transactions. Periodically, the
Group reviews the valuation technigues and tests them for validity.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offzet and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position when the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
the transactions are intended to be settled on a net basis, or by realising the asset and settling the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must ba
enforceable in the mormal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

Securitisations

The Group securilises cerlain loans, which generally invelves the sale of these assets to structured entities,
which in turn issue securities to investors. Interests in the securitised financial assets may be retained in
the form of credit enhancement or subordinated tranches, or other residual interests (“retained interests™).
Retained interests are carried at fair value on inception date on the Group's statement of financial position.

Gains or losses on securitisation are the difference between the carrying amount of the transferred financial
assets and the consideration raceived (including retained interest) which is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial asserfs helo undler resale agreements and financial assels solo under repurchiase
agreements

Financial assets held under resale agreements are transactions where the Group acquires financial assets
which will be resold at a predetermined price at a future date under resale agreements, Financial assets
sold under repurchase agreemants are transactions where the Group salls financial assets which will be
repurchased at a predetermined price at a future date under repurchase agreements.

The cash advanced or recaived is recognised as amounts held under resale or sold under repurchase
agreements in the statement of financial position, Assets held under resale agreements are not recognised.
Assets sold under repurchase agreemants continue to be recognised in the statemeant of financial position.

The difference between the purchase and resale consideration, and that between the sale and repurchase
consideration, is amortised aver the period of the respective fransaction using the effective interest method
and is included in interest income and inferest expenses respectively.

Precious metals

Precious metals comprise geld and other precious metals. Precious metals that are acquired by the Group
principally for trading purposa are initially recognised at fair value and re-measured at fair value less cost 1o sell.
The changes in fair value less cost to sell are recognised in profit or loss. Precious metals that are not acquired by
the Group principally for trading purpose are carried at lower of cost and net realisable valus,
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4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
Fixed assels

Fixed assets are assets held by the Group for the conduct of business and are expected to be used for mare than
one yaar. Construction in progress is the property and equipment undaer construction, which is transferred to fived
assets when ready for its intended use.

(5)

fa

e

e/

Cost

Fixed assets are initially recognised at cost, except for the fixed assets and construction in progress
obtained from CCEB by the Bank which were recognised at the revalued amount as cost on the date of
restructuring. The cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises the purchase price, related taxes, and any
directly attributable expenditura for bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. The cost of
a self-constructed fixed asset comprises those expenditures necessarily incurred for bringing the asset to
working condition for its intended use,

Whera the individual components of an item of fixed asset have different useful lives or provide benefits to
tha Group in differant patterns thus necessitating use of different depreciation rates or methads, thay are
recognised as separate fixed assels.

Subsequent costs, including the cost of replacing part of an item of fixed assets, are recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if the recognition criteria are satisfied, and the carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised, Expenditures relating to ordinary maintenance of fixed assets are recognised in profit
or loss.

Depreciation and impairment
Depreciation is calculated to write off to the profit or loss the cost of items of fixed assets, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives. Impaired

fixed assets are depreciated net of accumutated impairment losses. No depreciation is provided on
construction in progress,

The estimated useful lives, residual values and annual depreciation rates of respective fixed assets are as
follows:

Types of assets Estimated useful lives Estimated net residual values Annual depreciation rates
Bank premises 30-35 years 3% 2.8%-3.2%
Equiprmant 3-8 yoars A% 12.1%-32.3%
Others 4-11 ywars 2% B.8%-24.3%

Aircraft and vessels are used for the Group's operating lease business, depreciated using straight-fine
mathad over the expected usealul life of 20 to 30 years (less the yaars in service at the time of purchase) with
the estimated residual value rate varying from 2.9% to 4.8%.

The Group reviews the estimated useful life and estimated residual value of a fixed asset and the
depreciation method applied at least once a financial year,

Impairment losses on fixed assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in
Mote 4(11).

figpozal
Gains or losses arising from the retirerment or disposal of a fixed asset are determined as the difference

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the fixed asset and ara recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal,
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4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(€)

(8

(9)

Lease

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
to the lessee, imespective of whather the legal title to the asset is eventually transferred or not. An operating lease
is a lease other than a finance lease.

&) Finamce lease

Whera the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount representing the sum of the minimum lease
receivables and initial direct costs at the commencement of the lease term, is included in “loans and
advances to customers™ on statement of financial position as a lease receivable, Unrecognised finance
income under finance leases is amortised using the effective interest rate method over the leasa term. Hire
purchase contracts having the characteristics of finance leases are accountad for in the same manner as
finance leases.

Impairment losses on lease receivables are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies as set
out in MNate 4{3)(f).

B Operating lease
Where the Graup has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made under the lsases are
charged to the profit or loss, using the straight-line method, over the accounting periods coverad by the
lease term, excep! where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattesn of benefits to be derived
from the leased assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to the income statement in the
accounting peried in which they are incurmed.

Land use rights

Land use rights ara initially recognised at cost. The land use rights obtained from CCB by the Bank on the date of
restructuring were recorded at the revalued amount. The cost of the land use rights is amortised on a straight-line
basis over their authorised useful lives, and charged to the profit or loss. Impaired land use rights are amortised net
of aceumulated impairment losses,

Impairment losses on land use rights are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in
Note 4{11).
Intangible assets

Software and other intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. The cost less estimated residual values, if any,
of the intangible assets is amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful lives, and charged to the profit or loss,
Impaired intangible assets are amorised net of accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment losses on intangible assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in
Meote 4(11).
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination over the Group's interest in the fair value of
the acquinea's identifiable net assets. Goodwill is not amortised. Goodwill arising from a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit (“CGU™) or group of CGLs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, The Group performs an impairment test on goodwill semi-annually,

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirea’s identifiable net assets aver the cost of a
business combination is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

On disposal of the related CGU or group of CGLIs, any attnbutable amount of goodwill net of allcwances for
impairment losses, if any, is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Impairment loss on geodwill is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies as sef out in Mote 4(11),
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4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(10

1)

Repossessed assels

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group may take possession of assets held as collateral
throwgh court proceedings or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers. Bepossessed assets are
recognized and reported in “other assels” in the statement of financial position when the Group intends to achieve
an orderly realisation of the impaired assets and the Group is no longer secking repayment from the borrower,

When the Group seizes assets to compensate for the losses of loans and advances and interest receivable, the
repossessed assets ara initially recognised at fair value, plus any taxes paid for the seizure of the assets, litigation
fees and other expenzes incurred for collecting the repossessed assets. Repossessed assets are recognised at the
carrying value, net of allowances for impairment losses Note 4(11),

Allowances for impairment losses on non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting pericd, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that a non-financial asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists that an asset may be impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of tha assat.

If thera is any indication that an asset may be impaired and it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group determines the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the
cash flows from other assets ar groups of assets.

The recoverable amount of an asset jor CGU, group of CGUSs) is the higher of its fair value léss costs to sell and the
present value of the expected future cash flows. The Group considers all relevant factors in estimating the present
value of future cash flows, such as the expected future cash flows, the useful life and the discount rate.

i@ Testing CGL with goodwill for impalmert
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the CGLU
ar group of GGEUS that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A CGU or group of CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairmeant by the Group semi-
annuaily, or whenever thera is an indication that the CGLU or group of CGLU= are impaired, by comparing the
carrying amount of the CGU or group of CGUs, including the goodwill, with the recoverable amount of the
CGL or group of CGUs, The recoverable amount of the CGL or group of CGUs are the estimated fulure
cash flows, which are discounted to their prasent valus using a discount rate that reflacts current markest
aszassments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the GGLU or group of CGUs with allocated
goadwill.

At the time of impairment testing of 2 CGU or group of CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated,

there may be an indication of an impairment of an asset within the CGU containing the goodwill, In such
circumstances, the Group tests the asset for impairmeant first, and recoegnises any impairment loss for that
asset before testing for impairment on the CGU or group of CGUs containing the goodwill. Similarky, thera
may be an indication of an impairment of a CGU within a group of CGUs containing the goodwill, In such
circumstances, the entity tests the CGU for impairment first, and recognises any impairment loss for that
CGU, before testing for impairment the group of CGUs to which the goodwill is allocated.

B Impairment loss
It the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amaunt, the carrying amaunt of the asset is
reduced 1o its recoverable amount. That reduction is recognised as an impairment loss and charged to the
profit or loss.,

For a CGU or a group of CGUs, the amount of impairment loss firstly reduces the camrying amount of any
goadwill allocated to the CGU or group of CGUs, and then reduces the carrying amount of other assets
(other than goodwill) within the CGU or group of CGUs, pro rata on the basis of tha carrying amount of 2ach
asset,
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4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
(11) Allowances for impairment lesses on non-financial assets (continued)

e/

Reversing an fmoavment loss

If. in & subsequent period, the amount of impairment l0ss of the non-financial asset except for goodwill
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairmeant loss is reversed through the profit or loss. A reversal
of impairment loss is limited to the asset's carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior periods.

An impairmeant loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed,

{12) Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given and compensations incurred by the Group in exchange for
services rendered by employees or the termination of the employment relationship, Except for termination benefits,
employes benefits are recognised as a liability in the period in which the associated services are rendered by

its employees, with a corresponding increase in cost of relevant assets or the expenses in profit or loss. Where
payment or setilement is deferred and the effect of discount would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values in the statermant of financial position.

@

Poastr-amplaypment benefits

The Group divides post-employment banefit plans into defined contribution plans and defined benefit
plans. Defined contribution plans are post-employment benafit plans undar which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions. Defined benefit plans are post-employment benelfit plans other than defined contribution
plans, For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to basic retirement insurance, annuity
scheme and unemployment insurance for the employess during tha reporting perioed, while defined benefit
plans are mainly supplementary retirement benefits.

Defined coninbution retirerment schemes

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Group has jeined defined contribution
ratirernent schemes for the employees arrangad by local government labar and security authorities. The
Group makes contributions to the retirement schemes at the applicable rates based on the amounts
stipulated by the local government organizations. The contributions are charged to the profit or loss on an
accrual basis, When employees retire, the local government labor and security authorities are responsible for
the paymant of the basic retirement benefits to the retired employees.

Annuity contibutions
In addition to the statutory provision contributions, the Bank's employees have joined the annuity scheme
set up by the Bank under "CCBC Annuity Scheme” (the “scheme”) in accordance with state enterprise

annuity requlations. The Bank has made annuity contributions in proportion to its employess’ gross wages,
which are expansed in profit or l0ss when the contributions are made.

Supplarmentary retiremeant banafits

The Group pays supplementary retirement benefits for its employees in Mainland China who retired on
or before 31 December 2003 in addition to the contributions mads to statutory insurance schemes. Such
supplementary retirement benefits are defined benefit plans.

Tha Group's obligations in respect of supplamentary ratirement benafits are calculated by estimating the
amount of obligations that the Group is committed to pay to the employees after their retirement using
actuarial techniques, At the end of each reporting period, such obligations are discounted with interest
yiedd of government bonds with similar duration. The service cost and net interest from the supplamentary
ratirement banafits are recognised in profit or logs, and the remeasuremants are recognised in other
comprehensive income,

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of supplementary retirement benefits
is the presant value of supplemantary ratirament banefit abligations at the end of the reparting period less
the fair value of plan asseats.
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4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

12)

(13)

Employee benefits (continued)
) Termination benefifts

Where the Group terminates the employment relationship with employees before the end of the employment
contracts or provides compensation as an offer to encourage employees to accept voluntary redundancy,

a provision is recognised for the compensation arising from termination of employment relationship,

with a corresponding charge to the profit or loss for the cument period. An entity is required to recognise
termination bensfits at the sarlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw an offer of those benefits and
wihien it recognises any related restructuring costs.

fe) Earily retirerment expenses
The Group recognisas the present value of all its liabilities to employess who voluntarily agreed to retire
early. The early retirement benefit payments are made by the Group from the date of early retiremant 1o the

regulated retirement date. Differences arising from changes in assumptions and estimates of the present
value of the liabilities are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

[l Staff fncentive plan

Az approved by the board of directors, for the purposes of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
employees for their past services, the Group awards a specified amount of staff compensation to the staff
incentive plan independently managed by a designated staff committes for those eligible participating
employeas. The Group recognises its contribution to the plan when it has a present lagal or constructive
obligation to make such payment and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Insurance contracts
Insurance contracts classifcation

Under the contract the insurer signed with the policyholder, the insurer may undertake insurance risk or other risks,
or both insurance risk and other risks.

Where the Group undertakes both the insurance risk and other risks, and the insurance risk and other risks can be
separately measured, the insurance risk shall be separately accounted for as insurance contracts while the other
risks shall be accounted for as either investment contracts or service contracts. Where the insurance risk and
other rizgks cannot be distinguished from each other, or can be distinguished but cannot be separately measured,
significant insurance risk test shall be performed at the contract’s initial recognition date. If the insurance risk is
significant, the contract is classified as an insurance confract; otherwise, it is classified as an investment contract
oF servica contract,

insurance ncome recogtion

Insurance premium income is recognised when all of the following critena are met;

il  The insurance contract is issued, and related insurance risk is undertaken by the Group;
(i}  The ralated economic benefits are likely to flow to the Group; and

i} Related income can be reliably measured.

insurance comntract fabilities

‘When measuring insurance contract liabilities, the Group identifies insurance conlracts whera insurance risks
are of similar nature as a measurement unit. Insurance contract liabilities are measured based on a reasonably
estimated amount of payments that the Group is obliged to pay in order to fulfil relevant obligations under the
insurance contract. Structured product that cannot be sold separately is classified as one measuremant unit,

The Group performs liability adequacy test at the end of each reporting period. If the insurance contract Habilies
re-calculated with the insurance actuarial method exceed their carrying amounts on the date of the liability
adequacy test, an additional provision shall be made for the respective insurance contract liabilities based on the
differences. Otherwise, no adjustment is made to the respective insurance confract liabilities.
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4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
(14} Provisions and contingent liabilities

(15)

(16)

(7

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position if, as the result of a past event, the Group has

a prasent legal or constructive obligation that can be retiably estimated and it is probable that an cutflow of
economic benafits will be required to settle the obligation. A provision is initially measured at the best estimate

of the expenditure required to settle the related present obligation. Factors pertaining to a contingency such as
the risks, uncertainties and time value of money are taken into account as a whole in reaching the best estimate.
Whare the effect of the ime value of monay is material, the best estimate is determined by discounting the related
future cash outfliows.

A potential obligation arising from a past transaction or event whose existence can only be confirmead by the
oeGurrance or nonoccurrance of future uncertain events; or a present obligation that arizes from past transactions
or avents where it iz not probable that an outflow of economic benefits is required to settie the obligation or the
amount of the obligation cannct be measured refiably, is disclosed as a contingent liability unless the probability of
outflow of econamic benefit is remote,

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all
of its liabilities, A financial instrument issued s an equity instrument if, and only if, both conditions (i and (i) below
are met: (i} The financial instrument includes no contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to
another entity, or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
patentially unfavorable to the Growp; and (i) If the financial instrument will or may be settled in the Group®s own
equity instruments, it is a non-derivative instrumeant that includes no contractual obligations for the Group to deliver
a variable nurnber of its own equity instruments; or a derivative that will be settled only by the Group exchanging a
fixed amount of cash or ancther financial asset for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

Equity instrumeants issued by the Group are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received, net of direct issuance
BX[pENsSes,

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group as the guarantor (the “issuer”) to make specified
paymeants to reimburse tha beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs when a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. The fair value of the
guarantee (being the guarantee fees received) is initially recognised as deferred income in “other liabilities™, The
deferred income is amortised in profit or lass over the term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantess
issued, Provisions are recognised in the statement of financial position if and when it becomes probable that the
holder of the guarantes will call upen the Group under the guarantee, and the amount of that claim on the Group is
expected to exceed the carrying amount of the deferred income.

Fiduciary activities

The Group's fiduciary business refers to the management of assets for customars in accordance with custody
agreaments signed by the Group and securities investment funds, insurance companies, annuity plans and other
prganisations, The Group fulfils its fiduciary duty and receives relevant fees in accordance with these agreemants,
and does not take up any risks and rewards related to the assets under custody, which are recorded as off-
balance sheet items.

The Group conducts enfrusted lending business, whereby it enters into entrusted loan agreements with customers.
Under the terms of these agreements, the customers provide funding (the “entrusted funds™) to the Group, and

the Group grants loans to third parties (the “entrusted |aans®) according to the instructions of the customars. As
the Group does not assume the risks and rewards of the entrusted |oans and the coresponding entrusted funds,
entrusted loans and funds are recorded as off-balance sheet items at their principal amounts and no impairment
asgessments are made for these entrusted loans.
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4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
(18) Ihcome recognition

Provided it is probable that econamic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount, if applicabls, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

al

[

e/

(@

ntarast moome

Interest income for interest bearing financial instruments is recognised in profit or less based on the effective
interest method. Interest income includes the amortization of any discount or premium of other differences
between the initial carrying amount of an interest-bearing instrument and its amount at maturity calculated
an an effective interest basis,

The effective interest method is a method of ealeulating the amertised cost of financial assets and liabilities
and of allocating the interast income and interest expense over the retevant pericd. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a sharter period to the net carrying amount of the financial
ingtrumeant. When calculating the effective interast rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but does not
consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to
the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other pramiums or
discounts,

Interest on the impaired financial assets is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the related impairment loss.

Fee and commission income is recognised in profit or loss when the corresponding service is provided.
Origination or commitment fees received by the Group which result in the creation or acquisition of a
financial asset are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate. If the commitment
axpires without the Group making a loan, the fee is recognised as commission an expiry.

Finance income from fnance leases and fure purchase contracis

Finance income implicit in finance lease and hire purchase payments is racognised as interast income
over the pericd of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of return on the
outstanding net investment in the leases for each accounting pericd. Contingent rentals receivable are
recagnised as income in the accounting period in which they are earned,

Oividend incorme

Dividend income from unlisted equity investments is recognised in profit or loss on the date when the
Group's right to receive payment is established. Dividend income from a listed equity investment is
recognised when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

China Construction Bank Corpaoration Annual Roport 2017

275/396



162 |

EDINETOOOO

O000O000o0OoO0Ooo(Ees9r2)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF RMB, UNMLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(19)

(20)

(21)

Income tax

Current income tax is the expected tax payable an the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of sach reporting period, and any adjustment to fax payable in respect of previous
periods. Deferred tax assets and liabilities arize from deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively,
being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax also arises from unused tax losses and unused tax credits. A deferred tax asset is
recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the assat can
be utilised.

Current incoms tax and movements in deferred tax balances are recognised in profit or loss except 1o the extent
that they relate to items recognised in other comprehansive income o directly in equity, in which case the relavant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehansive income or directly in equity, respectively.

At the end of each reporting penod, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the penod when the asset is realised or the liability is settled according to the
requirements of tax laws. The Group also considers the possibility of realisation and the settlemant of deferrad tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities in the calculation.

Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against defered tax labilities

if the Group has the legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable
entity. Otherwise, the balances of deferred tax assets and deferred tax llabilities, and movements therein, are
presented separately fromn each other and are not offset.

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investmants that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Profit distribution

Proposed dividends which are declared and approved after the end of each reporting period are not recognised
as a liability in the statemeant of financial position and are instead disclosed as a subsequent event after the end of
each reporting perod in the note to the financial statements. Dividends payable are recognised as liabilities in the
period in which they are approved.
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4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(22)

(23)

Related parties

If the Group has the power, directly or indirectly, to control, jaintly contral or exergise significant influance aver
another party, or vice versa, or where the Group and one or maore pariies are subject to common control or
joint control from another party, they are considered to be related parties. Related parties may be individuals or
enterprises, The Group's related parties include but are not limited to the following:

{a)  the Bank's parents;

by  the Bank's subsidiaries;

{c)  other entities which are controlied by the Bank's parents;

(d} aninvestor who has joint control over the Group;

(8]  a&ninvestor who can exercise significant infleence over the Group;
iff  anassociate of the Group;

lg) & joint venture entity of the Group;

(h}  principal individual investars of the Group, and close family members of such individuals (principal individual
investors are the individual investors who have the power, directly or indirectly, to control, jointly control or
exercise significant influence over another party);

il key management personnel of the Group and close family members of such individuals (key management
personnel represent those persons having autherity and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director of that entity),

(i key management perscnnel of the Bank's parents and close family members of such individuals;

(k) other entities that are contralled or jointly controlied by the Group®s principal individual investors, key
management personnel, or close family mambers of such individuals; and

Iy a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the Group, or of any enfity that is a related
party of the Group.

Operating segments

The identification of operating segments of the Group is on the basis of internal reports that are regularly reviewed
by the Group®s chief operating decision makers in order to allocate resources to the segment and assess its
performance. On the basis of the operating segments, the Group identifies the reportable segments, using a
combination of factors including products and services, geographical areas, regulatory environments etc., which
the management has chosen for organization. The operaling segments that meet the specified criteria have been
aggregated, and the operating segments that meet quantitative thresholds have been reported separately.

The amount reparted for each operating segment item is the measure reported to the chief cperating decision
makers for the purposes of allocating resources to the segment and assessing its performance, Segment
infarmation is prepared in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presanting the
financial statements of the Group.
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4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
{24) Significant accounting estimates and judgements

(@

el

(e

hmpainment fosses on foans and advances, avaiabie-ror-sale and held-to-maturiy oebf investments

The Group reviews the portfolios of loans and advances, and available-for-sale and held-to-maturity

dabt investments periodically to assess whether impairmant losses exist and if they exist, the amounts of
impairment losses. Objective evidence for impairment includes observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows identified with an individual loan and advance, an
available-for-gale or a held-to-maturity debt investment. it also includes obsarvable data indicating adverse
changes in the repayment status of borrowers or issuers in the assets portfolio or national or local economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the porticlio.

The impairment loss for a loan that is individually assessed for impairment is the decrease in the estimated
discounted future cash flows. The same principle is adopted for impairment loss on a held-to-maturity

debt investment which is individually assessed, except that as a practical expedient, the Group may
meaasure the impaiment loss on the basis of the instrument's fair value using an observable market price

at the measurement date. The impairment loss for an available-for-sale debt investment is the difference
between the acquisition cost {net off any principal repayments and amortisation) and the fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss at the measurement date,

When loans and advances and held-to-maturity debt investments are collectively assessed for impairment,
the estimate is based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characterstics similar

to the loans and advances and held-to-maturity debt investrments that are being assessed. Historical

loss experience is adjusted on the basis of the relevant observable data that reflacts current economic
conditions. Management reviews the methodology and assumplions usad in estimating future cash flows
regularly to reduce any difference between loss estimates and actual losses.

Itmpairment of avalable-for-sale equily nstrumenls

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant or other-than-temporary decling in fair value bealow
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment. In determining whether a decline in fair value has
been significant or ather-than-tempaorary, the Group considers if the fair value of an available-for-sale equity
instrument as at the end of reporting period is lower than 50% (including 50%) of its initial cost of investmant
or lower than its initial cost of investment for more than a year (including one year) together with other
relevant considerations.

Fair valve of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in an active market is based on their guoted market
prices in an active market at the valuation date. A guoted market price is a price from an active market where
price information is readily and regularly available from an exchange or from a dealer quotation and where
this price information represents actual and recurring orderly transactions.

For all other financial instruments, the Group determines fair values using valuation technigues which include
discounted cash flow models, as wedl as other types of valuation model. Assumptions and inputs used

in valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates
cradit spreads and the liguidity premium. Where discounted cash flow technigues are used, estimated cash
ficws are based on management’s best estimates and the discount rate used is a market rate at the end of
each reporting penod applicable for an instrument with similar terms and conditions. Where other pricing
models are used, inputs are based on the maximising cbservable market data at the end of each reporting
period. However, whare market data is not available, the Group needs to make the bast estimates on such
unobzervable market inputs.

The objective of valuation techniques is to armve at a fair value determination that reflects the price of the
financial instrument at the reporting date that would have besn delermined by markel participants in an
arderty transaction.
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4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
(24) Significant accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
(ol Reclssifcation of held-to-malturly fvestments

In evaluating whether the requirements to classify a financial asset as held-to-maturity are met, management
makes significant judgements. Change of the Group's intention and ability to hold specific investments until
maturity may result in reclassification of the whola portfolio as available-for-sake.

& focome faves

Determining income tax provisions invalves judgament on the future tax treatment of cerain transactions.
The Group carefully evaluates the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered pericdically to take into account all changes in

tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used and temparary deductible
differences. As those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable that

future taxable profits will be avaitable against which the unused tax credits can be utilised, management's
judgement is required to assess the probability of future taxable profits. Management's assessment is
constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

1 Emplopee retirement benefif obligations

The Group has established liabilities in connection with benefits payable to certain retired employees. The
amounts of amployes benefit expanse and labilities are dependent on assumptions used in calculating such
amounts. These assumptions include discount rates, penzion benefit inflation rates, medical benefit inflation
rates, and other factors. While management believes that its assumptions are appropriate, differences in
actual experience or changes in assumptions may affect the Group's capital reserve and liability related to its
amployea ratirement benefit obligations.

fgf  Scope of consofidation

The Group has taken into consideration all facts and circumstances in the assessment of whether the Group,
as an investor, controls the investes. The principle of control includes three elements: (i) power cver the
investee, (i) exposure, or rights, to vanable returns from involvement with the investee; and (i) the ability to
use power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns, The Group reassesses whether or
not it controls an investes if facts and circumstances indicate that thare are changes to one or mane of the
three elements of control listed above.

5  TAXATION
The Group®s main applicable taxes and tax rates are as follows:
Business tax
Business tax was charged at 5% on taxable income,
Value added tax ("VAT")

Pursuant to the ‘Circular on the Comprehensive Plan for Levying VAT in place of Business Tax’ (CaiShui [2016] No.36)
jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation, business tax that used to be levied on
taxable income of the Bank and its subsidiares in Mainland China was replaced by VAT from 1 May 2016. Accordingly,
thie income and expense under VAT were reported on a net basis, The main VAT taxation rate is 6%.

City construction tax

City construction tax is calculated as 1% - 7% of business tax or VAT,
Education surcharge

Education surcharge is calculated as 3% of business tax or VAT,
Local education surcharge

Local education surcharge is calculated as 2% of business tax or VAT.
Income tax

The incame tax rate that is applicable 1o the Bank and its subsidiaries in Mainland China is 25%. Taxation on overseas
ocperations is charged at the relevant local rates. Tax paid on overseas operations is set off to the extent allowed
under the relevant income tax laws of the PRC. All tax exemptions are determined upon approval from the relevant tas
authorities.
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{EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF RMB, UNMLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

6  NET INTEREST INCOME

AT 2016
Interest income arsing from:
Deposits with gentral banks 43,027 39,512
Deposits with banks and non-bank financial institutions T.166 11,585
Flacemants with banks and non-bank finencial institutions 8,113 8,020
Financial assels at fair value through prodit or loss 11,048 4,164
Financial assets hald under resale agroemants 5,708 4,102
Imvestment sacurities 158,667 152,040
Loans and advances to cusicmers
= Corporate loans and advances J01 821 288,477
= Parsonal leans and advances 206,508 172,078
- Discounted bills 6,908 15,648
Total 750,154 G5, 63T
Interest expense arising from:
Borrowings from central banks (14,486) (5671}
Deposits from banks and non-bank financlal institutions {34,736) {33,579}
Placemanis from banks and non-bank financial institutions [11,885) {7.014)
Financial assats sobd under repurchass agreements {3,291) [3.485)
Dabd saciaritiog issued (19,887) {16,813}
DCeposits from cusiomers:
- Corporate deposits {110,651) {105,233)
- Rersonsl depsin {102,662) {107,242)
Met interest incoma 452 456 417,758
{1} Interest income from impaired financial assets is listed as follows:
AT e s a7 2016 _
Impaired loans and advances 3,143 3,875
CHiver impairgd financial assets a9 i
Tatal 3,182 3,704

2) Interest expensa on financial liabilities with matuwrity over five years mainly represented the interest expense on debt securities
issired,
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NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
a7 2016

Fee and commission mocomae

Bank card fess 42,242 37,649
Wealth management service fees 20,040 20,537
Agency service faes 16,256 20,025
Saltlernent and cleadng fees 13,211 12,812
Cammission an trust and Bduciary activities 11,857 11,174
Congultancy and advisory fees 9,906 11,368
Electronic banking service fees 4,341 7.584
Guarantes feas 3,330 2,528
Cradit commitment faes 1,525 1,830
Cthers 3,614 2146
Total  1m@2  1a7ges
Fee and commission expense

Bank card trangacteon fees (7, 710§ (5,378}
Inter-bank transaction fees {1,284) {1,132}
Cithars (4,530} (2,844}
Totld _as2q 8354
Mat fea and commission incoma 117,788 118 508
MET TRADING GAIN

2017 2016_

Dabt securitias 1,138} {1,034}
Drivatives 1,404 24
Equaty investments 471 185
Others 4,121 2,403
Tatal 4,858 3,978

For the year ended 31 December 2017, trading gain related to financial assets designated at fair value through profit
or less of the Group amounted to RMB14,024 million (2016; gain AMBS,587 million). Trading loss related to financial

liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss of the Group amounted to RMEB 15,340 million (2016: loss

RMB12,167 million).
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9  DIVIDEND INCOME

a7 2018
Cividend income from Ested trading equily invesiments 488 131
Dividend income from available-for-sale equity investments
- Listed 1,310 2,007
= eisted S il
Tastal 2,195 2,558
10 NET (LOSS)/GAIN ARISING FROM INVESTMENT SECURITIES
27 2016
Mat gain and investment ncamme of avallabla-for-sale linancial asgets 2,549 3,390
Met revaluation {losslfgain reclassified from other comprehensive income on disposal (4.0:48) 5,546
Mat gain on sale of held-to-maturity investments 78 732
Met gain on sale of invastments classified as receivables 33 S06
Othars 353 24
Total {Be35) 11,088
11 OTHER OPERATING INCOME, NET
Other operating income
) Fuikd 206
Inswrance related income 26,349 45,584
Foraign exchange gain 14,455 2817
Fental incorme 2449 1,428
Hhers — L
Tatal 49,008 55,340

Foreign exchange gain or loss includes gains and losses in connection with the translation of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities, and net realised and unrealised gains and losses on foreign exchange
derivatives (including those fareign exchange swaps, foraign exchange oplions and currancy swaps entered into in order
to econamically hedge long positions in foreign currency assets).

Other operating expenses

2m7 2016
Irmweance related cost 26,246 47,023
Quver s 2
Total 31,450 43,419

China Construction Bank Corpoaration Annual Hoport 2017

282/396



EDINETOOOO
O000O000o0OoO0Ooo(Ees9r2)
oOoOooodn

FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHERS | 189

12 OPERATING EXPENSES

a7 2016
Stalf costs
- Salartes, bonuses, allowances and subsidies 64,274 62,003
— Other social insurance and welfare 10,213 B oaT
= Housing funds G214 6,288
= Linion renning costs and employes educalion costs 2,600 2. 56T
- Dwefined comribution plans 12,923 12,846
- Early relirement expenses a7 a5
= Compensation to employess for termination of employment relationship A 3
e L e R
Premises and equepment expengas
= Depreciation charges 14,048 13,804
= Rent and property management expenses 9578 3,341
= Maintenance 2,882 2,820
- Lhtilities 1,988 2,0
- Others 1,988 1,875
ot L
Taxes and surcharges 5,767 17,473
Amoriisation expenses 2,306 2213
Audit fees. 172 142
Tatal 167,043 171,515
13 IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
Loans and advances 1o customers
= Addifions 141,957 101,727
- Fieleases (18,568) [12,169)
Investment classifiad as receivebles T96 {586}
Augilable-for-gale debt securities 457 T
Held-to-maturity investments 413 970
Awailable-for-sale equity investments 307 ag
Fingd assats 1 46
Others 1,900 2,880
Tatal 127,362 593,204
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14 DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate of the emoluments before individual income tax in respect of the directors and supenvisors who held
office during the yvear is as follows:

2017
Contributions

to defined Other

contribution benefits
Remuneration refirement n kind Total
Allowances paid schemes [mote [v)) (note(])
AME"0D0 AMB'000 RMB"000 RMB'000 RMEB'000

Executive directors

Tian Guoli {note {ik-& ()} - 213 22 40 275
Warg Zuji (nete (vi)) - 519 51 20 650
Pang Xiushang inote (vi)) - 467 51 B8 606
Znhang Gengsheng [rote (v} - 467 51 &8 606

Mon-executive directors

Li Jur {nate (il = £, ir g
Had Adgpuan (nobs [m)) - - - -
Feng Bing (note (i) & (i) - = E o
Zhu Haillin {note (1) & Gil)) - - — =
Wu Min (note (i) & (i) - - - —
Zhang Qi {reote i & fiij) - - = =

Independent non-execulive directors

Anita Fung Yuen Mai 390 - - =
Carl Walter 440 - = -
Chung Shui Ming Timpson 440 - - =
Murray Hom 470 - - -
Malzolm Christopher McCarthy {note (i) 17 - - - 171

3888

Supervisors

G You (nete (v
Ll Jirt (mcte (vl

Li ¥iaoling {note [vi)]
Li ¥iukun {rote (vl
Jin Yanemin frate (v
Li Zhenyy (note (v
Bai Jianjun

519 51 80

e B8
8
' B
Bazgdf@

Boggag, ,,

Former executive director
Wang Hongzharg (nate (=) & (v

3
8
&
L5

Former non-executive directors
Guo Yanpeng (note (i§) & [=)) - = - - =
Dong Shi (mote (i) & note (=) - = = = =

Former independent non-executive directors
Wim Kok {note (1) 190 - - =, 190
ATang Long inate 6 137 = = = 137

2,638 3,841 356 G684 7,619
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14 DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The aggregate of the emoluments bafore individual income tax in respect of the directors and supervisors who held
office during the year is as follows:

e
Social insurance,
CONpOrate anmufty,
BLDpRTET A
medical insurance Other
Acrued and housng fund manatary Tedal
cost pad by the Bank Incame inate dil]) Alicwancs
AMB'000 RbAB' 000 RkE 000 RME"000 RME'000
Executive directors
Wang Hongzhang (note (il o2 13 - 833 =
Wanig Zuji T2 156 - 858 -
Pang Xiushang 632 148 - 781 -
Zhang Gengsheng 632 143 - 781 =
Non-executive directors
Li dun {rote (i) = = e o =
Hao Alqun (nete il ™ = = iy =
Dong Shi {nots (i) & @)Y - = 3 = =
Independent non-execulive directors
Anita Fung Yuen Me = - = - 98
Cadl Walter - - - - 298
Zhang Long {note i) T = = " 410
Chung Shui Ming Timpsen o - = = 440
Wim Kok fnate (il] - - - - 340
Murray Hom - - - - 470
Supervisors
Guo You To2 156 = 858 =
Lit Jin 1,648 162 - 1810 =
Li Kiaaling 1,648 62 - 1,810 -
Li ik [t ) & - B - 4
Jin Yanmin (nate ) = = = = 46
Li Zhenyu (nate (i} = - = = 46
Bai Jianjun - - - - 50
Former non-executive directors
Chen Yuaning = = = = =
XuTie - - - - -
Guo Yanpeng - - - - -
Former independent non-exscutive dirsctor
Margaret Leamg Ko May Yes = = - = 195
Former supervisors
Jiri Panshi - - - - ]
Zhang Huggan - - - - 4
Wanqg Lin - i = - 'l
Wang Xinmin = - - = =
6,665 1,065 - ! 243
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14 DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Motes:

i}

iy

iy

i)

i)

]

i}

The amounts of emoluments for the year andad 31 December 2017 in respact of the services renderad by tha directors and
supervisors are subject to the approval of the Annual General Meeting.

As disciosed in the Bank's announcement on 8 February 2017, Mr. Guo Yanpeng ceased to serve a3 non-executive director of the
Bank dus to change of job.

As disclosed in the Bank's announcament on 28 April 2017, Mr. Zhang Long ceased to serve as independent non-axecutive
director of the Bank due to personal reascnsg.

As digciosed in the Bank's announcemeant on 15 June 2017, Mr. Dang Shi capsed to sarve as non-executive director of the Bank
e (o expiry of tarm,

As disclosed in the Bank's announcament on 15 June 2017, Mr. Wim Kok ceased to serve as independent nan-axecutive director
of the Bank due to expiry of term.

Upon election at the 2016 Annual General Masting of the Bank, Ms, Feng Bing, Mr. Zhu Hailin, Mr, Wu Min and Mr. Zhang
Qi commancad their positions as pon-axecutive directors of the Bank frem 28 July 2017, Sir Malcolm Christopher MeCarthy
commenced his position as independent mon-executive director of the Bank from 15 August 2017,

As disclosed in the Bank's announcement on 17 August 2017, Mr. Wang Hongzhang ceased his positions as Chairman of the
Board, executive director of the Bank, as well as the chairman and member of the Strategy Develepment Committee due to his
BOe.

Upon election at the first extracrdinary general meeting of 2017 of the Bank, Mr. Tian Guoli commenced his positions as chairman
of the Board and executive director of the Bank from 8 Octobeer 2017,

The Bank does nat need to pay the emaluments of non-executive dingcions appointed by Hujin for the services rendered in 2017
and 2016.

The amounts only incleded fees for their services as supenvisors.

Cther benefits in kind included the Bank's contributions to medical fund, housing fund and other social insurances, which

are payabie o labour and securily authesities based an the lower of certain percentage of the salaries and allowanca or ihe
prescribed upper limits as reguired by the relevant regulations issued by the government authorities. Other benefits also included
the Bank's contrbution to ils own corporate annuity plan (aiieh was 36t i in aocordance with th relevant policies issusd by the
govermment authorities) and supplementary medical insurance.

MNane of the directors and supenisors received any inducemeants or compensatian for loss of office, or waived any emoluments
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 20186,

The total compensation package for these derectors and supanvisors for the year ended 31 December 2017 has not yat been
finalized in accordance with reguiations of the PRC relevant authorities. The amount of tha compensation not provided for is
not axpicted 1o have a significant impast on the Group's finandial statements lor the year ended 31 December 2017, The final
compensation will be disclosed in a separate amnouncement when datermined.

The total compensation package for cartain directors and supendsors for the year ended 31 December 2016 had not been
fimalized in accordance with regulations of the PRE ralevant authorties till the date that the 2016 financial statements wera
announced, The aforesaid total compensation package for the directars and supervisors for the year ended 31 December 2016
was tha final amount,

Freem 2015 onwards, rarmumesation of the Bank's leaders admanigtered by central authodties are paid in aecordance with relevant
policies relating to the central remuneration refarm,
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15  INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Mane of the five individuals with the highest emoluments are directors or supervisors whose ameluments are disclosed
in Mote 14, The aggregate of the emoluments before individual income tax in respect of the five highest paid individuals
during the year is as follows:;

27 2016

AMB'000 AME'B00

Salaries and allowancs T 18,338
Variable compensation 31,914 35,041
Contribitions 1o defmned contrbulion retiremant schemes 1,056 1,183
Other benefit in kind 554 365
49,113 53,825

The number of these individuals whose emoluments before individual income tax are within the following bands is set
ot below.,

27 2016

RMBT 000,001 - AMET 200,000
RAMBS,000,001 — RMES, 500,000
RAMBS,.500,001 = RMBS, 000,000
AMB,000,001 = RMES,500,000
AMBD.500,001 = RME 10,000,000
AME10,000,007 — AMBE10,500,000
AMB10,500,007 — AME11,000,000 -
AKMB11,000,001 = RME11,500,000

RMEB11.500,007 - AME12,000.000 1

b o=k ] =& =& |
]

b owk omE ok |

Maone of these individuals received any inducements, or compensation for loss of office, or waived any emoluments
during the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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{EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF RMB, UNMLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

16 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
(1) Income tax expense

27 2016

Current fax 83,737 80,380
— Mainland China 80,753 58713

- Hong Kong 1,377 875

= DHher countrias and regions 1,607 792

Adjustrnants for prior years (352) {187}
Daferrad tax [T213) 2,628
Total 56172 B2.821

The prowvisions of income taxes for Mainland China and Hong Kong are calculated at 25% and 16.5% of the
estimated taxable income frem Mainland China and Hong Kong operations for the year respectively. Taxation
far other overseas operations is charged at the approgriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant tax
jurisdictions.

(2) Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit

Mate 27 2016
Profit before tax 209,767 295,210
fricome fee caleulalad ol 25% atiiony od ml SEeTAnarn Tapm
Effects of different applicabie rates of tax prevailing in other countresfregions {573} {677}
MNen-deductible expenses [T 9,340 10,648
Mon-taxable income i} (27,180} (20,866)
Adjustments an ncome tax for prior years which alfect profit or loss (352) {187}
Income tax expense 56,172 52,821

m Mon-deductible expensas primarily include non-deductible losses resulting from write-off of loans, and items that are in
excass of deductible amount under the relevant PRC tax regulations such ag staff costs and entertainmeant expenses.

i) Moa-taxabdes income primanly includes interes! Incame from PRC govemment bonds and local govemment bends.

17 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 have been computed by dividing the net profit

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares autstanding during
the years.

For the purpose of calculating basic earnings per share, dividends on non-cumulative preference shares declared in
respect of the period should be deducted from the amounts attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank.

The conversion feature of preference shares is considered 1o be contingently issuable ordinary shares. The triggerning
events of conversion did not occur as at 31 December 2017 and 2016, therefore the conversion feature of preference
shares has no effect on the basic and diluted earnings per share calculation.

Faik 206
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank 242,264 231,460
Less: profit for the year atiributable to preference shareholders of the Bank {1,045) {1,067}
Nit profit attributable to ordinary sharsholders of the Bank 241,219 230,393
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (in milkons of shares) 250,011 250,011
Basic eamings per share attributable lo ordinary sharsheoidars of the Bank (in RMB Yuan) 0.96 0.52
Ddutad eamings per share altributable to ardinary shareholdérs of the Bank (in AME Yuan) 0.96 0.92
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18 CASH AND DEPOSITS WITH CENTRAL BANKS

Bote 27 2006

Deposits with central banks
= Btatutory deposit reserves {1 2,665,738 2,568,219
= Burplus depast reserves 2 200,080 183,764
- Fiscal deposits 39,562 25,982
L .l
Tatal 2,988,256 2,848,261

{1}  The Group places statutory deposit resarves with the Pecple’s Bank of China ("PBOCT) and overseas central banks where it has
gperations. The statutory deposit reserves are nol avallable for use in the Group's dally business.

Asg at the end of the reporting period, the statutony deposit resense rates in Mainland Chéna of the Bank were as follows:

2017 2016 _
Regerve rate for AMB dapasits 17.0% 17.0%
Reserve rate for foraign currency dapogits 5.0% 5.0%

The statutory RMB deposit resense rates applicable to domestic subsidiaries of the Group are determined by the PBOC.

The amgunts of statutory deposit reserves placed with the central banks of overseas countries ans determined by local
jurisdictions.

2] The surplus deposit reserve maintaned with the PBOC is mainky for the purpose of cleaning.

19 DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND NON-BANK FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
(1)  Analysed by type of counterparties

27 2016

Banks 163,521 482,348

Won-bank financial institutions. 11,541 12,336

Gross batances 175,062 434 624
Allowances Tor impairment losses (Mote 35} {57} (156}

et balances 175,005 494 618

{2) Analysed by gecgraphical sectors

2017 2016

Mainland China 147,945 486,765
Cwersaas 27117 278189

Gross balances 175,062 494,684
Allowances for impairment pases (Note 38} 57 55}

Net balances 175,005 494,818
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{EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF RMB, UNMLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

20 PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND NON-BANK FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
{1) Analysed by type of counterparties

27 2016
Banks 173,762 121,238
Kon-bank financial institutions 151,583 138,555
Gross balances 325,345 280,783
Allawances for impairment losses [Mata 38} {112) {123)
Met balances 325,233 280,670

(2) Analysed by geographical sectors

2T 2016
Mainland China 276,308 172 492
Crharseas 49,037 83,30
Gross balances 325,345 260,793
Allowances for impairment losses (Mote 38} (112} {133
ket batances 325233 280,670
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21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Analysed by nature
Mol 217 2016
Held for trading purposes il
- Debt securitias 180,447 141,330
- Equity instruments and funds 1312 1,825
so7ee 143185
Designated at fair value through profit or loss L3
= Debt securitias 10,211 8,850
= Equity instrurmants and funds 23,076 16,553
= Other debl instrumenis 354,390 319,972
3BT 6TT 845,215
Tatal 578,436 488,370
Analysed by types of issuers
(1) Held for trading purpose
i@l Debf securities
Moot 2017 2016
Government 10812 15,173
Central bank 543 -
Palicy banks 22,305 9,064
Banks and non-bank fingncial institutions 58485 65,307
Enterprigas oa7.212 51,786
Total 180,447 141,330
Ligted 0] 180,447 141,330
- af which in Hong Kong 26 502
Total 188,447 141,330

] Dabst sacurities traded on tha China Domestic Interbank Bend Market ara classified as listed,

(&) Equaty instrements and fund’s

2017 206

Banks and non-bank financial institutions 152 123
Enterprises 1,160 1702

Total 1912 1.825

Listed 1,171 1,701

- of which in Hong Kong 1,067 1,682
Unilisted 141 124

Total 1312 1825
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21  FINANCGIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)
Analysed by types of issuers (continued)
(2) Designated at fair value through profit or loss
fa) Debt securities

2017 2016
Aniistor antorpataes 10,215 Amd
Total 10,211 8,690
() Eguity fnstruments and fungs
AT 2006
Banks and non-bank financial institutions 8,037 10,934
Enterprises 15,030 5,619
Tolal 23,076 16,553
Listed Bar 15
= of which in Hong Kong 699 -
Undisted 22,239 16,535
Total 23,076 168,553
o) Other debt instrumernits
2017 2016
Banks and non-bank financial institutions 218,322 213,182
Emerprizes 136,068 106,790
Total 354,300 319,972

Other debt instruments were mainly the deposits with banks, credit assats invested by principal guaranteed
wealth management products and bonds (Note 31{2)).

There was no significant limitation on the ability of the Group to dispose of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.
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22 DERIVATIVES AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING
(1) Analysed by type of contract

Fo 2016
Hotional Notionad
R Nota amounts Assets Liobilitios UL Agsets Linbilities _

Intarest rate contracts 332,480 280 48T 470802 3,278 2,482

Exchange rate contracts 5,307,905 78,909 78,581 4,650,215 73,183 83,085

Other contracts fa) 162,632 3,001 790 333,553 13,325 4816

Tatal 5,823,107 82,580 79,867 5454 577 88, TEE 20,333
{2) Analysed by credit risk-weighted assets

e | S— Mota +ﬂﬂ' 2016
Counterparty cradit default risk-weighted assels

= Interest rate contracts 651 2,849

= Exchange rate contracts 47,728 35,373

- Other contracts {a) 5,305 10,751

Sublotal 53,774 48,773

Gradit valwe adjustaent 20,545 25,987

Total 74,318 74,780

The notional amounts of derivatives only represent the unsettied transactions volume as at the end of the reporting
period, instead of the amount of risk assets. Since 1 January 2013, the Group has adopted Administrative
Measures for the Capital of Commergial Banks ifor Tral Implementation) and other related policies. According to
the new rules set cut by the CBRC, the credit risk-weighted assets included credit valuation adjustmeants, with the
considerations of counterparty status and maturity characteristic, and back-to-back client-driven transactions.

{a) Oiher contracts mainly consist of precious metals contracts,
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22 DERIVATIVES AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)
(%) Hedge accounting
The following designated hedging instruments are included in the derivatives financial instruments disclosed

above.
amT 2016
Motional Mofianal
amounts Assels Liabilities amaunis Asgats Liabilities
Fair value hadges
Interast rate swaps 49,087 469 {88) 45 148 507 (&8)
Foresgn axchange swaps 325 12 - a48 24 -
Casgh fiow hedges
Feseign exchange swaps 33,193 1,051 {418} 2149 = {823}
Fq_l'gi_g!l:l_am_:a'!a_ngg forwards 51,684 M8 (88) - - -
Tatal 134,2B9 2,450 (545] 66,987 &1 {892}

fal Fair valve hedge

The Group uses interest rate swaps and foreign exchange swaps to hedge against changes of fair value in
some deposits from customers, certificates of deposit issued, loans and advances to customers arising from
changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Met (losses)/gains on fair value hedges are as follows:

2017 2016

Net lossasp'gains on = -
= hadging instrumants {77 Lok
- hadged items 71 {439}

The gain and loss arising from ineffective partion of fair value hedge was immaterial for the year ended 31
Dacember 2017 and 2016.

B Cash flow hedge

The Group uses foreign exchange swaps and foreign exchange forward 1o hedge against expasures to
cash flow variability primarily from foreign exchange risks of some loans and advances to customers. The
maturities of hedging instruments and hedged itemms are both within cne year.,

For the year ended 31 Decamber 2017, net profit from the cash flow hedge of RMBATD million were
recagnised in other comprehensive income (2016: net less 150 million) and the gain and loss arising fram
ineffective portion of cash flow hedge was immaterial.

23 FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS
Financial assets held under resale agreements by underlying assets are shown as follows:

o 2T 2016
Drett securities
= Government bonds 106,541 21,726
= Debt securities isswed by policy banks, banks and non-bank financial institutions 84,461 348,751
= Caorporate bonds 2618 -
- Others i 1,051 -
Subtotal 204,671 80477
Discounted bills 3,680 42 oy
Gross and net balances 208,260 103,174
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24 INTEREST RECEIVABLE

2017 2016
Deposits with central banks 1,354 1,163
Deposits with banks and non-bank financial institutions 6E0 2,286
Financial asssts held under resale agreements 145 8
Leans and advances to customers 308,583 29,784
Dabt securtias 69,550 53,358
Others 5681 4,830
Gross and net balances 116,903 101,645
25 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
(1) Analysed by nature

27 2016

Corporata loans and advances
- Loans 7,365,005 6,711,673
__—Finance leases 12,737 112,239

et Rl

Personal loang and advances

~ Residential morgeges 4,252 608 3,625,574
- Parsonal consumer koans 203,218 87,346
= Parsonal businass loans 41,417 51,188
- Cradit cards 567 GBI 447,244
- Otherg 214,878 200,586

et et

ISECCRRCIIN: . o s s s s SRR ST 10
Gross leans and advances (o customens 12,903,441 11,757,032
Allowances for impairment losses (Mote 38} {328,968) {268,677}

- Individual assessment {113,820) {99,453)
- Colleclive assassment {215,148) {168,224}
et ipans and advances to customens 12,574,473 11,488,335
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25 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

(2) Analysed by assessment method of allowances for impairment losses

EDINETOOOO

O000O000o0OoO0Ooo(Ees9r2)

Loans and  Impaired loans and advances
advances
for which for which for which
allowances allowance are  allowances are
arg collectively collectively individually
assessed assessed assessed Total
Ha [a) L] ]
As at 31 December 2017
Gross loans and advances o customarns. 12,711,150 22,493 168,788 12,903,441
Allowances for impairment losses (201,346 (13,802) {113,820) (328, 96:8)
Met loans and advances to customers 12,509,804 8,661 55,978 12,574,473
As at 31 December 2016
Gross loans and advances 1o customerns 11,578,342 22,254 156,436 11,757,032
Allgwanges for impairment legses (155.94%) [13.275) [99,453) (268,677}
Met loans and advances to customerns 11,422,303 B.878 56,963 11,488,355

(@  Loans and advances assessed on a collective basis for impairment are those graded normal or special mention,

&) impaired loans and advances include loans for wiich objective evidence of impairment exists and assessed:

- indivicdually (ingluding corporate lnans and advances which are graded substandard, doubtful or loas): or

- collectively; thase are porfolics of homogenaous loans including personal loans and advances which are graded

substandard, doulbthul or loss),

The proportion of impaired koans and advances of the Group (o gross loans and advances as al 31 December 2017 s

1.48%: (31 December 2016 1.52%),

{c)  The definitions of the loan classifications stated in notes (a) and (b) abowve are se1 out in Note 65(1).
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25 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)
(3)  Movements of allowances for impairment losses

2m7
Allpwances Allowances for impaired
for loans lzans and advances
and advances
which are which are which are
collectivily collectivily individually
Nobe assessed asnessed assessed Total
As at 1 January 155,949 13,275 90,453 268,677
Charge for the year 45,602 7524 B8,831 141,957
Felease during the year - - (16,568) {18,568)
Unwinding of discount - - {3,143) (3,143}
Transfers out ial (205) (2819 (24,352) (27,476)
Write-olfs - (5,270 (31,721) (36,991)
Recoveres - 1,192 3,320 4,512
Az at 31 December 201,346 13,802 113,820 328,968
206
Alowances Allowances for impasrad
lor loans loang and advancas
and advances
which are which ane whicih ane
collectively collectively incividually
Mobe assegsed assengad assesgad Tedal
Az at 1 January 157,632 10,769 82,196 250,817
Charge fior the year - 0.948 21,809 101,757
Release during the year 11840 - (10,329) {12,163}
Unwinding of discount = - [3,67S) [3,675)
Additions through acquisitions B 10 18 36
Transfers out (a) 149 {2,808) [35.487) {38,146}
Write-offs = {5,68T) (27 2600 {32,647}
Recaveres - 1,023 2,881 3,904
As at 31 December 155,849 13,275 29,453 268,677

{a)  Transfers out include the transfer of allowances for impairment losses upon disposal of non-performing loans,
assel-backed gecuntization of non-perdarming loans and repossession of assets, and the relevant exchange gain o 1538,
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25 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)
(4) Overdue loans analysed by overdua period

207
Ovardus Ovardue
Owarduse batweon betweon Cwverdua
within  three months  one year and over
three months  and one year three years threa years Total
Unsacured kaans 87 6,594 5,640 1,138 22,073
Guaranteed loang 15,569 20,668 24,730 3,047 64,014
Loans secured by langible assets olher
than monelary assets 28,556 22,547 22,715 2,658 76,476
Loans secured by monatary assets 564 1,072 1,458 215 3,305
Tatal 53,390 50,881 54,543 7,058 165,872
Az a percentage of gross loans and
Advances 10 cuslomers 0.42% 0.40%: 0.42% 0.05% 1.29%
2018
Chardus Onverdue
Owverdua babween between Orverdua
within thrae manths ona year and over
- three months and one year threa years three years Tedal
Unsecured loans 8921 5.843 4,608 211 21,383
Guarantoed loans 15,872 28972 22,248 1,973 0,072
Loans secured by langible assets other
than monslary assets 29,734 28213 22,970 1,473 82,450
Loans secured by monetary assets 580 1,974 1,531 109 4,194
Tatal 58,174 66,102 51,367 4,466 178,088
Az a parcentage of gross loars and
advances 10 cusiomers DL4B% 0.56% 0.43% 0.04% 1.51%

Owverdue loans represent loans of which the whole or part of the principal or interest are overdua for 1 day or mare,

(5) Package sale of non-performing loans

Dwring the year ended 31 December 2017, the total amount of non-performing loans sold through packaged sales
1o external asset management companies was RMB45,522 million (2016: RMBS7,058 million),
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26 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Analysed by nature
Mote 217 2016
Debt securities (1) 1,461,824 1,348,814
Equety instruments e} n,723 22 640
Funds 2 57,133 262,380
Tatal (3) 1,550,680 1,633,834
(1) Debt securtios
Arnalysed by fyoe of isswers
Mote 2017 2016
Government 985,559 72775
Ceniral banks 36,742 21,2948
Policy banks 228104 24,430
Banks and non-bank financial instiuiions 80,327 321,228
Enterprises 122,002 138,082
Total 1,481,824 1,348,814
Lested il 1,428,927 1,320,530
— of which In Hong Kong 22 662 51,784
Unlistad 32,857 28,284
Tatal 1,461,824 1,348,814

i} Debt securities traded on the China Domestic Interbank Bond Market are classified as listed.

{2 Equity instruments and funds

207 2016

Debt aquity swap ("DES") Inmvestments a3 Bar
Cihir equity nstruments 30,810 21,753
Funds 57,133 262,380
Tatal BB, 856 285,020
Listed 54,172 76,525
= ol which in Hong Kong 1,957 4180
Unlisted 34,584 208,495
Taotal 88,856 285,020

Mainly pursuant to the DES arrangement by the PRC government in 1993, the Group oblained equsty interests of certain entities
in lieu of repayments of loans granted to them. According to relewant requirements, the Group ig prohibsted from baing involved
in managament of the operations of these antities, In substance, the Group does not have any contral, joint contral or significant
influence owver thase entities.

{3  Asat31 December 2017, the Group's cost of available-for-sale debt securities was RMB1,502, 144 million {as at 31 December
2016 AMEB1,351.960 million). The Group's cost of availabie-for-sale aguity instruments and funds was AMEBS1,716 millicn (a3 at
31 December 201 &: AMB203,458 million).
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27 HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Analysed by types of issuers
Mate 27 206
Govemment 1,008,032 1,603,894
Central banks 434 422
Policy banks 552,057 253,080
Banks and non-bank financial instituticons 27,045 456,138
Entarprises 102,564 122,931
Gross balances 2 500,132 2441 468
Allowances for impairment losses (Note 38) (3.410) {3,048
Mat balances 2,586,722 2,438,417
Listed 1 2,575,216 2401817
- of which in Hong Kong 4,000 2522
Unlisted 11,506 35,800
Total 2,586,722 2,438,417
Markat value of listed Securities 2522112 2,458,814

{1} Debt securities traded on the China Domestic Interbank Bond Market are classified as listed.

28 INVESTMENT CLASSIFIED AS RECEIVABLES

Mot 7 2016
Geawvarmment
= Special govemnmant bond )l 48,200 42,200
- Others 304,554 228,762
Policy banks 20,000 =
Banks and non-bank financial institutions 13,462 50,271
Enterprises 20,006 33,882
Othars 2) 51,612 147,419
Gross balances 46T 924 508,314
Allowance for impainvent losses iNote 32) : 2114) (1,381}
MNit balances 485,810 507,963
Listad 406 BG4 281,640
= gf which in Hong Keng 1,181 485
Unlisted 58,246 226,323
Total 465,810 507 963

{1} This represants a non-transferable bond with a nominal value of AMB49,200 million issued by the Ministry of Finance ["MOF") in
1998 to strengthen the capital base of CCB. The bend matures in 2028 and bears a fixed interest rate of 2.25% per annum. The
PBOC approved the Bank's use of the special government bond as eligible assets equivalant to the surplus deposit reserve at
PBOC for clearing purpose.

{2)  Others include asset management plans and capital trust plan with fixed or defermined payments, They will mature from January
2018 to October 2027 and bear interest rates ranging from 2.00% 1o 8.50% pear annum. During the reporting padod, matured
plans have been repaid without overdue.
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29 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(1) Investment cost

Mote 217 2016
CCB Financial Asset Investment Comoration Limited ("CCBFIT [a) 12,000 -
CCB Brasil Financial Holding - Investimentos & Participacdes Lida. B 9,542 6,906
CCB Financial Leasing Corporation Limited (“CCBFLCL™) 8,163 8,163
CCB Life Insurance Comparny Limited (*CCB Lifa™) 3,802 3,902
GEB Trust Corporation Limited ["CCB Trust™) 3,409 3,409
China Conatruction Bank {Londaon) Limited ("CCE London™) 2,861 2,861
CCB Pension Management Corporation Limited (“CCB Pension™) 1,855 1,955
China Construction Bank [Europe) S.A. ("CCE Europe™) 1,628 1,828
Sino-German Bavsparkasse Corpoaration Limited (“Sina-Garman Bausparkassa”) 1,802 1.502
PT Bank China Construction Bank indonasia Tok (“CCB Indonesia”) 1,362 1.352
China Construction Bank (Mataysia) Berhad ("CCB Malaysia®} 1,334 1,334
China Construction Bank (Mew Zealand]) Limited ("CCB Mew Zealand”) ars 976
China Construection Bank (Russka) Limited Liability Company {*"CCE Russia™) 851 851
Gaolden Fountain Finance Limited (“Golden Fewntain®) 676 E78
CCB Prinepal Asset Management Corpesation Limited (“CCB Principal™) 130 130
CCB Intemnational Group Holdings Lirmited (“"CCBIG") - =
‘Rural Banks ic) 1378 1,378
Tatal 51,660 7024

(a) Ore July 2017, the Bank set up a wholly-owned subsidiary, CCB Financial Asset Investment Corporation Limited. As at 31
Decamber 2017, the Bank held 100% of the total capital of COEFL

B} InOctober 2017, the Bank injecied additional capital of USDUO0 millien 1o China Construction Bank ([Brasil) Banco Multiple
S/A. by CCB Brasil Financial Holding - Investimentos & Participagfes Lida.

{e) The total investment amount of rural banks consists of investment costs of 27 rural banks in total, which are established
and controfled by the Bank in substance {as at 31 December 2016: 27 rural banks),
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(2) Except for CCB Indonesia, major subsidiaries of the Group are unlisted entarprizes, details of the

investments in subsidiaries are as follows:

EDINETOOOO
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%l % of
ownershie  gnarehip %of
g oyl R
Prircapad phace sued and Principal Freld by held by rights Mzthed of
Mame of company of business paid up capital activities  theBank  the Bank by the Bank maestment
GCer Beifngthe PRC  AMS 12,000 milion Invetment 100 - 100%  Eslablshment
CCE Bragd Financial Hoidmg - S0 Paulo Brasil RS 4,381 milion imestment 9900 0% 1009% Acquistan
Ivecetimentos &
Paticipaghes Lida
CCaRLCL Baipng, the PRC RMIB 8,000 milion Financial Lageing 100 - 100%  Establshiment
CCB Life Shanghal, the PRC RMB 4,455 mifion Insurance 5% - 5% Acquisition
0B Trust Aritwil, the PRC AME 1,527 milion Trust bisingss BT - &% Boquisition
CCH Pansion Baijing the PRC AME 2,300 milion  Pention Managament BE% = 85%  Eslabkshment
CCB Longdon London, USS200milion  Commercial Banking 100 - 100%  Estahiishment
United Mingdom AN 1,500 milin
CCB Europe Lumambeourg Eurg 200 milion  Commercial Banking 00 - 100%  Establishment
Sinc-Garman Bausparkasia Tianji, the FRC RMB 2,000 mifion House savings 75.1% - T51%  Estabishment
CCB Indonesia Jakarta, Indonesia  1DA 1683, 146 milion  Commerncisl Baniing B3 - 6% Acxjuistion
(0B Malzysia Kuala Lumgur, MYR B23milion  Commerciat Banking 100% = 100%  Estabishment
Malaysia
CGCB Merw Zealand Auchdand Mew WZD 1% million  Commercial Banfang 100% = 100%  Esiabéishment
Zeatand
CCB Russia Moscow, Russia AJB 4200 milion  Commercial Barlking 100% - 100%  Establishment
Golgen Fourten Eritish Virgin LSS 50,000 Irvestment 100% - 100% Acquisitan
Islands
CCB Principal Baipng, the PRC RMB 200milicn  Fund maragement £5% - 659  Exlabiishment
BEIICES
CCBIG Hong Kong, HEST Imvestment 100% & 100%  Establishment
the PRC
0B Intemasional (Holdings) Hong Kong, 1SS 601 millon Ivestment - 100% 100% Acquisition
Linittad ("CLEN) the PRC
Chira Construction Bank Hong Hong, HE5 6,511 million Commercial - 100% 1009% Acquisition
{Asia) Corpanation thePAC  FME 17,600 million Baring
Limited ("CLB Agla’)
Chira Construction Bank (Brasd)  Sa0 Paubk Brasil RS 2,957 milion  Commancial Baniing - 100% 100% Acquisition
Banco Multipls S8
{08 Brasil)

to the Group.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHERS 188
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
The movement of the Group's interests in associates and joint ventures is as follows:
2017 2016
Az at 1 January 7318 4,986
Acquisition during the year 1,544 2,408
Digposal during tha year {1,548 {326)
Share of profits 161 B8
Gash dividend receivable (42) (8}
Effect of exchange difference and oithers [es) L
Az at 31 Decamber 7067 7.318
Details of the interests in major associates and joint ventures are as follows:
Tolal
Parlicidars ol %ol Total Eabities Rewonue  Ned profit
Principal place of of tsued and incipal  ownership voling  Bsselsal ol year for the Tor the
Name of Company business paid up capital ks held held  yearend end year year
Gy Cagetal Limited Beiprag, e PRC VBT million Imastment 1268 12468% 2567 & B3 &
maragement and
corsuiancy
Diamind String Limited Hurg Kiong, HES0.000 Property imveiment  SO00%  S0.00% 2084 1662 b= 4
the FRC
Vst Jeareaan Dheguin Irvesiernt Wi, the PRC FEMETH milion Irissimant i Y 53% LA 45 24 Fd
Managément Center maragement and
iimited Patnershap) cormaltancy
Guangdong S0E Reonganization Zruhai, e PRC  RMBS00 milion Imestment  406T%  33.00% 1014 - 13 B
Deweiogement Fund management and
{Limited Parinership) conmsultancy
Besgryy Juanwin Fuiniang imvestment Begeg, the PRC FEMEATE million Imesimenl 310 HLA0 & ] 1
Management Centit management and
iLimited Partnershin) cormaltancy
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180 | MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF RMB, UNMLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

31 STRUCTURED ENTITIES
(1)  Unconsolidated structured entities

Unconsolidated structured entities of the Group include trust plans, asset management plans, funds, asset-back
securities and wealth management products held for investment purpose, and non-principal guaranteed wealth
management products, trust plans and funds, etc which are issued or established by the Group for providing
wealth management services to customers and earning management fees, commission and custodian fees in
ratyrm.

Ag at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the azsets recognized for the Group's interests in the unconsolidated
structured entities above included related investment and management fee, commission and custodian fee
receivables accrued. The related carmying amount and the maximum exposure were a3 follows:

2017 216
Financial assels at fair valua throwgh profit or loss 17,405 5,408
Interast receivables 178 185
Available-for-sale financial assets 78,231 275,085
Invesiment classified as receivables 48,356 121,527
Interest in associates and joint ventures 3,430 4,184
Oiher assets 3,388 l$.d51
Tatal 151,988 409,780

For the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the income from these unconsolidated structured entities held by

the Group was as follows:

017 2016
Interast incomea 2,661 4773
Fee and commission incomse 19,760 21,491
Met trading gain 471 132
Dividend incoma 1,486 2,102
Mat {loss)gain arising from investment securities (3,823) 3,083
Share of profit of associales and jaint vantures 55 a0
Tatal 20,810 31,561

As at 31 December 2017, the balance of the non-principal guaranteed wealth management products set up by
the Group amounted to RMB1, 730,820 million (as at 31 December 2016: RMB1.794, 708 million). For the year
ended 31 December 2017, there were debt securities purchased and sold between the Group and non-principal
guaranteed wealth management products menticned above, These transactions were based on market prices or
general commercial terms. The profit and loss from these transactions was not material to the Group.

{2) Consolidated structured entities

The consolidated structured entities of the Group are primarily the principal guaranteed wealth management
products (Note 21(2)c) and certain asset management plans and trust plans.
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FIXED ASSETS
Bank Construction Aircraft and
L e — premises i progress Equipment vesgels Orthers Tatal
Cost'deemed cost
Ag a1 1 Jamsary 2077 119972 26,543 B4,987 20,5m 42,193 263,106
Additions 1,082 6,305 4,109 6,229 2,309 0,034
Transfer in/out) 3 [4,568) 58 - 1,308 -
Cither movemants (1,295 (B34} (4,166} (875} (2,264 (12,234)
A3t December 2017 R L o L O . S . SO L1
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 Janvary 2017 (30,328) - (34,508) (1,478} (26,201) (92,605)
Charge foe the year (4,192) {5,791) (1,058) [4,066) (15,107}
Cthar movemants 364 - 4,038 286 2126 G814
AS at 31 Decsmber 2017 B I .. ... N .. N .. )L O Lo
Allowances for impairment losses [Note 38)
Asat 1 January 2017 (418} = - (7B} (3} (406])
Charge for the year - - - {1} - {1
Other movements 3 - - 75 - T8
As at 31 December 2017 (a5 - = {1 i3 (418)
Mt carrying value
As at 1 January 2017 59,226 25,543 20,389 18,948 15,989 170,055
As at 31 Decamiber 2017 88,299 26,648 18,838 20,604 15,492 169,679
Cost/desmed cost
As at 1 Januwary 2016 113,844 27274 51,305 10,440 40,338 24320
Additions 1,602 5,286 6,423 9,808 2318 25,538
Trangfes inout) 4,513 0,065} 50 = 1,502 -
Othar movemants 13 (852} 2,781} 152 (1,965) [3,543)
Ag at 31 Decomber 2016 Lagre | 25548 S40e7 2050 42083 263196
Aceumulated depraciation
Asat 1 Janyary 2016 {26,315} = (32,10} =kl (24,116) (83,765
Charga for tha year {4,016} = (5,070) {BSE} [3.B66) [13.B04)
Other movemants i - 2,573 i 1,781 4368
As at 31 December 2018 (30,328) - {34,588) (1,478 26,201) (92,605
Allowances for impairment losses [Mote 38)
As at 1 Jangary 2016 [423) - - {T5) {501)
Charge for the year - - - - 146 45
Cthar movemants 5 = - - 51
As at 31 Dacember 2018 (418} - - {78l 3 1406)
Mat carrying value
Az at 1 Jampary 2016 BT, 102 27,274 19,204 9,732 16,219 159,531
As at 31 December 2018 B3,226 25,543 20,388 18,948 15,868 170,085

Meotes:

1) Other movernents include disposals, relirements and exchange gains or losses of fixed assats,

{2) Az al 31 Decembaer 2017, the awnership documantation for the Group's bank pramises with a net carmying value of AMB19,512
millien (25 at 31 December 2016: AME22,952 million) was being finalised. However, management ks of the view that the aforesaid
atter would pat affect the nghts of the Group to these assats ner hive any sighificant impact on the busingss operation of the

Group.
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LAND USE RIGHTS
2T 2016

Costfdesmed cost

As at 1 January 21,208 2,217
Additions 400 86
Cisposals (210} (97}
ﬁsm_.‘iﬂ Depmmar 21,4-95 21,2086
Amortisation

As at 1 January [6,322) 5,844}
Charge for the year {525) {508}
Disposals 47 27
As at 31 December . 16810y (6.322)
Allowances for impairment losses (Mote 38)

As at 1 January {142} {142}
Disposals 2 -
Je a1 31 December L I
Met carrying value

Az a1 1 January 14,742 15,23
As at 31 December 14,545 14,742
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software Others Total

Costidesmed cast

As a1 1 January 2017 7,688 1,128 8,816
Additions B51 121 arz
Disposals [115) (28} {153}
Asat31 December 2017 Lo A R S
Amortisation

As at 1 January 2017 (5,851) (358) 16, 20%)
Charge for the year (628) (1o7) (735)
Cisposals 50 19 69
gl ot December 2017 L o MESATRSSUI . (SRR L1
Allswances for mpairment losses (Note 38)

As at 1 January 2017 (1) (T (8
Additions = (1) (5]
Disposals 1 = 1
Ag at 31 December 2017 = (8 (]
Mot carrying value

As at 1 January 2017 1,836 T63 2,590
As at 31 December 2017 1,585 TST 2,752
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34 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Softwane Crhors Tedal

Cost'deemed cost

As at 1 January 2016 6,435 958 =2

Additions 1,307 17E 1,485

Diposals i . L.

e B bSO ... SN 1. SRR, ...

Amortisation

As at 1 January 2016 16.018) [265) 5283}

Charge for the year (=1 (28} 1856)

Disposals 25 5 a0

A A ) Oy N e e e Lsesy . Bse . e.2os)

Allowances for impairment losses (Note 38)

As at 1 January 2016 {n 7 ]

As at 31 Dacember 2016 1) Hj] (8)

Met carrying value

As at 1 January 20168 1416 BB 2,103

Az at 31 December 2016 1,836 763 2,599
35 GOODWILL

(1) The goodwill is mainly attibutable to the expected synergies arising from the acquisition of CCB Asia, CCB Brasil
and CCB Indonesia. The movement of the goodwill is listed as follows:

27 2016
As at 1 January 2,947 2,140
Addshions through aoquisitions - 566
Effect of exchange difference (196) 241
A5 at 31 December 2751 2.847

{2) Impairment test for CGLU containing goodwill

The Group calculated the recoverable amount of CGU wsing cash flow projections based on financial forecasts
approved by management, The average growth rate used by the Group is consistent with the ferecasts included in
industry reports, The discount rate usad reflects specific risks relating to the relevant segments,

Based on the result of the impairmant test. no impairment losses on gooadwill of the Group were recognised as at
31 December 2017 (as at 31 December 2016: nil).
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184 MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF RMB, UNMLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

36 DEFERRED TAX

207 206
Deferred tax assets 46,189 1,062
Deferred tax Eabilities (FEG) 1570}
Total 45,800 30,482
{1} Analysed by nature
017 206
Deductible/ Dechuctibles
(taxabla) Dieforred {taxakda) Dedemed
tempaorary tax assets tamporarny tax asseis’
differences [liabilithes) differances {liabaties)
Deferred tax assats
= Fair value adjusiments. 31,341 8,162 1.899 453
= Allcwances for impairment losses 153,278 38,023 111,883 27,952
= Early relirement benafits and accrued salaries 23,51 5814 24,749 6,188
= thers (26,160} (5,810) {17,423) 3,538)
Total 181,970 45,188 121,102 31,062
Daforrad tax liabilities
= Fair value adjusiments {1,446) (343) {2,118 (501)
- Allowances for Impaiment losses - - 28 T
_ =Cs (556) (46 sl &8
Tatal 12,002} (329) 12.524) 570
(2) Movements of deferred tax
Early
Allrwances retirament
far benefits
Fair value impairment  and accrued
. adjustments losses salaries Others Total
As at 1 January 2017 (43} 27,959 6,188 (3.612) 30,482
Recognized in profit or loss (233} 10,064 [374) (2,244} 7,213
Recogniged in other comprahensive incoma 8,095 - - - 8,005
As at 31 December 2017 7,810 38,023 5814 {5,856) 45,800
As at 1 January 2018 8.529) 31,507 5,245 4,168) 24,755
Recognised in profit or Ioss 121 (3,548) 243 556 (2,628}
Recognised in other comprehensive income 8,385 - = — B85
As at 31 December 2016 [43) 27,959 6,188 {3,612} 30,452

The Group did not have significant unrecognised deferred tax as at the end of the reporting period,
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37 OTHER ASSETS

Mate a7 2016
Repossessad assols (1)
- Buildings 1,560 1,773
- Land w=e rights 624 T45
= Riters 252 L
............. e 3T
Fee and commission receivables 9,463 782
Clearing and settlement accounts 6,065 23,4534
Leasshold improvements 3401 3,489
Deferred expenses 3,254 3,297
Policyholder account assets of insurance businass 431 5664
Cithars 40, 628 33,138
Gross balance 75,438 80,338
Allowances for impairment losses (Note 33)
- Repossessed assels {1,035) {1,062}
~Oltsns 2,987) 8278
Tatal 71416 75,998

{1) For the year endad 31 December 2017, the original cost of repossessed assets disposed of by the Group amounted to RMBEDS
millicn (for the year ended 31 December 2016 AMB1E1 million), The Group intends o dispose of repossessed assets through
vanious methods including auction, compelitive bidding and disposal.

38 MOVEMENTS OF ALLOWANCES FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

207
Charge for
As at thia year/ Transfar As at
Hate 1 January  (Write-back) fouthin Write-offs 31 December
Deposits with banks and

mon-bank financial institutions 18 66 i1 - - 57

Placements with banks and
non-bank financial institutions 20 123 {11} - - 112
Loans and advances 1o customers 25(3) 268,677 123,389 (26,107) (36,901) 328,968
Available for sale debt securities 1,308 457 57 - 1,823
Available for sale equity instrument 4,076 37 119 (30 4,472
Held-to-maturity inveatments b 2,049 413 {53 - 3,410
Irvestment classified as receivables 28 1,351 To5 (33 - 2114
Fixed assets 32 406 1 - (T8) 418
Land use nghts 33 142 - - {2) 140
Intangible assets 34 B8 1 - (1) 8
Cither assels ar 4,340 1,613 - (1,831) 4,022
Tatal 283,637 126,957 (26,016 (38,0:33) 345 545
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{EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF RMB, UNMLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

MOVEMENTS OF ALLOWANCES FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSSES (CONTINUED)

2018
Charge or
As a8l tha year’ Transler Az at
- — Hote 1danuary  (Write-back) foutlin____ Write-ofis 31 December
Deposits with banks and
non-bank financial institutions 19 T 58 - - &6
Placemants with banks and
non-bank financial institulions 20 3 a0 - [l 123
Interest raceivable 24 1 - - {1} -
Loans and advances 10 cusiomess 25(3) 250,617 85,588 {37.881) [33.647T) 268 87T
Aailabie tor sale debl securities 1.051 217 41 - 1,309
Awvailabie for sale equity ingtrument 4317 &8 {330) - 4,076
Held-to-maturity investments a7 2033 aro LU - 3.048
Imvestmant classifiad as receivables 28 1.808 (586} 28 = 1,351
Fixgd aszots a2 S0 46 {31) - 496
Land use rights 33 142 - - - 142
Intangible assets 34 a - - = 8
Other assets 37 4,562 52 = _E84) 4,040
Total 265,203 91,225 138,148) [34,645) 283,637
Transfer (out)fin includes exchange differences.
BORROWINGS FROM CENTRAL BANKS
EE—L L Ag
Mainkand China 484,657 385,375
Overseas 52,630 53,864
Taital 54T 287 433,233
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40 DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND NON-BANK FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

L1

42

(1) Analysed by type of counterparties

27 2016
Banks 149,748 413,180
Men-bank fnancial instlutions 1,187 246 1,199,845
Total 1,336,995 1,612,985

{2) Analysed by geographical sectors

AT 2016
hainland China 1,181,374 1,442,126
Overseas 185621 170868
Total 1,336,905 1,612,995

PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS AND NON-BANK FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

(1) Analysed by type of counterparties
e e ERHA
Banks 53317 297 838
Ncnbanbfﬁnmlmal |nst:tut||:m_a 30,322 24 07 o
Total 383,639 322 546

{2) Analysed by geographical sectors

2017 26
kdginland Ching 148,424 118,844
Cverseas 235,215 203,602
Tatal 383,630 322 545
FINANGIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2017 2016
Principal guaranteed wealth management products 354,362 324,443
Financial liabilities refated 19 precious metals 39,927 31,313
Structwied financial ineirunents AR 0,635
Tatal 414,148 396,591

The Group®s financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are those designated at fair value through profit or loss.
Az at the end of reporting period, the difference between the fair value of these financial liabilities and the contractual
payables at maturity is not material. Tha amounts of changes in the fair value of these financial liabilities that are
attributable to changes in credit risk are considered not significant during the year presented and cumulatively as at 31

Decambear 2017 and 2016.
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Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements by underlying assets are shown as follows:

07 2016
Securilies
- Governmant bands 63,322 167,088
- Debt securities isswed by policy banks, banks and non-bank finenclal institutions 3,632 15,640
Fulbtotss ot I i
Discounted bills 401 5,500
Cithars G924 2,382
Total 74,278 180,580
DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
2T 2016
Demand deposits
- Corporate customers 5,767 505 5,206,385

= Personal custorners

3,204,850 3,022,447

hicc o S

Time deposits {including call deposits)
= Corporate customens
= Personal customers

_AAISAeS| 826842

3,312,456 3,120,853
4,078,753 4,053,374

Subtotal

Tatal

7,381,208 7,174,073

16,363,754 15,402 315

Deposits from customers include:

27 206
(1)  Pledged deposits
= Deposits for acceptance 83,365 %8822
= Deposits for guarantes 97,050 80,930
- Deposits for letter of credit 22 491 28,264
- Oithers 200,235 313,110
Total 483,141 522,128
(2 Oubward remittance and remittance payables 20,635 14,1219
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45 ACCRUED STAFF COSTS

217
As al As at
_Note 1 January Increasad Decreasad 31 December
Salaries, bonuses, allowances and subsidies 24,813 64,274 {65, 459) 23,6248
Othar social insurancs and wallare 2,735 10,213 (8,975) 34973
Houging funds 183 6,214 (6,244) 163
Uinign running costs and empioyes education costs 2,252 2,609 (2123 2,738
Post-employment benafits 1)
= Delined contribution plans D64 12,923 {12,994) 893
- Defined benefit plans aro 25 (1.435) (440)
Early retirement banafits 1,940 76 (342 1674
Compensation to employees for termination
of employment relationship a 4 {4} 3
Tatal 33,870 96,338 187,578} 32,632
26
As at As at
Note 1 Jenuiary ncraasec Decreased 31 December
Salaries, bonuses allowances and subsidies 25,281 62,083 {62.571) 24,813
Chther social insurance and welfare 2,288 8987 8,550) 2735
Housing funds 135 6,296 15,238) 183
Union running costs and emploves education ¢osts 2123 2567 {2,438} 2.252
Post-employment benafits 1
- Dedined contribution plans 206 12,846 {12,738 64
- Drefined benefit plans: 126 B4z - arg
Early retirement benafits 2,315 1] (el 1,840
Compensation to employess for tarmination
of employment relatianship. “ 3 @ 3
Total 33,190 93,735 {93.0585) 33,870
The Group has no overdue balance of accrued staff costs as at the end of the reporting period.
{1) Post-employment benefits
@ Defined contbution plans
27
As at As at
1 January Increased Decreased 31 December
Basic pension insuranca 664 8,622 (B,&67) 580
Unemployment insurance 42 2 317 ar
Annuity contributicn 258 2,989 (2,980) 267
Tolal 964 12,923 (12,904) 893
2016
As at As al
1 January Increased Decreased 31 December
Basic pension inguwrance G35 o428 @,400) Gad
Unemployment insurance 33 485 (476} 42
Anruity contribution 238 2.882 (2812 258
Totat 06 12,846 (12,788} S
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{EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF RMB, UNMLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

45 ACCRUED STAFF COSTS (CONTINUED)
(1) Post-employment benefits (continued)
fll Defined benafit plans — Supolemeniany reliverment benefits
The Group's obligations in respect of the supplementary refirement benefits as at the end of reporting period
wera calculated wsing the projected unit credit actuarial cost method and reviewed by qualified staff (a
member of Society of Actuaries of the United States of America) of an external independent actuary: Towers,
Perrin, Forster & Crosby, Inc., Hong Kong.

Presant value of defined Fair value of Met labilities of defined
benefit plan obligations plan assels benefit plans
2017 2006 2017 2016 2017 2016
Ag at 1 January 7,13 6,664 6,161 6,536 970 128
Cost of the net definad benafit liability
In profit or loss
= Interast costs a2 186 187 183 25 a
Rermeasurarmaents of the dehined
bemefit liability in other
comprahensiva income
= Actuanal (gain)osses 15199 ag - - 519) 218
= Fetums on plan assets. _—— = SERRAT Bo. @9 B0}
Cther changes
= Bengfits pasd 1627} [&38) [827) {638 - -
- Contribution to plan asssts - - 842 - B42) -
Az at 31 December 65,197 7.131 6,637 6.161 a4 a70

Interest cost was recognised in other general and administrative expenses,

@  Prncipal actuanal assumptions of the Group as at the end of reporting perod are as follows:

: 207 2016
Descount rate 4.00% 3.00%
Health care cost increasa rata T.00% T.00%
Average expacied future lifetima of eligible employesas 12.4 years 12.8 years

Mortality assumptions are based on China Life Insurance Moriality Table (2010-2013). The Table
published historical statistics in China,

fi}  The sensitivity of the present vatue of supmlameantary relirament benafit obligations to changes in the

waighted principal assumption is:
Impact on present value of
supplementary retirement
benafit obligations
Increase in Decrease in
assumplion assurmption
by 0.25% by 0.25%
Discount rate (121) 125
Health care cost increasa rate 45 (44}

filf  As at 31 December 2017, the weighted average duration of supplementary refirement benefit
obiigations of the Group is 7.9 years (As at 31 December 2016: 8.7 years),
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45 ACCRUED STAFF COSTS (CONTINUED)
(1) Post-employment benefits (continued)
(&) Defined benefit plans — Supplermentary retirement benelits foontinuved)
fivl  Plan assefs of the Group are as follows!

0 S 2017 2016
Cash and cash eguivalents 411 1,185
Equaty instrurmnents 532 asg
Debt instruments 5,557 4,522
Others 137 a5
Telal 6,837 B.161
46 TAXES PAYABLE
2017 2018
Incorme tax 44,350 35,526
Busingss tax - BB
Value added tax T.548 T.039
Chers. 2,188 2 087
Tatal 54,106 44,900
47 INTEREST PAYABLE
2T 2016
Daposits from customens 175,126 185,018
Deposits fram banks and non-bank financial ingtiutions 7,550 15,808
Debis secunties issued 2,307 2312
Others _ 14505 8,198
Tatal 190,588 211,330
48 PROVISIONS
2017 2016
Litigation prowisions 2,948 2,292
Cithers 7635 6,584
Total 10,581 9,276
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49 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

Mote 2017 2016
Cartificates of deposit issusd m 321,366 198,008
Baonds isswed 2 71,31 ariea
Subordinated bonds issued 3 144,808 145,599
Elipits Tiue & copitel bordg lssued. @ 58931 50,784
Taotal 506, 526 451,554

{1} Cerilicates of deposit wera mainly issusd by head offics, sverssas branches and Sino-German Bausparkassa.

2] Bonds issued

Issue date Maturity date Interest rate per annum Igsue place Currency 2017 2016
2014-04- 2017-04-01 2.375% Hong Kang s - 2,085
2014-05-28 2019-05-28 1.375% Switzerand CHF 2,002 2.047
2014-06-27 2017-06-27 3.45% Switzerdand BMEBE = 1,280
2014-07-02 2019-07-02 3,250 Hang Kang s 3,904 4,170
2014-08-05 2017-09-05 3.35% Taiwar RME - BOO
2014-08-05 2019-09-05 3.75% Tabwan BMEB &00 B00
2014-08-05 2021-09-05 4.00% Taiwan RMB E00 GO0
2014-11-18 2019-11-18 3.75% Taiwan RME 1,000 1,000
2014-11-18 2021-11-18 3.95% Taiwan BME 1,000 1,000
2014-11-18 2024-11-18 4.08% Talwan RMBE B00 OO
2015-01-20 2020-01-20 3.125% Hang Kang usD 4,555 4,885
2015-02-11 2020-02-11 1.50% Luxembaurg ELUR 3,902 3,855
2015-06-18 2018-06-18 43179 Apchiand HZD 23 a0
2015-06-18 2018-06-18 4,300 Auckiand WZD T T
2015-06-18 2020-06-18 3 month New Auckiand HNZD 115 120

Zealand benchmark
irerest rate+1,2%

2015-07-18 2018-06-18 3.935% Auckiznd NZD [ 72
2015-07-28 2020-07-28 3.25% Hang Kang uso 3,253 3,475
2015-08-10 2019-09-10 3.045%% Ausckiand BED 57 59
2015-089-18 2016-08-18 3 month Sydney AUD 2,031 2,003

Australia benchmark

interest rata +1.15%
2015-10-189 2017-10-18 4.30%% London RMB = 890
2015-11-26 2017-11-26 4.00% Hang Kang RMB - 1,000
2015-12-07 2018-09-18 3 month Australia Sydney AL 15 15

benchmark interast

rate+1.15%
2015-12-29 2020-01-27 3.80% Auckiand WD 82 98
2016-03-30 2026-03-30 4.08%  Maindand China BMBE 3,500 3,500
2016-05-16 2019-05-16 310% Auckland WZD a7 48
2016-08-31 2018-058-31 2.38% Haong Kong UsD 1,434 ST
2016-05-31 2021-05-31 2.750% Hang Keng usD 1,967 1,834
2016-08-18 2020-09-18 2.85% Agckiand MNED 475 496
2016-10-18 2030-10-18 3.05% Ausckiand NZD T T
2016-10-21 2021-10-21 22506 Hang Kong UsD 1,757 4.8B5
2016-11-09 2018-11-08 3.05%  Mainfand China FRMB 3,200 4,000
2016-11-09 2021-11-08 3.05%  Maintand China RMB 800 1.000
2016-12-22 2018-12-22 3.355% Auckland NZD 46 48
2017 -02-17 2020-02-17 0.63% Lurembourg EUA 3,902 -
2017-05-05 2022-07-26 Senior Tranche A Maintand China RMB 1,012 =

CNLA1Y+0.18%

Senior Tranche B:

CNLRA1Y+0.64%
201 7-05-31 2020-05-29 IMLIBOR0. 7T % Hang Keng s 7,808 -
20 7-06-13 2022-06-13 2.75% Hang Keng s 3,904 -
2007 -08=04 2018-02-05 1.87% Hong Keng Ush 163 =
2017-08-27 2019-09-27 2.37% Hang Kong Ush 488 -
2017-10-25 2022-10-25 3.15% Heong Keng sl 651 =
2017-10-25 2020-10-27 2.20% Hong Kong UsD T8 =
2017-10-26 2020-10-26 2.08% Singapore S60 2,432 -
2017-11-09 2022-11-08 3.93% Auckland MNZO 692 =
2017-12-04 2080-12-04 2.29% Hang Kong LsD 5,205 =
2017-12-04 2020-12-04 2.75% Hang Kong usD 3,253 -
2017-12-04 2022-12-04 2.00% Heng Keng LsD 2,603 -
2017-12-22 2018-12-21 35559 Hong Kong UsD 2,798 =
Total nominal value 72,255 47.405
Less: unamortisad issuance costs {924) [242)
Carrying value as at 31 Dacember 71331 47.163
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49 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (CONTINUED)

13

]

{a)

L]

=]

Subordinated bonds issued

The carrying value of the Group's subordinated bonds issued upon the approval of the PBOC, the CBRC, the HKMA and Brasil
Central Bank is as follpws:

Issue dale Maturity date Interest rale per annwum Currency Mota 2017 2016
2009-02-24 2024-02-26 4.00% AVB i) 28,000 28,000
2009-08-07 2024-08-11 4,00 % AMB 1} 10,000 10,000
2008-11-03 2018-11-04 Benchmark rate released by BRL (c} 383 427
Brasil Central Bank

2008-12=-18 2024=-12-22 4.80% RMB d) 20,000 20,000
H010-04-27 2020-04-27 8500 ush 1] 1,713 1,883
2010-07-30 2017-10-15 7.31% usD ic) - i)
2011=11=03 2026=11-07 s.70% RMB (&) 40,000 0,000
2012-11-20 20T-11-22 4,009 BMB i 40,000 40,000
2014-08-20 2024-08-20 4.25% uso {g) 4880 5212
Total nominal valus 144,086 145,744
Less: Unamontised issuance cost (BE) {145)
Carrying value as al 31 December 144,608 145,598

{8}  The Group has an option to redeem the bonds on 26 February 2019, If they are not redeemed by the Group, the interest
rate will increase 1o 7.00% per annum from 26 February 2012 for the next five vears.

{o}  The Group has an option to redeem the bonds on 11 August 2019, i they are not redeamed by the Group, the interest rate
will increase to T.04% per annum from 11 August 2019 for the next five yaars.

{c}  The subordinated bonds ware issued by BIC, including a bond expired on 15 October 2017,

{d}  The Group has an option to redeem the bonds on 22 Decembar 2019, If they are not redeemed by the Group, the interest
rate will ingreage to 7.80% per annum from 22 Decembar 2019 for the next g vaars,

{83  The Group has an option to redesmn the bonds on 7 November 2021, subject to an aporoval from relevant authonty.
f  The Group has an option to redeem the bonds on 22 Novemnber 2022, subject to an approval from relevant authosity.

{g]  The Group has an option to redeem the bonds on 20 August 2019, subject to an approval from ralevant authosity.

Elgibde Tier 2 capital bonds issued

lssue date Maturity date Interest rate per annum Currency Mote 2017 2016
2014-08-15 2020-08-18 £.98% RMB (a) 20,000 20,000
2014-11-12 2024-11-12 4.90% RME {11} 2,000 2,000
2015-05-13 2025-05-13 3.875% uso L] 13,014 13,889
2015-12-18 2025-12-21 4.00% AMB 1 24,000 24,000
Tatal nominal valug 58,014 55,854
Less: Unamonised issuancs cost (B3 {115}
Carrying value as at 31 December 58,931 58,784

The Group has an oplion to redeemn the bonds on 18 August 2024, subject to an approval from relevant authority, Thege eligible
Tigr 2 capital bonds have the wiite-down leature of a Tier 2 capital instrurment, which allows the Bank 1o write down the antire
principal of the bonds when a regulatory trigger event occurs, Any accumulated unpaid interest will not be paid, either,

The Group has an oplion to redeem the bonds on 12 Movember 2019, subfect to an approval from relevant authority. If they are
ned redeemed by the Group, the interest rate per annum will increase by 1.538% on the basis of twelve months CNH HIBOR
applicable on the interest resat date from 12 November 2013 for the next five years, these aligible Tier 2 capital bonds have the
write-down featurs of a Tier 2 capital instrument, which allows the Bank to write down the entive principal of the bonds when a
regulatory trigger event occurs. Any accumulated unpaid interest will not be paid, either,

The Group has an oplion to redeern the bonds on 13 May 2020, subject to an approval from relevant authority. If they are not
redeemed by the Group, the interest rate will be raset on 13 May 2020 and increass by 2. 425% on the basis of five years USD
treasury benchmark applicable on the interest reset date. These eligibla Tier 2 capital bonds have the write-down feature of a Tier
2 capital instrumeni, which allows the Bank to write down ihe entire principal of the bonds when a regulatory irigger event ocours.
Any accunulated ungaid interest will not be paid, either,

The Group has an option to redeem the bonds on 21 December 2020, subject to an approval from relevant authority. Thess
eligible Tier 2 capital bonds have the wiite-down feature of a Tier 2 capital instrument, which aliows the Bank to write down the
entire pancipal of the bonds when a regulatery trigger event ccours, Any accumulated unpaid interest will not be paid, sither.
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50 OTHER LIABILITIES

Uk 2018
Irsurance related liabilities 112914 95,892
Clearing and setlement accounts 16,136 L
Payment and collection clearance accounts 13,966 3180
Deferred incomse 11,731 11,473
Capital expenditure payable 9,552 10,388
Cash pledged and rental income received in advance 8,887 8,259
Dormant accounts 5,032 4.501
Accrusd expansas 3382 3.074
Cthars 53,145 29,508
Total 234,765 167,252

51 SHARE CAPITAL

27 2016
Listed in Hong Kong (H share) 240,417 240,417
Listed in Mainiand China (& share) 0,504 9,584
Tatal 250,011 250,011

All H and A shares are ordinary shares, have a par value of RMB1 per share and rank pari passu with the same rights and
benafits,

52 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
(1) Preference shares outstanding as at the end of the reporting period

Total amount
Iratinl Original
interest  Issue Cuantity  Currency Maturity  Conversion

Praference shares Isswe date  Classification rale  peice {millican) [usd) (RME] date conditions
2015 Ceftshone Preterenca 16 Decernber - Equity 465% 520 por 152.5 3050 19,711 Momaturfy Nona

Shares 2015 insinaments shue date
01T Domestic Profanence 21 Decormbar  Exquity 4.75%  RAMEIN0 600 G000 MNomatwity  Nona
__ Shares T instruments [per shary date
Less: leginante foa 75}
Carmying amount 79,6838
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52 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
{2) The key terms
@ Offshore Freferance Shares

)

fii}

fisip

Dividend

The initial annual dividend rate is 4.65% and s subsequently subject to reset per agreement, but in no
case shall exceed 20.4850%. The dividend is measured and paid in dollars. After such dividend being
paid at the agreed dividend payout ratio, the holders of the above offshore preference shares shall not
be entitled to share in the distribution of the remaining profits of the Bank together with the holders of
the erdinary shares, The dividends for offshore preference shares are non-cumulative, The Bank shall
be entitled to cancel any dividend for the offshore preference shares, and such cancellation shall not
be deemed a default. However, until the Bank fully pays the dividends for the current dividend period,
the Bank shall not make any dividend distribution to ordinary shareholders.

Redemytion

Subject to receiving the prior approval of CBRC and satisfaction of the redemplion conditions
precedant, all or some only of the Offshore Preference Shares may be redeamead at the discretion of
the Bank on 16 December 2020 or on any dividend payment date thereafter at the redemption price
which is equal to issue price plus dividends payable but not yet distributed in current pericd.

Compulsory convarsion of prefevence shares

When an Additional Tier 1 Capital Instrument Trigger Event occurs, that is Core Tier 1 Capital
Adequacy Ratio of the Bank falling to 5.125% (or below), the Bank ghall (without the need for the
consent of offshore preference shareholders) convert all or some only of the preference shares in
issue into such number of H shares which will be sufficient to restore the Bank's Core Tier 1 Capital
Adequacy Ratio to above 5.125% aceording to contract; When a Tier 2 Capital Instrument Trigger
Event occurs, the Bank shall iwithout the need for the consent of offshore preference shareholders)
convert all of the offshore preference shares in issue inte such number of H shares according to
cantract, Tier 2 Capital Instrumeant Trigger Event is defined as the earlier of: (i) the CBRC having
decided that without a conversion or write-off the Bank would becoma non-viable: and (i) the relevant
authorities having decided that a public sector injection of capital or equivalent support is necessary,
without which the Bank would become non-viable, Onge a preference share has been converted, it will
nat be resterad in any circumstances, When the compulsory conversion of offshore preference shares
occurs, the Bank shall report to the CBRC for approval and decision.

& Domestic Preference Shares

fi

(i}

Divicland

The nominal dividend rate of the Domestic Preference Shares is adjusted on a phase-by-phase basis.
It is the sum of the benchmark rate plus the fixed interest spread, and is adjusted every five years. The
fixad interest spread is determined as the nominal dividend rate set for issuance less the benchmark
rate at the time of issuance, and will not be subject to future adjustments, The dividends for domestic
prafarence shares are non-cumulative. The Bank has the right to cancel dividend distribution on
Domestic Preference Shares. and the cancellation does not constitute a default event. The Bank may,
at its discretion, use the cancelled dividends to repay other indebtedness due and payable. If the
Bank cancels all or part of the dividends on the Domestic Preference Shares, the Bank shall make no
profit distribution to shareholders holding ordinary shares from the day after the canceliation proposal
is adopted by the General Shareholders” Meeting to the day when full distribution of dividends is
resumed. The cancellation of dividends on Domestic Preference Shares will not constitute other
restrictions to the Bank excapt for the distribution of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The dividends on the Domestic Preferance Shares are distributed annually.

Redemption

The Bank may, subject to CBRC Approval and compliance with the Redemption Preconditions,
redeam in whola or in part of the Domestic Preference Shares after at least five years from the
completion date of the issuance (iLe., 27 Decamber 2017). The redemption period begins fram the first
day of the redemption and ends on the day when all Domestic Preference Shares are redeemed or

converted. The redemption price of the Domestic Preference Shares shall be their issue price plus any
dividends accrued but unpaid in the curment period,
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52 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(2) The key terms {continued)
il Domestic Preference Shares feontinveal
i}  Compulsory conversion of preference shares

If an Additional Tier 1 Capital Instrument Trigger Event occurs, i.e., the Core Tier 1 Capital Adequacy
Ratio of the Bank has fallen to 5.125% or below, the Bank has the right to, without prior consent from
the shareholders of the Domestic Preference Shares and as agreed, convert all or part of the Domeastic
Preference Shares issued and cutstanding to ordinary A shares, 1o restore the Bank's Core Tier 1
Capital Adeguacy Ratio to above the trigger point (i.g., 5,125%). In the case of partial conversion, the
Domestic Preference Shares shall be subject to the same proportion and conditions of conversion.
Once Domestic Preference Shares are converted to ordinary A shares, they shall not be converted
back to preference shares under any circumstances.

When a Tier 2 Capital Instrument Trigger Event occurs, the Bank has the right to, without prior consent
of the shareholders of the Domestic Praferance Sharas and as agreed, corwert all tha Damaestic
Preference Shares issued and outstanding to ordinary A shares. Once Domestic Preference Shares
are converted to ordinary A shares, they shall not be converted back to preference shares under any
circumstances, A Tier 2 Capital Instrument Trigger Event is the earlier of the following two scanarios:
(1) the CBRC having decided that without a conversion or write-off of the Bank's capital the Bank
would become non-viable; and (2} the relevant authorities having decided that a public sector injection
of capital or equivalent support is necessary, without which the Bank would become non-viable.
When the compulsory conversion of preference shares occours, the Bank shall report to the CBRC

for approval and decision, and perform the announcement obligation according to the regulations of
Securities Act and CSRC.

The Bank classifies preference shares issued as an equity instrument and presented as an equity item
on statements of financial position. Capital raised from the issuance of the above preference shares,
after deduction of the expenses relating to the issuance, was wholly used 1o replenish the Bank's
additional tier 1 capital and to increase its capital adequacy ratio.

(3) Changes in Preference shares outstanding

1 January 2017 Increase 31 December 2017
Amount Amount Amount
[rmilion Carrying {million Carrying {rrkllien Carryirg
Proference Shares shares) value shares) value shares) value
2015 Ofishore Preference
Shares 1525 19,659 - = 162.5 19,659
2017 Domestic Preferance
Sharas - - GOO 59,977 600 58,977
Tatal 152.5 19,659 600 59.977 752.5 79,636

4) Interests attributable to the holders of equity instruments

fems 207 2018
1. Total equity altrbutable to equity holders of the Bank 1,779,760 1,576,500
(1] Equity attributable 10 ordinary equity holders of the Bank 1,700,124 1,556,841
& Eguity attributable 1o other equity holders of the Bank 79,635 18,659
Of which: net profit 1,045 1.067
devidends recaived 1,045 1.087
2. Total equity attrbutable to non-controlling nterests 16,067 13,154
(1) Equity attributable 1o non-controlling interesis of ordinery shares 12,645 13,154
) Equity attributable to non-controlling interests of other equity instuments 3422 -
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217 2016
Share pramiurm 134,537 134,543
Cash flow hedge resende 320 {150}
Others e e
Tatal 135,225 133,960
54 INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE
The changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets were recognised in “investment revaluation resere”.
Movements of investment revaluation reserve are as follows:
2017
Before-tax  Tax (expense)/ Net-of-tax
amaunt benefit amount
As at 1 January L . .78
(LossesiGains during the year
- Dbt sacurities (39,394) 9,541 (29,853)
- Equity instrumients and funds 1,806 {a74) 1,422
Reclassification adjustments
= Impairment T4 {191} 573
- Disposals 4,048 (1,012 3,006
= Others (274) -] (206
4,538 l.“l_.ﬂﬂ} : 3,403
As at 31 December (34,341) 8337 (26,004)
2016
Bafore-tax  Tax (papenss)/ Met-of-lax
amaunt barefit amount
ASBVIIWATY oottt oot s eSO TS 23,058
Lossas during the year
= Debt sacurities {20,531} 5.228 [15.,303)
- Equity mstruments and funds (6,401} 1,600 14,801)
(26.933) 6.828 (20,104)
Reclassification adjustments
= Impairmnent J0E {77l 229
__~Disposals (5,546} 1287 (4.159)
~[5.240) 1,310 {3,830
As at 31 December {1,381} 405 (ara)
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55 SURPLUS RESERVE

Surplugs reserves consist of statutory surplus reserve fund and discretionary surplus reserve fund.

The Bank is required to allocate 10% of its net profit, as determined under the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises and other relevant requirements issued by the MOF on 15 February 2006. After making appropriations to the
statutory surplus resarve fund, the Bank may also allocate its net profit to the discretionary surplus resarve fund upon
approval by shareholders in annual general meetings.

56 GENERAL RESERVE
The general reserva of tha Group as at the end of the reporting period is st up based upon the requirameants of:

Mate 2017 2016
MOF () 254,104 205,933
Haong Kong Banking Ordinanca 2 2,124 2124
Other ragulatory bodies in Masnland China (3 2,868 2,548
Other overseas ragulatory bodies 586 590
Tatal 250,660 211,193

1) Pursuant to ralevant regulations issued by the MOF, the Bank has to appropriate a certain amoun of its net peofit as ganeral
reserve (o cover potential losses againset its assets. In accordance with the *‘Regulation on Management of Financial Institutions
for Raserves’ (Cai Jin [2012] No. 20), issued by the MOF on 30 March 2012, the general resarve balance for financial institutions
should not be lower than 1.5% of the ending balance of gross risk-bearing assets.

{2 Pursuant to requirements of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance, the Group's banking operations in Hong Kong are required to
sof aside armownts in a regulatory resarve i respact of lessas whach it will, or may, incur on loans and advances (o customers,
in addition to impairment losses recognised in accordance with the accounting policies of the Growp. Transfers to and from the
riguiatory reserve are made through retained earmings.

3 Pursuant to the relevant regulatesy requirements in Masnland China, the Bank’s subsidiaries are required to appropriate a certain
amount of its net profit as genseral resarve.

57 PROFIT DISTRIBUTION
I the Annual General Meeting held on 15 June 2017, the shareholders approved the profit distribution for the year ended
31 December 2016. The Bank appropriated cash dividend for the yvear ended 31 December 2016 in an aggregate amount
of RMBES,503 million,

In the Board of Directors” Meeting held on 15 .June 2017, the directors approved the payment of dividends to offshore
praference shareholders. Calculated by the initial dividend rate before the first call date which is in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the offshore preferance shares and equals to 4.65% (after tax), the dividends payments
amounted to RMB1 045 million yuan (including tax). The dividend payment date was 18 December 2017,

On 27 March 2018, Board of Directors proposed the following profit distribution scheme for the yvear ended 31
December 2017:

(1) Appropriate statutory surplus reserve amounted to RMB23,168 million, based an 10% of the net profit of the Bank
amounted to RMB231 680 million for the year 2017 (2016: RMB22 413 million). |t has been recorded in “Surplus
reserve” as at the end of the reporting period.

{2)  Appropriate general reserve amounted to BMB13,943 million, pursuant to relevant reguiations issued by MOF
[2016: AMB34 228 million).

{3) Appropriate cash dividend RMB0.291 per share before tax (2016: RMB0.278 per share) and in aggregation
amount of RMBT27,53 million to all shareholders. Proposed dividends as at the end of the reporting period are not
recognised as a liability.

Above proposad profit distribution scheme is subject to the approval of shareholders in the Annual General Meeting,
Cash dividends will be distributed to all shareholders registered at the relevant date upon approval.
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58 NOTES TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash and cash equivalents
27 2016
Cagh 73,876 73,296
Surplus deposit resarves with central banks 200,080 183, Ted
Demand deposits with banks and non-baenk financial instiutions 80,910 60,921
Deposits with banks and non-bank financial institutions with original maturity
with ar within threa months 58,220 229 622
Placaments with banks and non-bank financial institutions with original maturity
waﬂ'l_ar '.wmir! thrae n_'fc!n!hs ﬂ"?ﬁ'&_ 51521
Tatal 571,239 599,124

59 TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters into transactions in the normal course of business by which it transfers recognised financial assets to
third parties or to structured enfities, In some cases where these transfers may give rise to full or partial derecognition of
the financial assets concerned. In other cases where the fransferred assets do not qualify for derecognition as the Group
has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of these assets, the Group continued to recognise the transferred
assets.

Securities Lending Transactions

Transferred financial assels that do not gualify for derecagnition mainly include debt securities lent to counterparties
under securities lending agreements. The counterparties are allowed to sell or repledge those securities lent under
agreements to repurchase in the absence of default by the Group, but has an obligation to return the securities at

the maturity of the contract. The Group has determined that it retains substantially all the risks and rewards of these
securities and therefore has not derecognized them, As at 31 December 2017, the carrying value of debt securities lent
to counterparties was AMB35,938 million (as at 31 December 2016: RMB36,57 7 million).

Credit Assets Securitisation Transactions

The Group enters into securitisation fransactions in normal course of business by which it transfers credit assets

to structured entities which issue asset-backed securities to investors, The Group retains interests in the form

of subordinated tranches which would give rise to the Group's cantinuing invelvement in the fransferred assets.,
Those financial assets are recognised on the statement of financial positions to the extent of the Group's continuing
imvalvemeant.

As at 31 December 2017, loans with an original carrying amount of RMB153,397 million {as at 31 December 2016:
RMBE9,530 million) have been securtized by the Group under arangaments in which the Group retained a continuing
imvalvermant in such assets. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amaount of assets that the Group continued to
recognise was RMB13,375 million {as at 31 December 2016: RMBS,156 million). The carrying amount of continuing
involvement assets and liabilities that the Group continued to recognize was RMB13,352 million as at 31 Decemiber 2017
(as at 31 December 2016; RMB5,216 million).

60 OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group has presented the operating segments in a manner consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s chief operating decision makers for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment. Measurement of segmeant assets and habilities and sagment income and results is based on the Group's
accounting policies.

Transactions between segments are conducted under normal commercial terms and conditions. Internal charges and
transfer prices are determined with reference to market rates and have been reflected in the performance of each
segrment. MNat interest income and expense arising from internal charges and transfer pricing adjustments are referred
to as “internal net interest income/expensa”. Interest income and expense eamed from third parties are referred to as
“external net interest income/expense”™.

Segment revenues, results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Segment income and resulls are determined befare intra-group transactions are
aliminated as part of the consolidation process. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period
to acquire fixed assats, intangible assets and other long-term assets.
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60 OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)
{1} Geographical segments

The Group operates principally in Mainland China with branches covering all provinces, autonomous regions
and municipalities directly under the central government, and several subsidiaries located in Mainland China.
The Group alzo has bank branch operations in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan, Singapore, Frankfurt, Johannesburg,
Tokyo, Seoul, New York, Sydney, Ho Ghi Minh City, Luxembourg, Teronto, Lendon, Zurich, Dubai, Ghile and
certain subsidianes operating in Hong Kong, London, Moscow, Luxembourg, British Virgin islands, Auckland,
Jakarta, San Paulo and Kuala Lumnpus.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, operating income is allocated based on the
location of the branches and subsidiaries that generate the income. Segment assets, liabilities and capital
expenditure are allocated based on their geographical location.

Geographical segments of the Group, as defined for management reporting purposes, are defined as follows:

- “Yangtze River Delta” refers to the following areas where the tier-1 branches and the subsidiaries of the
Bank operate; Shanghai Municipality, Jiangsu Province, Zhejiang Province, City of Ningbo and City of
Suzhou;

- “Pearl River Delta” refars to the following areas where the tier-1 branches of the Bank operate: Guangdong
Province, City of Shanzhen, Fujian Province and City of Xiamen,

- “Bohai Rim" refers to the following areas where the tier-1 branches and the subsidiaries of the Bank operate:
Beijing Municipality, Shandong Province, Tianjin Municipality, Hebei Province and City of Qingdag;

- the “Ceantral” region refers to the following areas whera the fier-1 branches and the subsidiaries of the Bank
operate: Shanxi Province, Guangxi Autonomous Region, Hubei Province, Henan Province, Hunan Province,
Jiangxi Province, Hainan Province and Anhui Province,

- the "Western" region refers to the following areas where the tier-1 branches and the subsidiaries of the Bank
aperate; Sichuan Province, Chongging Municipality, Guizhou Province, Yunnan Province, Tibet Autonomaous
Region, Inner Mangaolia Autonomaous Region, Shaansi Province, Gansu Province, Qinghai Province, Mingxia
Autonomous Region and Xinjlang Autonomous Region; and

- the “Northeastern” region refers to the following areas where the tier-1 branches and the subsidiaries of the
Bank operate; Liaoning Provinee, Jilin Province, Heilongjiang Province and City of Dalian,
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60 OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)
(1) Geographical segments [continued)

ar
Yangize Foat
S Fiver Dulta  FiwerDela  Bchai Rim Lantral Western  Horfeasiern  Head Oiice Creerseas Total
Extemal net nleses! income B8 L] 3518 Erers 53586 rk.i] 186354 15438 45245
Irfemal nal inléees? ingomafexpensa) pelin] i JLER 20 25835 T1.57% {136,705 [E52R -
Mel interest income TATEE 3,7 TEi5 B2 TasH 23866 50248 e 45245
M fize and comimission inooma 17085 15,584 e 16872 11383 3813 .70 295 17788
Pt trading ganoss) 1022 1,567 6T 362 407 18 1383 2066 4555
Divicdend income 1288 ] - 18 11 - 45 4457 215
Med gain/fines) exising from imvesiment
Seies 48 - 5 658 ] - {2545 53 (B335
(thes opeefing income, net 5 40 1569 561 2525 143 134 8413 17,55
Dpriling vicoun L RI® BMR WM WM MW 01T BAN Ban S
Crpersting xpensay f25.727) [#1,428) (26,204 [0 t404 [27.754) [11,324) V6745 e T 1A, <
Impairment bosses (13724 [T6.8TT) (31377 21,565 (20,558 (4.2 By Ry enaed
Sears of peofit of assooates and
ol venfures - - - Wl - - - L] ]
Profit bafore tax 529 4149 314 45106 45,837 2450 53,357 AL 99787
Capitl expendituee 1852 1816 165 2645 2005 1,054 15687 6209 B125
Drepraciation ard emorisaton 2581 1,750 3168 334 2704 1417 1624 ] 1T A4
a7
Sagmment assits ABETHGE  BATOOBE  AD16E80 A0SEISS MR 1A00M8  RATISAT  1TZEEE1 MLGGRE
Infaresty in assocsnes and it venures 1 - - 4004 - - - 2 T.067
ARETSE  BATHIGE  AMERE) ADGADS  ADMAE  LID031E  BATIBY T NBN0NS
Diefeemed tan assats 418
Ebminztion 8562074
Tokal assety RN
Sagerent kabdtiss ARTSITE  A4TAMI  ABATSIE  A06EA00 303501 1090000 7050550  1EMATES 200003
Diefiamed tax fabdites ]
EBrnation (REGLOT1)
Totn Bablities 2, 125.556
Off-balanca shaet credd commiimants B0 582 422504 THT 363 4 45 508 155,452 = pL LA 2,009,172

China Construction Bank Corpaoration Annual Roport 2017

325/396



EDINETOOOO
O0OO00000000000(Eees972)
Oooooooa

212 MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF RME, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

60 OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)
(1) Geographical segments [continued)

Fuil

Yanglze Pearl
FiverDofta  Pver Doila Bokai Fim Certral Westem  Notheastem  Haad (fice Cvorsags Tosal
Exdemal nel interest income 40,351 36858 M 45352 aha ns7 101503 LT AT
Infemet netinterest incomefeipense). T oEE WS AW Bdm 2R (sasE R
et interest income BaAs B3 40 1000 ThAGh T4 201M arasr 58 F L
Nt Fids 3 Eommataon inoome 1T4% 16252 18,581 as 1230 ] 24865 fed v 115509
Mt trasfing o icas) 388 517 i8E 12 o % 161 248 L
[evickend ncome 1908 5 1 i 2 . i T 2558
et gaen ansing bom invesimen] securtes = . = 501 ] . BTED -] 11088
Cther operating ncomatiepanse), red 1 -] 1812 ] 2957 = [hi] 2h 5821
i SOOI UV RO 2. SRR 3 OO« ORI~ SUOTIER . .+ SOOI IO, .
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Depraciation and amortisation 24 162 2T fedied ZARY 1280 1874 T3 7
— e
Segment asses IZTAM 2344 2158 32N ZTRTE SBEET0  BASEERR  1SRAME  MSAITE
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Totel amsets HSATE
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60 OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

(2

Business segments
Business sagments, as defined for management reporting purposes, are as follows:
Corporate bankilg

This segment represents the provision of a range of financial products and services to corporations, government
agencies and financial institutions. The products and services include corporate Inans, trade financing, depaosit
taking and wealth management services, agency services, financial consulting and advisory services, cash
management services, remittance and settlement services, custody services and guarantee services, efc.

Personal banking

This segment represents the provision of a range of financial products and services to individual customers. The
products and services comprise personal loans, deposit taking and wealth management services, card business,
remittance services and agency services, etc.

Treasury busingss

This segment covers the Group's freasury operations. The treasury enters inte inter-bank money market
transactions, repurchase and resale transactions, and invests in debt secunties, It also trades in dervatives
and foreign currancy for its own account. The treasury carries out customer-driven derivatives, fareign currancy
and precious metal trading. Its function also includes the management of the Group’s overall liquidity position,
including the issuance of debt securities,

Others

These represent equity investments and the revenues, results, assets and liabilities of overseas brancheas and
subsidiaries.
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60 OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)
(2) Business segments (continued)

2007
Corporate Personal Treasury

S banking banking business Others Total
Extarnal nat interest income 150,924 101,139 173,958 26,435 452 456
Intarrial nat intengst incomeexpense) 73,083 74,348 (139,562) (7.875) -
Net interest income 224,007 175,487 34,408 18,558 452 458
Mt fee and commission ncome 30,739 61,298 19,850 6,911 117,798
Met trading {loss)gain (6,128) {1,357 11,687 656 4,858
Dividend income - - - 2,195 2,195
Met gaindloss) ansing from investment

gacurities - - 681 {1,516) (835)
Ciher operating {axpense)income, net {556) 526 [roo) 18,289 17,550
Operatingincome | 246062 295084 5924 4A0e1 504031
Operating expenses 158,291} (63,839 (9,562) (14,331) (167,043)
Impaimment lossas [106,047) (14.378) [1,725) (5.211) (127, 362)
Share of profit of associates and

juim_varrt_ures - - - 'I_B‘I 161
Profit before tax B2, 724 137,738 54,617 24,710 299,787
Capital expenditura 5,110 7874 B49 11,182 25,125
Depreciation and amortization 5701 B8.8a9T 847 1,568 17,414

2017
Segment gssets 6,837,261 5,477,252 8,475,603 1,648,535 22,338,741
Interests in associates and joint venturas - - - T.DET 7067
6,837,281 BATT. 262 8,475,693 1,050,602 22,345,808

Deferrad tax assats 456,180
Elimination (267 514)
Total assats 22,124,383
Segment labilities 10,072,832 7,502,694 900,534 2,119,721 20,595,781
Deferrad tax liabikties 38
Elimiration (267.614)
Taotal llabilities 20,328,556
CHi-balance sheet cradit commitments 2,016,432 761,613 - 251,127 3,029,172
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60 OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)
(2) Business segments (continuad)

2016
Corporate Personal Treasury
__________ - - banking Banking business Crhers Total
External net interest incomea 165,280 62814 171,382 18,223 417,798
Intamal net intengst incomeexpensa) 52,430 95,564 {141,946 16,48} -
Net interest income 217,710 158,478 20,438 121475 417,788
et hee and commission incoma 33,038 60426 21,352 3,623 118,508
Met trading (lossiaain {7.075) 673 8,601 1,576 3,975
Dividend income - - - 2,558 2,558
et gain arising from investment securities - - 8,066 2,032 11,058
Ciher oparating {expense)incoma, nat (58] (258) 9,898 (3,763} 5821
OOWHIRICOME s e SoNS | 2V00EY 78608 02Ty BEOEE0
Cparating expenses {59,923} (BB.565) (10.,179) (12,844} {171,515}
Impairment losses 1B5,353) {1,483 (2,466) (3,582) (293,204}
Share of profit of associates and
joint venturas - = = &8 L]
Praofit before tax 98,339 120,269 66,008 1,604 295,210
Capital expandibura 5,378 B.040 1,085 11,828 27,140
Dapreciation and amartization 5.014 B.433 1.021 1.549 16017
S — :a:l ! B et et e et At it
Segment agsets 7.064,785 4,522 379 8,185,103 1,564,748 21,347,026
Interests in associates and point venturas - - - 7,318 v.a18
7,064,735 4,522,370 8,195,103 1,672,067 21,354,344
Defarred tax assats 31,082
Elimination {421,701}
Total assets 20,963,705
Sagmant liabilities 9,780,981 TA68,.317 B34.843 2,000,961 19,795,182
Diforrad tax liabikties 570
Elimination {421,701}
Total lisbdities 18,374,051
Off-balance sheat cradit commitments 1.917.363 647,498 - 159,665 2,724,526
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61 ENTRUSTED LENDING BUSINESS

At the balance sheet date, the amounts of the entrugted loans and funds were as follows:

ol 2016

Entrusted lcans 2,736,842 2,358,103

Entrugsted funds 2,736,842 2,398,103

62 PLEDGED ASSETS
(1) Assets pledged as security
@l Camping valie of pledged assels analysed by assa! lype

2017 2016

Discounted bits 401 5,500

Bonds 628,172 655,915

Others 6,924 2,352

Tolal BI5,497 683, TET

(2) Collateral accepted as securities for assets

The Group conducts resale agreements under usual and customary terms of placements, and holds collateral
for these transactions, As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, the Group did not hald any collateral for resale
agreements, which it was permitted to sell or repledge in the absence of default for the transactions.

63 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(1) Credit commitmeants

Credit commitmeants take the form of undrawn loan facilities which are approved and contracted, unutilised credit
card limits, financial guarantees, letters of credit, ete. The Group assesses and makes allowance for any probable
losses accordingly.

The contractual amounts of laans and credit card commitments reprasant tha cash outflows should the contracts
be fully drawn upon. The amounts of guarantees and letters of credit represent the maximum potential loss

that would be recognised if counterparties failed completely to perform as contracted, Acceptances comprise
undertakings by the Group to pay bills of exchange drawn on customers.

As cradit commilments may expine without being drawn upon, the total of the contractual amounts set out in the
following table do not represent the expected future cash outflows.

2n7 2006

Loan commitmeans
=with an arnginal matunty within ane year 192,768 19,077
— with an ariginal maturity of one year ar over 396 467 383,530
Cradit wd_mmmilme_ms .—u.i'ﬂ .E‘Ii_ 690,144

A R e

Bank acceptances 276,620 206,606
Financimg guarantess &0.621 107,180
Mon-financing guarantees BEE 422 778,775
Sight letters of cradd 41,216 37383
Usance letters of cradst 266,865 160,141
.G'lrws 94,366 81,710
Takal 3,029,172 2,724,526
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63 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(2

2

(4)

(5)

(€)

@

(8

Credit risk-weighted amaount

The credit risk-weighted amount refers to the amount as computed in accordance with the rules set out by the
CBRC and depends on the status of the countarparty and the maturity characteristics.

Fi 2016
Credit isk-weighted amount of contingent liabilities and commitmenis 1,110,481 1,073,108

Operating lease commitments

The Group leases certain property and equipment under operating leases, which typically run for an initial pericd
of one to five years and may include an option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. As at the end of
the raparting period, the future minimum lease payments under non-cancallable operating leases for praperty and
equipment ware as follows:

2017 2076
Within cne year 5,720 5717
Alter one year but within two years 4. B9 4,188
After two years but within three years 3,024 3,124
Alter three yedrs but within five years 3,350 5,076
After five yoars 2423 2,756
Total 18,806 21138
Capital commitments
As at the end of the reporting pericd, the Group had capital commitments as follows:
e amT 206
Contracted bor 5,882 9,294

Underwriting obligations

As at 31 December 2017, there was no unaxpired underwnting commitment of the Group (as at 31 December
2016: nil),

Government bonds redemption obligations

Ag an underwriting agent of PRC government bonds, the Group has the responsibility to buy back those bonds
sobd by it shoulbd the holders decide to early redesm the bonds held. The redamption price for the bonds at any
time before their maturity date iz based on the coupon value plus any interest unpaid and accrued up to the
redemption date. Accrued interest payables to the bond holders are calculated in accordance with relevant rules of
the MOF and the PBOC, The redemption price may be different from the fair value of similar instruments traded at
the redemption date.

The redemption cbligations, which represent the nominal value of government bonds underwritten and sold by
the Group, but not yet matured as at 31 December 2017, were RMBT9,431 million {as at 31 December 2016:
RMBTS,695 million).

Cutstanding litigation and disputes

As at 31 December 2017, the Group was the defendant in certain pending litigations and disputes with gross
claims of RMBE10,492 million (a5 at 31 Decamber 2016: AMBT, 783 million), Pravisions have baan made for tha
estimated losses ariging from such litigations based upon the opinions of the Group's internal and external legal
counsels (Mote 48). The Group considers that the provisions made are reasonable and adequate.

Provision against commitments and contingant liabilities

The Group assessed and made provisions for any probable outfiow of economic benefits in relation to the
commitments and contingent liabilities in accordance with their accounting policies (Note 4 (14)).
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64 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

{1} Transactions with parent companies and their affiliates
The parent companies of the Group are CIC and Huijin.
Approved by the State Council, CIC was established on 29 September 2007 with a registerad capital of RMB1,550
billion. As a wholly owned subsidiary of CIC, Huijin exercises its rights and obligations as an investor on behalf of
the PRG government,
Huijin was incorporated on 16 December 2003 as a wholly state-owned investmant company. It was registered in
Beijing with a registerad capital of RMBE28,208 million. Its principal activities are eqguity investments as authonsed
by the State Council, without engaging in other commercial operations. As at 31 December 2017, Huijin directly
held 57.11% shares of the Bank.
The related companies under parent companies include the subsidiaries under parent companies and other
associates and joint ventures.
The Group's transactions with parent companies and their affiliates mainly include deposit taking, entrusted
asset management, operating leases, lending, purchase and sale of debt securities, money market transactions
and inter-bank clearing. These transactions are priced based on market prices and conducted under normal
commercial terms,
The Group has issued subordinated debls with a nominal value of RMB144,986 million (as at 31 December 20168
RMB 145,744 million). These are bearer bonds and tradable in secondary market. Accordingly, the Group has no
information in respect of the amount of the bonds held by the affilkates of parent companies as at the end of the
reporting penod.
&l  TFransactions with parent comoanes
In the ordinary course of the business, material transactions that the Group entered into with parent
companies are as follows:
Amounts
a7 206
Ratio to Ratio to
similar samilas
Amoant fransacisons Amount transaciions
Interest income 1,006 0.15% 460 0.07%
Inferest expansa 128 0,045 108 0.04%
Balances
2017 2016
Ratho to Ratic 1o
similar similar
Balance transaciions Balance tranzactions
Interest receivabla 140 0.12% 151 0.15%
Loans and advances (o customers 28,000 0.22% - 0.00%
Available-for-sale financial assets 2,199 0.14% - 0.00%
Held-to-matunty investments 9,140 0.35% 12,770 0.52%
Deposits from banks and mon-bank
financial mstitutions 6,114 0.46% 20 0.00%
Deposits from customers 55 0.00% 865 0.01%
Interest payabie - D005 & 0.00%
Credit commitmants 288 001% 288 0.01%
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64 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Transactions with parent companies and their affiliates (continued)
Transactions with the affitates of parent companies

In the ordinary course of the businass, material transactions that the Group entered into with the affiliates of

)

)

parent companies are as follows:
Amounts

219

2017 206
Ratic to Fatio te
similar gimilar
Hote Amount transaciions Amaunt transactions
interest income 32,102 4. 285 28,755 4.13%
Inerest expense 10,237 3.44% 2,528 0.91%
Fee and commission income 66T 0.51% 228 0.18%
Fes and comméssion expense 168 1.46%% 295 3.15%
Oparating axpanses i T24 0.46% 612 0.40%
Balances
2017 216
Ratio to Ratio to
similar shmilar
- - Mote Balance  transactions Balance transactions
Depasits with banks and non-bank
financial institutions 36,672 20.95% 72,748 14.71%
Placaments with banks and non-bank
financial institutions 71,066 21.85% 69,487 26.66%
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 22,323 3.86% 811 1.66%
Positive fair value of derivatives 7522 2.06% 3.581 3.50%
Financial assats hald under resale agreamants 62,500 30.00% 10,887 10.56%
Inferest raceivable 21,747 18.50% 14,606 14.37%
Loang and advances to customers 30,553 0.24% 53.297 0.46%
Availlable-for-sale financial assets 215,807 13.80% 234,815 14.38%
Held-to-maturity investmeants 458,789 1T.74%: 418,087 17.19%
Investmant classified as recenvables 28,925 6.21% 45,959 B.24%
Other assets 156 0.02% B 0.11%
Deposits from banks and non-bank
fimancial institutions (il 194,730 14.56% 34,485 2.14%
Placements from banks and non-bank
fingncial institutions 109,661 28.58% 68,732 21.31%
Negative fair value of derivatives 6,739 8.44% 732 B12%
Financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements 1,255 1.69% 15.904 B.35%
Deposits from customars 14,455 0.09% 18,471 0.12%
Inlerest payabie 423 0.21% 3.058 1.45%
Other liabditias 1,251 0.53% - 0.00%
Credit commitmenis 10,231 0.34% 23,159 1.18%

0] Operating expenses mainiy represant rental expenses paid by the Group for leased assets, including properties
and motor vahicles, owned by parent companies and its affiliates, and fees for related services provided by parent

companies and its affilkates.

() Deposits from the affiliates of parent companies are unsecured and are repayable under normal commercial terms.
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64 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(2) Transactions with associates and joint ventures of the Group

Transactions between the Group and its associates and jeint ventures are conducted in the normal and ardinary
course of the business and under normal commaercial terms as those transactions conducted between the Group
and non-related companies outside the Group. In the ordinary course of the business, material fransactions that
the Group entered into with associates and joint ventures are as follows:

Amounts
2T 2016
Interest income (i) 12
Interest expensea 571 4
Fea and commission income 27 =
Cperating #xpenses - 7

Balances
27 v ]
Loans and advances 1o cusiomers 7497 680
Flacements from banks and non-bank financkal institutions o8 -
Financial liabilitias at fair value through profit or loss = 445
Deposits from customers 2,223 1.547
interest payable 2 -
e lkabilities P64 -
Cradit commitments B2 5

(3} Transactions betwean the Bank and its subsidiaries

Tranzactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries are conducted in the normal and ordinary coursa of the
business and wnder normal commercial terms as those transactions conducted between the Group and non-
related companies cutside the Group, All the inter-group transactions and inter-group balances are eliminated
when praparing the consolidated financial statements as mentioned in Note 4{1)(b),

Ire the ordinary couwrse of the business, material transactions that the Bank enterad into with its subsidiaries are as

follows:
Amounts
a7 216

Interast incorme 1,320 1,154
interest expense 577 1,651
Fee and commission income 1,820 3421
Fes and commission expensse 542 BA6
Dividend incoma 65 80
Met gain ariging from investmaent securities 09 315
Cher operating expense, nel (94) {370}
Operating expenses 811 3
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64 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

@)

(4)

]

Transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries {continued)

Balances
217 206
Deposits with banks and non-bank financial institutions 4,871 11,254
Placements with banks and non-bank financial institutions 20,481 88,820
Positoe fair value of derivatives 1,424 1,087
interest recesvable 120 1
Loans and advances to customers 10,653 6,259
Availabla-for-sale financial azsats 2,074 227
Hald-{o-maturity investmants G56 880
Invesimen classiied as receivables 455 A86
Ciner assets 38,480 49,931
Deposits from banks and non-bank financial institutions 18,547 a5
Placements from banks and non-bank financial institutions 58,017 106,853
Nagative fair value of dedvatives 1,288 35
Daposils from cuslomans 3821 2.974
Interest payable 94 a1
Debt securities issued 840 830
Other liabilities 1,033 110

As at 31 December 2017, the total maximum guarantes limit of guarantee letters issued by the Bank with its
subsidiaries as beneficiary is RMBS3,.726 million (as at 31 Decaember 2016: RMB44, 793 million),

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the transactions between subsidiaries of the Group are mainly deposits
with banks and non-bank financial institution and deposits from banks and non-bank financial institutions, As at
31 December 2017, the balances of the above trangactions were RMB4,613 million (as at 31 December 2016:
RMB 173 million} and RME10,721 million (as at 31 December 2016; AMB4,478 million) respectively.

Transactions with other PRC state-owned entities

State-owned entities refer to those entities directly or indirectly owned by the PRC government through its
government authorities, agencies, affiliations and other grganisations. Transactions with other state-owned entities
include but are not limited to: lending and deposit taking; taking and placing of inter-bank balances; entrusted
lending and other custody services; insurance and securities agency, and other intermediary services, purchase,
sale, undenwriting and redemption of bonds issued by other state-owned entities; purchase, sale and leases of
property and other assets; and rendering and receiving of utilities and other services,

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of the Group's banking business on terms similar to
those that would have been entered into with non-state-owned entities. The Group's pricing strategy and approval
processes for major products and services, such as loans, deposits and commission inceme, do not depend on
whether the customears are state-owned entities or not. Having due regard to the substance of the relationships,
the Group is of the apinion that none of these transactions are material related party transactions that require
separate disclosure.

Transactions with the Annuity Scheme and Plan Assets

Apart fram the obligations for defined contributions to the Annuity Scheme and regular banking transactions, there
were no other transactions between the Group and the Annuity Scheme for the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016,

As at 31 December 2017, RMB3,183 million of the Group's supplementary retirement benefit plan assets (as at 31
December 2016: RMB2,950 million) were managed by CCB Principal and management fees from the Bank was
RMBE.73 million (as at 31 December 2016: RMBA.73 million).
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64 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(6) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persens having authorities and responsibilities for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including directors, supervisors and senior execulives.
The Group enters into banking transactions with key management personnel in the normal course of business.
For the vears ended 31 Decamber 2017 and 2016, there were no material transactions and balances with key
management personnel.

The companzation of directors and supervisors is disclosed in Note 14. The senior executives’ annual
compensation before individual income tax during the year is as follows:

a7
Contributions
o defined Other
contribution banefits
Remuneration retirement in kind Total
paid schemes [note (B} {nate (i)
RMB'000 RME'000 AMB'000 RAMBD00
Executive Vice President
Yang Wensheng a7 51 a8 606
Huang ¥i 467 51 a8 606
Yu Jingbo 46T 51 aa GO6
Zharyg Lilin 265 27 47 pric]
Chief Disciplinary Officer
Zhu Kepeng 46T 5 a8 GOG
Chief Risk Officer
Liga Lin 65T 43 114 B14
Chief Financial Officer
Xu Yiming TEa 51 138 875
Secretary 1o the Board
Huang Zhiling - - - -
Former Chief Risk Officer
Zgng Jianhua 131 8 a2 161
Former Secretary to the Board
Ghen Gaihong 713 16 115 844
4,422 349 786 5,657
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64 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Key management personnel (continuad)

(€)

7

216
Social inswance,
conporate
anmyity,
supplamantany
mechical
insurance and
housing fund aher
Acorued paid by monetary Taotal
Gost thar Biank incomne {rabe il
FMB 000 HME'000 HME'0DD RMB 00
Executive Vice President
Yang Weanshang &3 180 = TA1
Huaryg i &1 150 - TA1
Yu dingbo B 150 - 781
Chief Disciplinary Officer
Zhu Kapeng &31 150 - TA1
Chief Risk Officer
Lizo Lin - = = =
Chief Financial Officer
¥u Yirming 18977 188 - 2.148
Secretary 1o the Board
Chven Caihong 1,977 168 - 2148
Former Chief Risk Officer
Zeng Jianhua 1,977 183 - 2148
8,455 1,107 - 8562

{ii}

i)

{iv)

Other benefits in kind included the Bank's confributions to medical fund, housing fund and other sccial
insurances, which are payable to labour and security authorities based on the lower of certain percentage of
the salaries and allowance or the prescribed upper limits as required by the relevant regulations issued by
the government authorities. Other benefits also included the Bank's contribution to its own corporate annuity
plan {which was set up in accordance with the relevant policies issued by the government authorities) and
supplementary medical insurance,

The total compensation package for these key management personnel for the year ended 31 December
2017 has not yet been finalised in accordance with regulations of the PRC relevant authorities, The amount
of the compensation to be adjusted for is not expected to have significant impact on the Group's financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017. The final compensation will be disclosed in a separate
announcement when determined.

The total compensation package for certain key management personnel for the year ended 31 December
2016 had not been finalized in accordance with regulations of the PRC relevant authorities till the date that
the 2016 financial statements were announced. The aforesaid total compensation package for the key
management personnel for the year ended 31 Decamber 2016 was the final amount,

From 2015 onwards, remunaration of the Bank's leaders administerad by central authorities has been paid in
accordance with relevant policies relating to the central remuneration refonm,

Loans, quasi-loans and other credit transactions to directors, supervisors and senior execulives

The Group had no material balance of lpans, quasi-loans and other credit transactions to directors, supenisors
and senior executives as at the end of reporting pericd. Those loans, quasi-loans and other credit transactions to
directors, supervisors and senior executives were conducted in the normal and ordinary course of the businass
and under normal commmercial terms or on the same terms and conditions with thosa which are availabla to other
employees, based on terms and conditions granted to third parties adjusted for risk reduction.
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RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group has exposure to the following risks:

- credit risk

= market risk

- licquidlity risk

- operational risk
- insurance risk

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, the Group's objectives, policies
and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s capital management.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors carmy out their responsibilities according to Articles of Association and other related regulatory
requirerments, The Board of Directars of the Bank has established the Risk Managerment Committes, responsitle for
making risk management strategies and policias, monitoring the implemeantation, and evaluating the overall sk profile on
a regular basis. The Board of Supervisors has oversight of the establishment of the overall risk management system and
how well the Board of Directors and senior management carry out risk management responsibilities. Senicr management
is responsible for carrying out the risk strategy established by the Board of Directors and the implementation of the
overall risk managemeant of the Group. Senior management appoints Chief Risk Officer who assisted the president with
the corresponding risk management work.

To identify, evaluate, monitor and manage risk, the Group has designed a comprehensive governance framework,
internal control policies and proceduras, Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions, products and services offered, The Group, through its training system, standardised
managamant and process management, aims at developing a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which
all employees understand their roles and obligations.

Risk Management Department is the overall business risk management department. Gredit Management Department

is the overall credit risk management department, Credit Approval Department is the overall credit business approval
deparimant. Intarnal Control and Compliance Dapartment is the coordination department for operating risk management
and internal control and compliance risk management. Other departments are responsible for various corresponding
risks.

The Group Audit Committes is responsible for monitoring and evaluating internal contrals, and monitoring the
campliance of core business sectors and their managemeant procedures. Internal Control and Compliance Department
assists the Audit Committee to execute the above mentioned responsibilities and reports to the Audit Committes,

{1}  Credit risk

Cradilt risk manageameant

Credit risk représents the financial loss that arises from the failure of a debtor or counterparty to discharge its
contractual obligations or commitments 1o the Group.

Cragit business

The Risk Managemant Department takes the lead in the development and implementation of the cradit risk
measurament tools including customers rating and facilities grading and is responsible for the special assets
resolutions, The Credit Management Department is responsible for establishing credit risk management policies
and monitoring the quality of credit assets. The Credit Approval Department is responsible for the group’s
comprehensive cradit limits and credit approval of various credit businesses. While the Cradit Management
Department takes the lead, both the Credit Management Department and the Credit Approval Department will
coordinate with the Corporate Banking Department, the SME Business Department, the Institutional Banking
Department, the International Business Department, the Strategic Clients Department, the Housing Finance &
Personal Lending Department, the Cradit Card Genter, and the Legal Affairs Departiment to implement the credit
risk management policies and procedures.
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

)

Credit risk (continued)

Credgit tusiness fcontinuved)

With respect to the credit risk management of corporate and institutional business, the Group has accelerated
the adjustment of its credit portfolio structure, enhanced post-lending monitaring, and refined the indusiny-
spacific guideline and policy basaline for credit approval. Management also fine-tuned the credit acceptance and
exit policies, and oplimised its economic capital and credit risk limit management. All these policies have been
implemented to improve the overall asset quality, The Group manages credit risk throughout the entire credit
process including pre-lending evaluations, credit approval and post-lending monitoring. The Group performs pre-
landing evaluations by assessing the entity's credit ratings based on internal rating criteria and assessing the risks
and rewards with respect to the proposed project. Credit approvals are granted by designated Credit Approval
Officers. The Group continually monitors credit businesses, particularly those related to targeted industries,
gecgraphical segments, products and clients, Any adverse events that may significantly atfect a borrower's
repayment ability are reported timely and measures are implemented o prevent and control risks.

With respect to the personal credit business, the Group relies on credit assessment of applicants as the basis

for lnan approval. Customer relationship managers are required to assess the income level, credit history,

and repayment ability of the applicant. The customer relationship managers then forward the application and
racommendations to tha lean-approval departments for approval. The Group monitors borrowers' repayment
ability, the status of collateral and any changes to collateral value. Once a locan becomes overdue, the Group starts
the recovery process according o recovery procedures,

To mitigate risks, the Group reguests the customers to provide collateral and guarantees where apprapriate, A
fina managermeant system and operating procedure for collateral have been developed, and there is a guideline to
specify the suitability of accepting specific types of collateral. Collateral values, structures and legal covenants are
regularly reviewed to ensure that they still serve their intended purposes and conform to market practices.

Credit grading classifcation

The Group adopts a loan risk classification approach to manage the loan portfolio risk. Loans are generally
classified as normal, special mention, substandard, doubtful and loss according to their level of risk, Substandard,
doubtful and loss loans are considered as impaired loans and advances when one or more events damonstrate
there iz chjective evidence of a loss event which triggers impairment. The aliowance for impairment loss on
impaired loans and advances is collectively or individually assessed as appropriate.

The core definitions of the five categories of loans and advances are st out below:

Marmal: Bomowers can honour the terms of their loans, There is no reason to doubt their ability to repay
principal and intecest in full on a timely basis,

Special mention: Bomowers are able 10 service their loans currently, alihough repayment may be adversely affected
by spacific factors.

Substandard: Bomrowers' abilities to service their loans are apparently in guestion and they cannot rely entirely
on normal buginess ravanues 1o repay principal and imerest. Certain losses may engue evan when
callateral or guarantees are invoked,

Doubtiut: Bomowars cannot repay principal and interest in full and significant losses will need to ba
recognised gven when collateral or guarantees are invoked.

Loss: Principal and interest of loans cannot be recovered or only a small portion of them can be
recoverad after takeng all possible measures or resorting (o all necessary legal procedures.

The Group has also applied the same grading criteria and managemeant approach in classifying the off-balanece
sheet credit-related operations.
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(1) Credit risk [continued)
Treasury Dusiness

For risk management purposes, credit risk arising on debt securities and exposures refating to the Group's
derivatives portfolio is managed independently and information there on is disclosad in notes (1)(h) and (1)) below.
The Group sets credit limits for treasury activities and monitors them regularly with reference to the fair values of
the relevant financial instruments.

a2l Maxinum credil sk exposure
Tha following table presents the maximum exposure to credit risk as at the end of the reporting period
without taking into consideration any collateral hald or other credit enhancement. In respect of the financial

assats recognised in the statement of financial position, the maximum exposura 10 credit risk is represented
by the carrying amaunt after deducting fer any impairment allowance,

27 2018

Deposits with cantral banks 2,614,380 2775065

Dreposits with banks and non-bank financiel institutions 175,005 484,618
Placements with banks and non-bank financial institutions 325,233 260,670
Dhabt imvestments at fair value through profit or loss 554,048 469,992
Positive fair value of dervatives 82,980 89,785
Financial assets held under resale agreemants 208,380 103.174
Interest receivable 116,993 101,645

Loans and advances to customars 12,574,473 11,488,355
Available-for-sale debl securities 1,461,824 1,348,814
Held-to-maturity investments 2,586,722 2438417
Investment classified as receivables 465,810 S07 963

ity financlal pusely . L6408
Total 21,531,086 20,148,804
Off-balance shest cradit commitments 3,029,172 2,724 526
Maximum credil risk exposurs 24,560,238 22,873,330
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(1) Cradit risk (continuad)
B Dvstribution of foans and aovances fo customers in ferms of credlt guality /s analysed as folows

Matis 2017 2016
Gross impaired loans
= Individually assessed and impaired gross amount 169,798 156,436
- Allowances for impairment 03505 {113,820) (99,453
Subtotal ; 55,978 56083
- Ceflpctvely assessed and impaired gross amaount 22,493 22,254
- Allowances for mpairment osses (13,802) (13.275)
Subtotal i % % x L HEEEEnaey o Bare
Crverdue but not impaired
- batwoen 1 day and 90 days 30,483 31,522
- between 91 days and 180 days - ,
= more than 180 days - 21
Gross ameount 30,483 31,547
Allowances for impaiment losses i} (3,164) (6.804)
O ... SIS .4
Meither overdue nor impaired
- Unsecurad loans 3,856,502 3,442,193
= Guaranteed loans 2,035,372 1,880,508
= Loans sacured by tangible assats other than monatary assets 5,441,687 5002018
- Loans secured by manelary assets 1,347,106 1.222076
Gross amount 12,680,667 11,546,785
Allowances for impainment losses i {198, 182) {149,145
Subtatal 12,482,485 11,387 650
Total 12,574,473 11,480,355

il The balances represent collectively assessed allowances of impairment losses.
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(1) Credit risk [continued)

) Dvstribation of foans and advances fo cusfomers it ferms of credlt guality /s analvsed as folows
feantinued)
Within overdue but not impaired loans and advances and impaired loans and advances which are subject to
individual assessment, the portion coverad or not coverad by collateral held are shown as fallows:

2017
Impaired loans
and advances
which are
subjoect to
Overdue but not impaired individual
loans and advances assessmant
Corporate Personal Corporate
Paorticn covered 4,112 14,678 28,810
Particn not covaned 3,523 BATD 139,988
Todal 7,635 22,848 168,798
2016
Impasned loans
and advances
which ara
subject to
Owerdue but not impaired ingivicual
loans and advances assessmant
= — = Comorate Pemonal __ Clorporote
Partion cowered 3,632 15,005 27 TTa
Portion nat cavered 5644 7266 128683
Total 2,276 2227 156,436

The above collateral includes land use rights, buildings and equipment, etc. The fair value of collateral was
estimated by the Group with reference to the latest available external valuations adjusted after taking into
account the current realisation experience as well as the market situation,
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{1) Credit risk {continued)
fo!  Loans and advances fo cusiomers analysed by economic secior concenirations

27 2018
Balance Balance
Gross sacured by Groes gacuned by
SEONRMAOE S WD SIS DO o bilncs Pertentage G
Corporate loans and advancas
= Transportation, storage and
postal senvices 1,429,583 11.08% 516,193 1,287,693 10.85% 520,293
= Manufacturing 1,218,827 10.22% 410,706 1323238 11.24% 464,514
= Laasmng and commarcial
SETVICES 981,704 TE1% 347,367 B26.410 T.0035% 309,203

= Production and supply of
alectric power, haat, gas

and waler BET. B8 BLT3% 199,688 T26. 106 B.18% 182,802
= Raal astate 522242 4.05% 284,608 448576 382% 316,857
= Wholesale and ratail trade 47T 404 3.70% 256,550 492,343 4.19% 252,177
= Watar, environment and

public utility managament 395,163 3.06% 193,538 404 204 2.76% 167,718
= Construction 230,721 2.18%% 70,228 250,263 2.219% 8,772
—Mining 250,698 1.84% 26,685 250,530 2.13% 28,755

- Public management, social
gecyrities and social

oeganisation 107,297 DuB3%E 18,035 130,037 1.11% 33,862
- Agriculture, foresiry,
tarming. fishing T4,831 0685 24,972 80,6485 0.77% 34,936
- Education 70981 0.55% 16,912 77,445 0.66% 21415
—DOthers 710,563 5.50% SN 586843 4.90% 80,183
Tatal eorporate kans and
advancas 7,487 832 58.03% 2,465 194 6,823,938 5E.04% 2 500,454
Parsonal loans and advances 5,279,084 40.52%. 4,428,428 4,420,839 3T.80% 3,620,851
Discounbed bills 135,715 1.05% - 512,155 4.36% -
Total koans and sdvances 1o
customers 12,903.441 100.00% 6884620 11,757,032 100.00% 6,321,305

Details of impaired loansg, impairment allowances, charges, and amounts written off in respect of economic
sactors which constitute 10% or more of total gross loans and advances to customers are as follows:

2017
Incliviiually Collectivaly Charged 1o
Gross assessed assessed  profit or loss Writton off
impaired impairment impairment during during
lsans allowances allowances the year the year
Transportation, storage and postal
EEMCEs 13,844 [8,651) (26,573) {10,184} 549
Manufacturing 76,557 (51,2200 {349,504} 147.638) 15,896
2016 )
Individually Caollectivaly Charged to
Gross assassed assessad profit or loss Written off
impained Irnpairment impaimment during disring
loans allowances allowances tha yedr this yoar
Transportation, storage and postal
SanGGES 6,004 [3,935) {21,843) 12412 250
Manufacturing 71,443 (44,348} {29,903) 144,859 14,272
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(1)  Credit risk (continued)

ol Loans and advances o customers analysed by geograpiveal seclor concerirations

21T 2016

Gross Balance Girass Balance

loan secured by loan secuned by

balance  Percentage collateral batance Percentage eollateral

Yangize River Dalta 2,988 830 17.74% 1476742 2,117,133 18.02% 1,360,362

Cantral 2,176,159 16.86% 1,346,200 1,962,785 16.86% 1,187 869

Bohai Rim 2,131,045 16.52% 1,024,363 1,946,622 16.56% g9z2.618

Wastam 2,117,740 1641% 1,206,486 1,253,377 16.61% 1,124,332

Pearl River Dalta 1,041,337 15.05% 1,370,328 1,762,063 14,99% 1,312,827

Mortheastern 672,309 521% 341,388 B43.515 5.47% 286,115

Head affice 574,506 4.45% - 452,941 3.85% -

Overseas 1,001,515 7.7T6% 129,115 07606 T64% 137,182
Gross loans and advances to

customers 12,903,441 100.00% 6,804,620 11,757.032 100.00% 6,321,305

As at the end of reporting period, details of impaired loans and impairment allowances in respect of
geographical sectors are as follows:

2T

Individually Caollectively

Gross assessed assessod

impaired imipairment impairment

laans allowances allowances

Bokhai Rim 38,302 (22,645) (39,339)
Westem 34,973 (19,205) (37.230)
Ceniral 32,154 (18,135) [35.432)
Yangtze River Dalta 31,460 {21,038) (40,566)
Pearl River Dalta 27777 (18,022) (31,812
MNarthaasterr 18,920 (11,925) (15.798)
Head Office 5,867 (394) {10,640
Overseas 2,838 (1,456) {4,231)
Total 192,291 (113,820) (215,148)

2018

Inctiviclually Caolleativaly

Giress assessed assessoed

Impainsd impairrmnt Empainman

loans allowances alfowancas

Bekail Rim 29,199 {15,573 (31,505
Westem 208,435 {14,557} (30,702)
Cenitral 26,654 (14,557} (28.012)
Yangize River Dalta 41,539 [27.423) (3273
Paarl River Dalta 28426 (18,420) (24,124)
Mortheastern 14,784 7.885) (10,423
Head Offica 4288 - {8.471)
Oversaas 3.347 (1,029} (3.414)
Total 178,600 {99,453} (169,224)

The definitions of gecgraphical segments are set out in Mote B0 (1)
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(1) Credit risk (continued)
el Loans and advances fo cusiomers analysed by fyoes of coffateral

2T 2016
Unsecured loans 3,885,324 3471042
Guaranteed loans 2,123,452 1,864,685
Loans secured by tangible assets ather than manelary assets 5,539,863 5,085,325
Loans secured by monelary assels 1,354,757 1,225,980
Gross loans and advances to cusiomers 12,903,441 11,767,032
7 Rescheowed fogns and advances fo cusfomers
2017 2016
Percentage of Parcentage of
gross loans and gross lsans and
advances 1o advances to
Total CUSIOMErs Total CUStOMmers
Reschedulad lcans and advances to
customers 4,001 0.03% 5.020 0.04%
Of which:
Rescheduled loans and advances averdue
for more than 80 days 998 0.01% 2.3 0.02%

o) Cvstribution of amounts de from banks and nom-bank financial msiitutions i ferms of credit guality
/5 as folows:
Amount dus from banks and non-bank financial institutions includes deposits and placaments with
banks and non-bank financial institutions, and financial assets held under resale agreements of which
counterparties are banks and non-bank financial institutions.

Mot 27 2018
Impaired
= Individually assessed and impaired gross amount 25 29
= Allowances for impairment losses (25) 29
Subrotal 4 s . PETTIRTE T, Y . -
Neither owverdue nor impairad
= Grade A to ARA, B46,592 815,886
= Grade B to BEE 489 5.238
- Unrated 61,661 37488
Total 708,742 B5B.622
Mlowances for impaimment losses i) (144} (160)
Subtatal 708,558 50462
YR YT TR ST PP R PP PTET T TR TPETPTIEIPPPTEIn A AR TPPRPPRPRAR e Sy et
Tolal 708,598 £58,462

Amaounts neither overdue nor impaired are analysed above according to the Group's internal credit rating.
Unrated amounts due from banks and non-bank financial institutions include amounts due from a number of
banks and non-bank financial institutions for which the Group have not assigned an internal credit rating.

{i] The balances represent collectively assessed allowances of impairment losses,
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(1) Credit risk [continued)
il Distribution of debt investments analysed by rating

The Group adopts a credit rating approach fo manage the credit risk of the debt investments partfolio held,
The ratings are obtained from Bloomberg Composite, or major rafing agencies where the issuers of the
dabt investments are located. The carrying amounts of the debt investments analysed by the rating agency
designations as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

207
Note Unrated ARA AA A Lower than A Tatal
Impaired
Indircicualy assessed and
impared gross amount
- Banks and non-bank
financial institutions - - - - - -
- EMprizes 632 - - - - 632
= Otihexrs 200 - - - - 200
Totad g3z - - - - axz
Allowances hor impairmiint
losses (434)
Sl L
Meithar overdue noe
impared
= Govemmian 2,042,536 1,158,184 B,608 24,450 25,461 3,258,360
= Cantral banks 6,881 5,831 25,059 - - 31,817
- Policy banks B03,872 3,665 1,545 13,491 - BI2673
- Banks and non-bank
financial institutions 253,410 100,733 12,765 31,369 8,443 406,720
- Emerprises 164,026 262420 0,681 15,708 5,319 497,154
- Others 8,278 226401 19,218 685 454 51,286
Total 3,279,013 1,573,480 96,996 85,753 39,677 5074919
AMllowances for impalrment
losses ] 68913
Subtosal 5,058,006
Tota 5,068,404
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{1)  Credit risk {continued)
) Dvstribution of debt imvestrmeants analysed by rating feontinued!

2016
Mata Lirrated AAR AR, A Lewwer than A Tatal
impaired
Ingividually assessed and
impaired gross amount
= Banks and non-tank
financial instiutions a7 = = - - 7
- Enftenprisas TE - - - 120 ks
~ Cithexrs 00 - = 200 - 400
Takad 1265 - - 200 120 1,565
Allewances for impairment
losses [a78)
RN e oo AR
Maithar overdue nor
impaired
- Governmant 1,602.081 TEB643 21,717 6,253 21,988 2870652
= Cantral banks 12087 = S681 - - 21,768
= Palicy banks 359,789 ] 1,738 - - 51,574
- Banks and non-tank
financial instiutions BES.6ED 166,808 20,002 38,798 6,701 1,105,862
- Enlerprises 137574 200,981 16,148 11,610 6,002 452,405
- {thars 115,341 154941 13,237 2500 - 14T 018
Totad 3,382,535 1202313 92520 061 34781 4,769,310
Allgwances for impsairment
hagsies il [4,831)
Subtotal 4,764,478
Tosad 4,765,166

fij  The balances represent collectively assessed allowances of impairment losses.

B Creolt risk arising from the Group's denvatives exposures

The majority of the Group's derivatives transactions with domestic customers are hedged back-to-back with
averseas banks and non-bank financial institutions. The Group is exposed 1o credit risk both in raspect of
the domastic customers and the overseas banks and non-bank financial institutions. The Group manages
this risk by manitoring this exposure on a regular basis.

4 Settlement risk

The Group's activities may give rise to settlement risk at the time of the settlement of transactions and
trades, Settlement risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of an entity to honour its obligations to deliver
cash, securities or other assets as contractually agreed.

For certain types of transactions, the Group mitigates this risk by conducting settlemants through a
seftlement or clearing agent to ensure that a trade is settled only when both parties hawve fulfilled their
contractual settlerment obligations.
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(2

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of lo5s, in respect of the Group's on and off balance sheet activities, arising from acdverss
movements in market rates including interest rates, foreign exchange rates, commedity prices and stock prices.
Market risk arises from both the Group's trading and non-trading business. A trading book consists of positions:

in financial instruments and commadities held either with trading intent or in order to hedge other elements of the
trading book. Mon-trading book records those financial instruments and commodities which are not included in the
trading book.

The Group continues to improve market risk management system. The Market Risk Management Department is
responsible for leading the establishment of market risk management policies and rules, developing the market
nisk measurement tools, monitaring and reporting the trading market risk and related daily work, The Asset and
Liability Managemeant Department (the "ALK") is responsible for managing non-trading interest rate risk, exchange
rate risk and the size and structure of the assets and liabilities in response to structural market risk. The Financial
Market Department manages the Bank's RMB and foreign currency investment portfolios, conducts proprietary
and customer-driven transactions, as well as implementing market risk management policies and rules. The Audit
Department is responsible for regularly performing independent audits of the reliability and effectiveness of the
processes constituting the risk management system.

The Group's interest rate risk mainly comprises repricing risk and basis risk arising from mismatch of term
structure and pricing basis of assets and liabilities. The Group uses multiple tocls such as repricing gap analysis,
sensitivity analysis on net interest income, scenario analysis and stress testing, etc. to manitor the interest rate risk
pericdically.

The Group’s foreign exchange exposure mainly comprises exposures from foreign currency portfolios within
treasury proprietary investments in debt securities and money market placemeants, and currency exposures from
its overseas business. The Group manages its foreign exchange exposure by spot foreign exchange transactions
and by matching its foreign currency denominated assets with coresponding liabilities in the same currency, and
also uses derivatives in the management of its own foreign currency asset and liability portfolios and structural
positions.

The Group is also exposed to market rigk in respect of its customer driven derivatives portfolio and manages this
nisk by entering into back-to-back hedging transactions with overseas banks and non-bank financial institutions.

The Group considers that the market risk arising from stock prices in respect of its investment portfolics is
minimal,

The Group manitors market risk separately in respect of trading portfolios and non-trading portfolios. Trading
portfolios include exchange rate and interest rate derivatives as well as trading securities. The historical simulation
miodel for the Value-at-risk ("VaR") analysis is a major tool used by the Bank to measure and monitor the market
risk of its trading portfolio. Net interest income sensitivity analysis, interest rate repricing gap analysis and foreign
exchange risk concentration analysis are the major tools used by the Group to monitor the market risk of its overall
businesses.
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(2) Market risk (continued)

(@

VaR analvsis

VaR is a technique which estimates the potential losses that could ocour on risk positions taken, due

o movements in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates and other market prices over a specified

time horizen and at a given level of confidence. The Risk Management Departmant calculates interest

rates, foreign exchange rates and commoedity prices VaR for the Bank's trading portfolio. By reference to
histarical movements in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and commaodity prices, the Risk Management
Department calculates VaR on a daily basis for the trading portfolio and monitors regularly, VaR is calculated
at a confidence level of 89% and with a holding period of one day.

A summary of the VaR of the Bank's trading portfclio as at the end of the reporting period and during the
respective years is as follows:

2017
As at 31
Hote December Average Maximum Minimum
Risk valuation of trading portfolio i 112 167 252 105
Of which;
- Interest rale Aak 50 24 148 50
- Foreign exchange risk {i) @0 17 226 T0
= Commaodity risk 1 B Fa) =
206
As at 31 i
Biote Decamber Average Maximum Minirmium
Risk valuation of trading portiolic 106 157 265 o1
Of which:
= Intarast rabe risk B1 52 144 20
- Forgign exchange rigk 1] a7 156 253 64
- Commodity righ [ 13 60 =

il TheVaR inrelation to bullion s included in foreign exchange risk above.

VaR for each risk factor is the indepandently derived largest potential loss in a specific holding period and at
a certain confidence level due to fluctuations solely in that risk factor, The individual VaRs do not add up to
the total VaR as there is diversification effect due to comelation amangst the nisk factors,

Although VaR is an important tool for measuring market risk, the assumptions on which the model is based
give rse 1o some limitations, including the following:

A 1-day holding period assumes that it is possible to hedge or dispose of positions within that period.
This is considered to be a realistic assumption in almost all cases but may not be the case in situations
in which there is severe market illiquidity for a prolonged period;

- A 99 percent confidence level does not reflect losses that may otcur beyond this level. Within the
model used there ks 1 percent probability that losses could exceed the VaR;

- VaR is calculated on an end-of-day basis and does not reflect exposures that may arise on positions
during the trading day;

- The uss of historical data as a basis for determining the possible range of future cutcomes may not
always cover all possible scenarios, especially those of an exceptional nature; and

- The VaR measure is dependent upon the Bank's positicn and the volatility of market prices. The VaR of
an unchanged position reduces if the market price volatility declines and vice versa,
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{2) Market sk (continued)

)

e/

MNet inferest incorme sensilivily analysis

In monitoring interast rate risk on its overall non-derivative financial assets and liabilities, the Bank regularly
measures its future net interast income sensitivity to an increase or decreasa in market interest rates
{assuming no asymmaetrical movemant in yield curves and a constant financial position). An incremental

100 basis points parallel fall or rise in all yvield curves, other than that applicable to balances with central
banks, would increase or decrease annualised net interest income of the Group for the year by RMB4E,727
million {as at 31 December 2016: BMB48,500 million). Had the impact of vield curves movemeant for damand
deposits from customers been excluded, the annualised net interest income of the Group for the year would
decrease or increase by RMBS0,694 million {as at 31 December 2016: RMB43,566 million).

The above interest rate sensitivity is for illustration purpose only and is assessed based on simplified
assumptions. The figures here indicate estimated net interest income movements under vanous predicted
yiedd cure scenarios and are subject to the Bank's currant interast rate exposures. Howeaver, the possibla
risk management measures that can be undertaken by the department who manages the interest related
risk or related business departments to mitigate interest rate risk have not been taken inte account. In
practice, the department who manage the interest related risk strives to reduce loss arising from interast
rate risk while increasing its net income. These figures are estimated on the assumption that the interest
rates on various maturities will move within similar ranges, and therefore do not reflect the potential net
interest income changes in the event thal interest rates on some maturities may change and others remain
unchanged. Moreover, the above astimations are based on other simplified assumptions, including that all
positions will be held to maturity and rolled over upon maturity.

lnterast rale repricing ga analysis

Interast rate risk refers to the risk where the market interest rates, term structure and other factors may
experience unfavourable fluctuations which impact the overall profitability and fair value resulting in losses
to the Bank. The key determinants of the Group's interest rate risk arise from the mismatch between the
maturity periods of the assets and liabilities, and inconsistant pricing basis, resulting in repricing risk and
basis risk.

The ALM is responsible for regularly monitoring the interest rate risk positions and measuring the interest
rate repricing gap. The main reason for measuring the interest rate repricing gap is to assist in analysing the
impact of interest rate changes on net interest income,
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{2) Market risk (continued)
fcl  Inferast rate repricig gao analysis foontinued)
The fallowing tables indicate the average interest rate ("AIR™) for the respective year, and the expected next

repricing dates (or maturity dates whichever are earlier) for the assets and liabilities of the Group as at the
end of the reporting period.

217
Botwoen Botwoon
Awernge Hon- Within threa o yaar Maore
interest interest three  months and and than five
Maote rabe i) baaring manths one year  five years years Taotal

Assels
Cash and deposits with

central banks 1.51% 122583 2,885,663 - - = 2,988,256
Daposits and placermsns

with banks and non-bank

financial ingtitutions 2.64% - 364,272 128,267 7600 - 500,238
Financial assats held under

re=ale agreements 2.50% - 208, 360 - - - 208,360
Loans and advances to

customerns i) 4.18% - 7514939 4860444 36579 62511 12574473
Investmeants (] AT4% 120,309 460,631 522,504 2362479 1, T2A 732 5188715
Oither aksals 664,341 - - - - 664,341
Totad assets 3.66% 907,243 11413865 531,275 2,706,757 1,785,243 22124,383
Liabilities
Borrowings from central

banks 2.90% - 204,808 341,709 o - 54T267
Deposits and placemsants

from banks and non-bank

financial institutions ZA9%, - 1462200 202473 51471 4400 1,720,634
Financial lisbdties at fair

vakea theough profit

of logs A3T% 19,854 234,157 153,549 6,588 - 414,148
Financial assets sold under

repurchase agreements a.33% - 67,4560 1,682 4652 285 74,279
Deposits from cusiomers 1.3% 124,264 11,560,194  2987T.E51 1,674,005 1,440 16,363,754
Debt sacurities isswed B80% - 251,877 79,389 210334 54,816 506, 526
Oither liabilities 611,828 = = = - 611,928
Tatal Eabilities 1.56% To3046 13,780,705 3,766,673 1,947,800 1,132 20,328,656
Assat-liability gap 210% 154,197 (24758400 1,544,402 756,657 1 T4011 1795827
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{2} Market risk (continued)
fol  fferast rate repricing gan analysis foontinued)

2016
Eiartweren Balwean
Aorirans Mon- Within thrgs o e
imerest rilerest thwae  monihs and and Mowa than
Naote rata [i] bearing manths ona year five years five years Talal

Assels
Cash and deposits with

central banks 1.51% 110,050 273021 - - - 249261
Deposits and placemsants

with banks and non-bank

financial institutions 2.78% - 599 855 153,084 2,349 - 755,288
Financial assats hald under

resale agreamants 280% = 101,581 1,583 - = 103,174
Loans and advances to

Customens i® 4. 26% = 6EE2TI0 4,406,772 320,588 77,885 11,488 355
Investments (0] J65% 310,718 534,380 583313 2004704  1B42B07 5075902
Other axseds 691,725 - - - - 1,725
Total assets AETH 12483 06STTIT 544762 2328041 1720682  A0.863,705
Liabilities
Bomowings from
central banks 2765 - 142,59 206 802 146 - 439,339
Deposits and placamants

{rom banks and non-bank

financial instiutions 2.09% = 1447087 450,354 300 2080 153554
Financial liabeities at Lair

vikhu Ehrough pradit

of loss 2.88% 19847 247,842 126,702 - - 96,501
Financial assets sold under

repurchase agraements 272% - 167 832 1008 1574 65 190,580
Deposits from customens 1.45% 110,999 10313397 3377430 1,593,009 B.O073. 15402915
Debt securities issued 4.04% - 158,133 1,73 131,577 90,063 451,554
Other abiites 567531 - - - - sensa
Tokal Eabities 1.61% GBBATT 12497092 4325878  1.762.316 100,288 19,374,051
Assat-lability gap 206% 424006 (1838375 815884 565,725 1620404 1,589,654

i Average interest rate represents the ratio of interest income/expense to average interast bearing
assetsliabilities.
{ii}  Forloans and advances to customers, the “within three months™ category includes overdue amounts

{net of allowances for impairment losses) of RMBE, 750 million as at 31 December 2017 (as at 31
Decamber 2016: AMBYE, 098 million).

fiiiy  Investments include financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale financial
assets, held-to-maturity investment, investment classified as receivables and investments in
associates and joint ventures.,
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(2) Market risk (continued)
(ol Currancy risk

The Group's foreign exchange exposure mainly comprises exposures that arise from the foreign currency
partfolio within the Treasury Department’s proprietary investments, and currency exposuras ariginated by
the Group's overseas businesses.

The Group manages currency risk by spot and forward foreign exchange transactions and by matching

its foreign currency denominated assets with corresponding liabilities in the same currency, and also uses
derivatives (principally foreign exchange swaps and cross currency swaps) in the management of its own
foreign currency asset and liability portfolios and structural positions.

The Group actively manages foreign currency exposure risk, and minimizes foreign exchange risk by
business lines, Therefore, the net exposure is not sensitive to exchange rate fluctuations and the potential
impact to the pre-tax profits and ofher comprehensive income of the Group is not material,

The currency exposures of the Group's assets and liabilities as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows!
2017
UsD Others
[RMB (RME
Note RMB aquivalent) equivalent) Total
Assets
Cash and depogits with central banks 2,796,711 102,635 88,910 2,988,256
Deposits and placements with banks and
non-bank financial institutions 1] 538,960 151,775 17,854 T08,598
Loans and advances to customars 11,304,255 832,693 437,525 12,574,473
Invastments 4,927,815 167,193 83,707 5,188,715
Other assets 588,623 31,493 43,225 664,341
Total aggets 20,157,373 4,285,789 681,221 22 124,383
Liabilities
Bosrowings from central banks 484,657 35,805 26,825 847,287
Deposits and placements from banks and
non-pank financial institutions iy 1,378,896 277,483 138,534 1,794,913
Financial Rabilities at fair value through
profit ar loss 392,984 20,628 536 414,148
Deposits from customers 15,453,722 503,332 316,700 16,363,754
Debt securities isawed 269,360 226,549 100,588 506,526
Cther liabdities : 511,113 77,123 23,692 611,928
Total liabilities 18,490,761 4,230,920 G0E.875 20,328,556
Nat position 1,666,612 54,860 74,346 1,795,827
Net notional amount of dedvatives 268,266 {294,407) 55,765 29,644
Credit commitments 2,673,845 153,622 201,705 3,029,172
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{2) Market sk (continued)
fell  Currency sk feomtinsed)

218
usn Oithers
[AMB (RMBE
Mate RAME aquivalent) equivakent) Tatal

Assets
Cash and deposits with central bants 2 62T 842 132,658 B8,960 2848261
Deposits and placements with banks and

non-bank financial institutions {ih 677,608 164,258 16,354 BRB.462
Loans and advances to customers 10,318,156 B15,986 354,233 11,488,355
Invastmants 4,874,843 122,967 8,092 5,075,902
Other assets 508,602 153,120 30.003 601,725
Total assels 18,008,852 1,388,211 567,542 20,263,705
Liabilities
Borrowings from central banks 385,374 28,964 25.001 430,339
Deposits and placements from banks and

non-Dank ingncial institutions il 1,740,191 275,673 10,257 2,128,121
Financial kabilities at fair vatue throwgh

prafit or logs 380,632 15,162 Tar 306,501
Deposits from customers 14,539,781 568,294 284,840 15,402,915
Debt securities isswed 213,579 213,837 24038 451,554
Other liabifities 512,886 28,376 16,269 567531
Total liabilities 17,772,443 1,130,406 471,202 19,374,051
Maet position 1,234,408 258,805 96,440 1,588,654
Nt noteonal amount of denvatives 213,538 {280,450 89,001 22,089
Credit commitmanis 2,461,840 68,183 174,503 2,724 526

i Including financial assets held under resale agreameants.

fii} Including financial assets sold under repurchase agreemants.
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3

Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that occurs when the Group cannot obtain sufficient funds in time and at a reasonable
cost to repay debts when they are due, fulfill other payment obligations, or meet the other funding needs in regular
business development. Major factors and events affecting Houidity risks include: massive cutflow of wholesale or
retail deposits, increase in wholesale or retail financing cost, debtor defaults, decrease in the liquidity of assets,
and decrease in the financing ability ete,

In managing liquidity risks, the decision-making systam consists of the Bank's Board of Directors and its sub-
committes, and the senior management. The Head Office’s Asset and Liability Management Department takes the
lead in the daily management of the Bank's liquidity risks, and works along with the Financial Market Department,
Channel and Operation Management Department, Data Management Department, Public Relations & Corporate
Cutture Department, Board of Directors’ Office, management arms of business lines, and relevant divisions of

the branches and subsidiaries to ensure proper execution of liquidity risk management actions. The Board of
Supervisors and Audit Departrment constitute as the supervisory component. These three units perform decision-
making, execution and supervisary functions respactively in the Bank's liquidity risk managemeant as par their rolas
and responsibilities.

The Group's objective for iguidity risk managemeant is to guarantee the Group's payment and settlamant security,
and maintain an optimal balance between the Bank's hiquidity position and profitability, Liquidity risks are managed
on & consolidated basis, where the Head Office centrally manages the Bank"s overall liquidity risks, and in light

of regulatory requirements, extérnal macro enviranment and the Bank's business development status, formulates
liguidity risk management policies, including limit management, intraday liquidity risk management, stress testing
and contingency planning. Subsidiaries are the primary cwners of their own liquidity risk manageament.

The Group conducts stress testing on its liguidity risk position on a quarterly basis in order to gauges its risk
tolarance in adverse situations, including improbabla extreme scenarios. The results have shown that under siress
scenariog, the Bank's liquidity risk increases but remains manageable.

The Group uses a variety of methods to measure its liquidity risks, including liquidity index analysis, analysis of
remaining contractual matunties and undiscounted cash flow analysis,
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(3) Liguidity risk [continued)
@ Maturity analysis

The following tables provide an analysis of the assets and liabilifies of the Group based on the remaining
periods to repayment as at the end of the reporting period:

am7
Batwoen
Batween threa
(] moaths Bitwian
Repayable  Withinone  and three and oneand  More than
Indefinite  om demand maonth meaths cobyear  fwewoars  five years Total
Assets
Cash and deposits with central
bariks 2,705,300 282,056 - - - - = 2583056
Diaporeits and placements with
baniks and non-bank financial
instiutins - 852 1M A BLG25 128814 1,149 - 500,238
Firancial dssets held under nisale
Sreamants - - 203,910 4,450 = - - 208,380
Loans and advances b fusiomens T2 631,065 445,807 561601 2641072 2861396 53409 125T4ATI
Irvegbments
= Financial assets at fair value
theousgh profit or foss 24,556 - 150,934 104,563 150,550 128,525 20,148 578,436
= Awvailable-for-sale francial
asgets 88,855 - a7 644 1,627 127,803 iy Hov] 33023 1,550,680
= Hebd-tg-matunity invesiments - - 13,853 36,360 e 1188285 113788 ISsA TR
= fnvestment classified as
recenmbies - - 284 11478 2810 07401 24m 485,810
= Investments in associabes and
joint venbures 7,087 - - - - - - 7067
\Other assats 244,725 78,850 42,548 85,403 127,317 48,817 38,541 B54,341
Toks xsels 343266  1076.2R 1092068 035108 3419712 5305511 TOEJMER 23124383
Barowings from central banks - - ar.125 107,684 341,708 ™ = ET 8T
Depcaits ansd placements from banks
and nonsbank financial netitions - TE4.4TE 347,584 ZET,10 260,648 85,779 5044 172068
Frncial iabifties at far vakus
throwgh peofit o loss - 19,854 136,833 87323 153550 B,524 - 414,148
Financial assats sold unider
repurchase agreements - - 66,125 1384 1,882 4 a2 b 74,279
Dapcsits from customans = BTBIAT 11727 1A0N9TT 2636827 1699395 25,000 16,383,754
Dbt securitios Bsued
- Certificates of deposit ssued - - 60085 150,190 M 18,140 B 3366
- Bonds issued - - - 162 aT1s 63,355 4,088 T3
= Subcrdinated bonds Ssusd - - - - - 140,044 4,854 144,858
- Eligitle Tier 2 capital bongs ixsed - - - - - 12,967 45,564 58,93
Oher labiltios 4022 135125 74568 TRAT 285810 406,522 14,301 11,928
Total liabiities 4022 00280 189088 1BEAE52  ATISETT 2062482 #9581 20,328,558
Het gaps 313924 [BE26699)  (BOTAIE (BEASMY (316160 2330019 GOE.EAT 1795827
Metional amoun of derivatives
= Interest rate confracis = - 30,749 45943 145,336 98,844 11,604 32 480
= Exchungn rals coniracts - - ET0,TTB BOAEIT 3430481 110477 2628 5307005
- O contracts - - 33,184 1,192 B44T1 3513 2 182,632
Total - - ST 1,000,766 3660288 HLER 14,508 BE2I 07
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(3) Liguidity risk {continued)
(@) Maturity analysis fcontinued)

2016
Betwien Hebwisn
ane and thige Batween
Fapayabia  Within on thres  months and onrand Mo than
Indafirila  on demard month maniths one year fre yeam frem years Total
LU
Cagtand depossts with centrai banks 2582203 257,088 - - - - - RBdAEm
Deposits and placements with banls
and ner-bank financial ingtRutiong = #5518 306,303 133,820 S1B.5484 6,313 - 785,288
Financial assets hetd under nesale
ageemants = - Ta.001 23580 1,583 - - 103,174
lLoans and adwances bo cuslomens 75,438 &84 31 401,823 TOa215 2844332 200028 42T A75 114887358
Imvestments
= Financial acsets &1 fair value
throurgh. peolit of loss 18,578 - [l 133,374 182 a7 107,723 14,518 484370
= Fvzilable-for-sals fnancial assets 285,020 - 28,080 5,382 182110 TH3,080 ie2 1AM
= Hekd-to-matunty mvesimants - - 5218 44,850 200830 1053776 1133543 2438417
- Investment classified ag
resnabies - - 45048 26,747 53056 178458 204,625 E0T 963
- Investments in asocates and
Jeint ventunes T8 - - - - - - TAIE
Caher asats 28,089 89,878 3077 79,502 ifcic| 55,045 30,118 6,725
Toka! azsats 2207 426 815,873 SE2 037 122550 3612301 S0BESSD 5958033 20.8E3.705
Linbilities
Bormowings from central banks - - 83,176 59,415 296602 146 - 439,339
Deposits and placements fiom banks
and nervbank financial nstautions - ] 226,500 167,189 481,550 61,458 5740 1,835,541
Financial Rakiltes at 1ok vale
Brircuagh peok o iss - 19,847 131,30 116,642 138,70 - - 396,50
Financial assets soid under
rEpUrChase agreaments = - 154,074 3858 1008 1574 =] 120,580
Depasits from cuglomers - B33.448 SSE0TE 113365 2TARAM 2244054 18,001 15402 415
= Certificates of depass ssuad = = 1,274 5,381 7,153 15,007 183 189,008
= Bords isued - - - 2084 4023 36,559 4,097 47,163
= Subdrdinated bonds Bsued - - - - 218 100,230 45,151 145,589
- Elgible Tier 2 capital bonds issued - - - - - 13,628 45,055 £4,784
ICther Eabiltes 582 116,506 52 587 BT, TH0 P34 ASE ?Bﬁt‘.‘i 6,837 B5T.5
Tl iphiktas 580 0455634  LT0B006 105644 3007011 2550483 125811 19.374.051
Het gaps 3206544 (BS30TET  (FAISEE  ETI0  ROGM 253NT  SANIET 1553884
MNotional amourn of deswtives
= Inberest rade coniracis - - T0EN TrA18 4710 106,484 11,586 470,808
- Exchanga rale contracts - - TH Ad5 TER e 2840614 140,550 65,750 4,550,218
= (her confracts - = 47 BE3 25,685 177,124 W0ATT k3 331,553
Toaal - - 589,609 ES8229 3331448 256,521 18,370 BABLETT
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244 MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF RMB, UNMLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{3) Liguidity risk (continued)
) Confractual tndiscounted cash fow

The following tables provide an analysis of the contractual undiscounted cash flow of the non-derivative
financial liabilities and off balance sheet cradit commitments of the Group as at the end of reporting period,
The Group's expected cash flows on these instruments may vary significantly from this analysis.

FiLH
Batween Betwasn Eahanén
Gross. one manth three o
Camying cash  Repayable Within one andhme months and el Mowe e
1T outlow  on demand masth monta o el e years five ypears
Ron-derivative financial
lishiltis
Bomowings inom central banks BT 5L - a4 110,500 35LE11 ™ -
Duspecsits and placements irom
bares- and ron-bark firancial
Irstititions: 1726 1751170 Th6 401 351516 1385 0818 T4, 106 BT
Firancial Eabiities it far value
through peofi o loss 4158 LRET kS 1054 138,00 3850 154750 6,605 -
Firaancial assets sold under
reperchase ayeements 74278 75,174 - %] 1314 203 5,658 i
Desproesitss from customens 16380784 tETRSAD 8,785,408 1,131,663 1,138,058 2,736,162 1,005,745 2108
- Cortficates of deposd istimd 21,368 3,190 - B3.261 150,660 0483 403 @
- Boned issusd 1. Fikri] - xa 1,79 B 7,530 4551
- Bibordinated bonds ssued 144558 24,078 - k] 124 583 175,338 2236
= Elgible: Toer 2 capital bonds
e 568831 B = & = 1758 2 LR
Ot finandial Babilles 216842 6642 poke ] 6,560 197 12416 - 13352
Totdl WA MATEEN  0E6GE 1ETRAS  LENEM LTRNET 2MEA0 15T
(0% halance shee boan
commitmerls. end credit cand
commtmars ok 13083 11358 85,704 B111 anan B0 1242
Gearentess, acceplances and
oher credi enmemitments (Mot 163G - 208 482 2830 425,887 542,427 38,481
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(3) Liguidity risk {continued)
B Comfractval undiscounted cash fow foontinued)

2016
Btwssn Betwnen Bertwraesn
GO0 ST i 00 yiar
Campng  Grosscash  Rapayable Within o theea  months and and  Mioes than
ot outfiowr  ondemand  oremanth months o yaar from yaars frea yoars
Non-derivative fnancial
Borowings from ceniral banks 450,339 448,505 - B 59,945 303,955 145 -
Deposits and pracaments from
banikes and non-bank fnancal
institutions 1835541 181240 852,965 20278 168.5ar 512,184 B8.621 THM
Financial fabdses at far valos
trecugh proft ar loss 296,581 399304 19,947 132354 17,082 129511 - -
Friancial assats sold under
repurchase agreements 150,580 180,852 = 184,280 3503 1018 1,574 ]
Depoesits from cuslomers 15402915 15773027  BAITETS 978805 1042685 2B299T4  24E2.243 21,381
Dasbt secuities dsued
- Certificates of depost ssued 199,008 424 = 1,772 65517 a0 15,639 168
- Bond lssued 47,163 53205 - 208 215 5136 &1 4,504
= Subcedinated bonds ssued 145585 179558 - - 123 5185 124,329 47813
- Enigitle Tiar 2 capital bongs
Fesued 0,784 BOA3 - - - 2814 24577 53,743
Otfver financal labilies 158,807 189,807 BT 124 12,538 18,252 B5.685 - 5228
Todsl 19006327 19487756 407036 TR8ATSY  1SBOTES 38481 275N 140,597

Of- balance sheet lean

commitments and ored? cand

commiltments (Note] 1,264,751 1,043,081 7123 15313 70,347 52127 12552
Guaarantess, acceplances and

oéher credit commitments (MNobe) 1,458,775 - nrEm 183,73 367083 566,064 4500z

Mote: The off-balance sheet loan commitments and credit card cammitments may agHrg withoul Being drawn upon.
Guarantees, acceptances and other credit commitments do not represant the amouwnt 1o be paid.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF RMB, UNMLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Operational risk

Cperational risk is the risk of loss due to inadequate or flawed intarnal processes, people, systems or external
events. In 2017, the Group continued to strengthen its operational risk management, oplimize operational risk
management tools and deepen and expand the applications of thesa toods.

4)

(5)

Using a variety of means and methods, including special self-assessments, entity-level comprehensive self-
assessments and project re-visits, the Bank took anticipatory actions to identify and assess operational risks
and strengthen and improve internal controks.

It al=o strengthened its operational risk monitoring and early-waming capability, including establishing
tailored key risk indicator monitering systems in tier-one branches, overseas institutions and subsidiaries,
improving the head office-lavel key risk indicator system, and reinforging risk managemeant and control aver
key areas and componants,

Az part of its efforts to strengthen the business continuity management system, the Bank harmonized the
emergency management and disaster recovery strategy in the New Generation Core System, and followed
the implementation of the Mew Generation Gore Systermn with timely development of relevant supporting rules
and procedures as well as special action plans.

Fair valua of financial instruments

fa

el

Vatuation process, techrmigoue and inow!

The Board is responsible for establishing a robust internal control policy of valuation, and takes the ultimate
responsibility for the adeguacy and effectiveness of internal control system, The Board of Supervisors
takes charge of supervising the performance of the Board and Senior Management. According to the
requirements of the Board and the Board of Supervisors, Senior Management is responsible for organising
and implemeanting the internal control system over the valuation process to ensure the effectivenass of the
internal controd system of valuation,

The Group has established an independent valuation process for financial assets and financial liabilities. The
relevant departments are responsible for performing valuation, verifiing valuation model and accounting of
valuation results.

The major valuation techniques and inputs used by the Group are set out in Mote 4(3)(g) and Note 4(24)(c).
Far the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no significant change in the valuation techniques or inputs
used to determine fair value as compared to those used for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Fair vatve fuerarcliy
The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measureaments:

- Level 1: Fair value based on quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
lizbilities.

- Lewval 2: Fair value based on inputs other than quoted prices included within lewval 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly {that is, as prices) or indirectly (that Is, derived from prices).

- Level 3: Fair value based on inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on obzservable market
data {that is, unobservable inputs).
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(5)

ol Finarcial insfrunents measured at far value

)

Fair value hierarchy
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The table below analyses financial instruments, measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
periad, by the fevel in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised:

217
Leved 1 Lewvel 2 Leval 3 Tatal
Assets
Financial assets al fair value through
profit or loss
Financial gssels el for trading porpase
= Dbt Securitios 2,080 187,397 - 189,447
- Equity instruments and funds 1,312 - - 1412
Financial assels desigraled as ot ek vaie
Heroah oot o ioss
- Debt securities - i 10,211 10,211
- Equity instruments and funds. 83T - 22,239 23076
= Other debt instruments - 228,995 125,385 354,300
Pasitive fair value of derivatives - 82,881 99 82,980
Available-lor-sale financial assets
- Debt securities 176,70 1,282,194 2,839 1,461,824
= Equity instruments and funds 8,181 63,806 4,419 TG 406
Total 180,171 1,845,273 165,202 2,199,646
Liabilities
Firancial liabities at fair value through
profit ar loss
Financia! fabilites casignaied as af &
waiee Bl prolit or foss = 413,676 472 414,148
Pingelie téN vaius of trlvitive. = ThaTD e IS0
Tatal - 493,445 570 494,015
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

{5)

Fair valua of financial instruments (continued)
fol  Fimanciad insfrurmeants measured af fair valve feontimued)
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Fair value higrarchy fcontinued)
Lenved 1 Lewed 2 Level 3 Tatal
Assels
Fimancial assets at fair value through profit or
oS
Financia! assels held for iading perposs
- Diebt securities 3,134 138,196 - 141,330
= Equity instruments and funds 1,825 - - 1.825
Fingncial BEsels ORSoTaoc 8% al K vale
oot proit or foss
= Dbt securities = - B.690 B.630
- Equity ingtrurments and funds 421 - 16,132 16,553
- Other debl ingtruments = 55,116 264,858 319,972
Fozitive fair valua of derivatives - 89,320 66 58,786
Available-for-sale financial assats
= Debt securities 59,380 1,283,715 5719 1,348,814
- Equity instruments and funds 40,617 231,378 9,349 281,344
Total 105,377 1,787,725 305,212 2,208,314
Liabilities
Firgncial iabilties at fair value through
profit or loss
Flnancial Sadiites ceignaied 83 af far
v Bt profit or foss - 395,883 o8 356,591
Megative fair value of dervatives - B9, 788 545 90,333
Total - 485,871 1.253 486,924

A majority of the financial assets classified as level 2 is RMB bonds. The fair value of these bonds

is determined based on the valuation results provided by China Central Depository & Clearing Co.,
Lid. A majority of the financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss classified as
level 2 is the fund raised from principal guaranteed wealth management products, the fair value of
which is determined based on the income approach. The majority of derivatives is classified as level 2
and valued using income approach. For the valuation of financial instruments classified as level 2, all

significant inputs are observable market data,

The financial asseat at fair value through profit or loss classified as level 3 is the underlying assets of
principal guarantead wealth management products. These financial agsats are valued using income
approach and market approach, which incorporate the non-observable assumptions including

discount rate,

A= at 31 December 2017 and 2016, there were no significant transfers betweaen level 1 and level 2 of

thie fair value hierarchy of the Group.
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Fair value of financial ingtruments (continued)
ol Finarcial insfrunents measured af fair valve focontinued!
Movements of fair value of financial instruments in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

(5)

fii)
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The following table shows a reconciliation from the opeaning balances to the ending balances for fair
value measurerment in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

e
Francil sssels desrated 5 2 bl lor-sal Foancid
i o Bevagh et or by frarcid wsets labilites
Positng sy
Bty Oeber ﬂ' Eepaty mallarvie Mgt
L debit e of Deifl  irstrumpts Tetal through  Bair vl of Tetal
siwites wdind  esteeels  deeling woeiies  aadionds ety prilorks dweben Eplelition
Re ot 1 Sy 007 L] iR B # 5118 o8 HEn2 | 25 153
Total gains orlosses
Inprefi o ks i i’ %8 (43 =4 5y A+ M w [
iy comgrahinging
ooz = = = E L] = ¥ = = =
Puschases I usR e - T AL ] ) - 287
Seles e seffiaments B Hasm  [an [124) P feg  [EESH) i o5 )
kst 31 Decasber 37 0 ok = # e MR ra ] =
]
Fiuancil assets dsigreind st A br-s Franid
i g through proil o s francid assels fabites
Fagtt S
Equty (ear far Equty willra  Negie
Dett  reirmanhs detit v of Debd  isbuments Teldl g far valed Toldl
e T e e L S B ]
bl 1 Jamoary A1IE S8 138 0L m Bl SEr o] g9 [ .3
Tiokad g o iceset:
I proft o loss i ] [1ik ] T Y i 14 TS 5 i kil
In{Fer comprEhensie
heoee - - - - ] [ w - -
Puhgses ¥l % EiEn - i LR s @ - =]
e o setfemants 2] s T 5] BiTe [-E (BERALE 15 o WA
et 3t 1 Degusber 216 L LA L 4 ing p] W s 545 11258
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{EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF RMB, UNMLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{8) Fair value of financial instruments (continuead)
fol  Fimanciad insfrurmeants measured af fair valve feontimued)

i

Movemeants of fair value of financial instruments in level 3 of the fair value higrarchy fcontinued)

In level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, total gains or losses included in profit or loss for the year in
thie abowve table are presented in net trading gain, net gain arising from investment securities and
impairment losses of the statement of comprehensive income.

Gains or lossas on level 3 financial assets and habilities included in the statement of comprehensive
INCOMe COMprise;

207 2me

Realised Unrealised Tatal Realised Unrealizad Total
Total gainslossag) 1,964 603 2,567 7.782 {89 7603

(& Financial instrument's not measured ar 1air valie

f#

fif}

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets not measured at fair value mainly include cash and deposits with central
banks, deposits and placements with banks and non-bank financial institutions, financial assets

held under resale agreemeants, loans and advances to customers, held-to-maturity investments and
investment classified as receivables.

LDheposits with contral Banks, oepesis and QECSments wildt Banks and Hnon-Dank Fngricial insiivions
s Brancial assals Reld Lrder fesale Soreartenis.

Deposits with central banks, deposits and placements with banks and non-bank financial institutions
and financial assets held under resale agreements are mainly priced at market interest rates and
mature within one year. Accordingly, the carrying values approximate the fair values.

Loans and ackances fo customers

Majority of the loans and advances to customers are repriced at least annually to the market rate.
Accordingly, their carrying values approximate the fair values.

svestiments

The following table shows the carrying values and the fair values of investment classified as
recaivables and held-to-maturity investments which are not presented in the statement of financial
position at their fair values.

a7 2016

Camying Camyirg
wilua  Fair valoe Lewil 1 Ll 2 Lewvald vild  Finf Vil Ll 1 L 2 Lirwtd 3

e

Inverstmend

classified as

receivabias 4E5810 480,353 = 456,581 13832 S0TS68 512409 - 358488 1538
Held-to-makurity

nvestiments 2586722 3535380 23186 2512004 = TAREAT 2404243 1350 2400802 -

Total 052532 3015633 25,186 25TH.615 13530 2546380 3006652 1350 2851350  1EaA

Financial Kabilities

The Group's financial liabilities not measuered at fair value mainly include borrowings from central
banks, deposits and placemneants from banks and non-bank financial institutions, financial assets sold
under repurchase agreements, deposits from custorners, and debt securities issued. The fair value

of subordinated bonds and the eligible Tier 2 capital bonds issued as at 31 December 2017 was
RMEZ211.511 million {as at 31 December 2016: RMB212,166 million), and their carrying value was
RME203,829 million (as at 31 December 2016 RMB205,383 million). The carrying values of other
financial llabilities approximated their fair values as at the end of the reporting period. The Group uses
observable inputs to measure the fair values of subordinated bonds and eligible Tier 2 capital bonds
issuad, and classified as the Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy,
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(€)

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group are subject to enforceable master netting
arrangements or similar agreements. The agreement between the Group and the counterparty generally allows for
net settlement of the relevant financial assets and financial liabilities when both elect to settle on a net basis. In the
absence of such an election, financial assets and financial abilities will be settled on a gross basis, However, each
party to the master netting arrangements or similar agreements will have the option to sattle all such amounts on

a net basis in the event of default of the other party. These financial aszels and financial liabilities of the Group are
not offset in accordance with IFRS.

As at 31 December 2017, the amount of the financial assets and financial liabilities subject to enforceable master
netting arrangements or similar agreaments are not material to the Group.

Insurance Risk

The risk under an insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty in

the resulting claim amount. Tha characteristic of an insurance contract inherently decides randomness and
unpredictability of the underlying insurance risk. For insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied
1o pricing and provisicning of insurance contract labilities, the principal risk that the Group faces is that the actual
claims and benefit payments exceed the carmying amount of the insurance contract liabilities,

The Group manages the uncertainty of insurance rigk through its undenwriting strategy and policies to diversify the
underwriting risks, adequate reinsurance arrangements, and enhanced underwriting control and claim control.

The Group makes related assumptions for the insurance risks and recognises insurance contract liabilities
accordingly. For long-term personal insurance confracts and short-term personal insurance contracts, insurance
risk may be elevated by the uncertainty of insurance risk assumptions including assumptions on death events,
ralavant expenses, and interest rates. For property and casualty insurance contracts, claims are often affected by
natural disasters, catastrophes, terrorist attacks and other factors. In addition, the insurance risk will be affected
by the policy termination, premium reduction or policyholders” refusal of payment, that is, the insurance risk will be
affected by the policyholder’s behavior and decision,
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(8)

Capital managament

The Bank has implemented comprehensive capital management, covering capital managemeant policies design,
capital projecting and planning, capital calculation, internal capital assessment, capital allocation, capital
mctivation, restriction and conduction, capital raising, monitoring and reporting, and applications of advanced
approach of capital calculation on the management of the ordinary course of the business, General principlas
of capital management of the Bank s to continuously retain an adequate capital level, retain a certain margin of
safety and a certain level of buffer based on that all regulatory requirements have been complied, and ensure
that the capital can cover all kindz of risks adeqguately; exercise reasonable and effective capital allocation and
strengthen capital restraint and incentive mechanism to support the strategic planning effectively and to restrict
and conduct the business so as to increasa the capital efficiency and return level continuously; tamp capital
strength, and retain relatively high capital guality by achieving capital supplement with priority to the internal
accumulation and utilising various capital instruments reasonably to optimise capital structure; continuousky
develop the advanced approach of capital management on the applications in the business management such as
eredit palicies, credit approval and pricing.

Capital adequacy ratio is a reflection of the Group's ability to maintain a stable operation and resist adverse
risks. In accordance with CBRC's “Measures for Capital Management of Commercial Banks {trial)” and relevant
regulations, commercial banks should meet the minimum capital requirements from 1 January 2013, The
Common Equity Tier 1 ratio should be at or above a minimum of 5%, Tier 1 ratio at or above a minimum of 6%
and total capital ratio at or above a minimum of 8%. Systematically important domestic banks should also meet
the 1% additicnal capital requirement, with their Common Equity Tier 1 capital. Meanwhile, in accordance with
CBRC's "MNotice of relevant transitional arrangeament for implementation of Measures for Capital Management of
Commercial Banks (trial)”, a capital conservation buffer will be introduced progressively during the transitional
peried, which will be raised through Common Equity Tier 1 capital. If a countercyclical buffer is required or the
Pillar 2 capital requirement is raised by the regulator to a specific commercial bank, the minimum requirements
should be meat within the transitional period,

The Group timely monitors, analyses and reports capital adequacy ratios, assesses if the capital managemsant
objectives have been met and exercises effective management of capital adequacy ratio. The Group adopts
various measures such as controlling asset growth, adjusting the structure of risk assets, increasing internal
capital supply and raising capital through external channals, to ensure that the Common Equity Tier 1 ratio, Tier
1 ratio and total capital ratio of the Group are in full compliance with regulatory requiremeants and meet internal
managemant requirements. This helps 10 insulate against potential risks as well as support healthy business
developments, The Group now fully complies with all regulatory requirements in this respect,

The Group's capital planning has taken the regulatory requirements, the Group's development strategy and risk
appatite into consideration, and based on those factors the Group projects the capital usage and need,

The capital raising managemant of the Group involves reasonable utilisation of various capital instruments to
ensure that both external regulatory and internal capital management objectives are met, taking into account
capital planning and cperating environment. This helps to optimise the Group's capital structure.

Ir April 2014, CBRC has officially approved the implementation of the advanced approzch of capital managament
by the Bank. In this approach, the Bank has elected to use foundation internal rating based (“IRE") approach for
corporate risk exposure which is compliant with regulatory requirements. IRB approach for retail risk exposure,
internal models approach for market risk and standardised approach for operational risk exposure,
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(8)

Capital management (continued)

The Group's capital adequacy ratio calculated in accordance with the “"Measures for Capital Management of

Commercial Banks (trial)" issued by the CBRC as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Mot 2m7 2018
Commen Eguity Tier 1 ratio (aib¥ch 13.00% 12.98%
Tier 1 ratio (albkch 13.71% 13.15%
Total capital ratio (apbKch 15.50% 14.84%
Coamman Equity Tier 1 capital
- Cualifying commaon share capital 250,011 250,011
= Capital reserve () 108,968 132,800
= Surplus resene 198,613 175,445
- Ganaral reserve 260,600 211,134
- Retained samings BE3 184 TB4 164
- Mon-controlling bnterest recognised in Common Equity Tier 1 capital 3,264 4,069
= Cthers e} 4, 256) 788
Deductions for Common Equity Tier 1 capital
— Goodwill ifl 2,556 2752
= Other intangible assets (excluding land use rights) {f} 2,274 2083
= Cash-flow hedge resarvea 0 {150
= Irr@siments i Common eguity of Fnancial institutiong basinigy
controfled but cutside the scope of consolidation 3,902 3.802
Additional Tier 1 capital
= Other directly issued qualifying additional Tier 1 inatruments
including related premium 79,636 19,659
- Mon-controlling interest recognized in Additional Tier 1 capital 152 B2
Tier 2 capital
= Diractly issuad qualifying Tier 2 instrumants including related premium 138,848 155,684
- Provisions in Tier 2 (i} 92,838 58.261
~ Mon-controlling interest recognized in Tier 2 capital 266 ars
Common Equity Tier 1 capital after deduction ih} 1,691,332 1549834
Teer 1 capital after deduction iRk 1,771,120 1,568,575
Total capital after deduction G} 2,003,072 1.783.015
Risk-weighted azsets i 12,919,880 11,937,774
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65 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{8) Capital management {continued)
Motes:

fal  Since the Half Year report of 2014, the Group has elected the advanced approach to calculate capital
adequacy ratio and implemented the parallel period rules.

b} The Commeon Equity Tier 1 ratio is calculated by dividing the Common Equity Tier 1 Gapital after deduction
by risk-weighted assats, Tier 1 ratio is calculated by dividing the Tier 1 Capital after deduction by risk-
waighted assets. Total Capital ratio is calculated by dividing the Total capital after deduction by risk-
welghted assets.

fe)  The scope for calculating capital adequacy ratio of the Group incluedes all the domestic branches and
subsidiaries in the financial sector (excluding CCB Life).

dy  Capital reserve includes investment revaluation reserve,
(e}  Others mainly include foreign exchange reserve,

(i  Both balances of goodwill and other intangible assets (excluding land use right) are the net amounts after
deducting relevant deferred tax liabilities.

(g}  Since the Half Year report of 2014, eligible excessive loan provisions was measured based on the advanced
approach and implemented paraliel period rules.

(h)  Common Equity Tier 1 capital after deduction is calculated by netting off the correspanding deductian
itemns from the Commaon Equity Tier 1 capital. Tier 1 capital after deduction is calculated by netting off the
coresponding deduction items from the Tier 1 capital. Total capital after deduction is calculated by netting
off the corresponding deduction iterns from the total capital,

il A3 December 2017, according to the rules of advanced appreach, risk-weighted assats include credit
risk-weighted assets, market risk-weighted assetz, operational rizk-weighted assets and excessive risk-
weighted assets due to the application of capital floor.
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66 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF THE BANK

217 2016
Assets:
Cash and depcsits with central banks 2,973,506 2542072
Deposits with banks and non-bank financial instituticns 126,766 389,062
Precious metals 157,036 202,851
Piacements with banks and non-bank financial institutions 286,TO7 a5
Financial assets at falr value through profit o lass 385,538 360,628
Pagtive fair value of defivatives 75,851 B1.428
Finamcial asgets held wnder rasale agreements 194,650 67.391
Interest receivable 111,436 86,040
Loans and advances to customars 12,081,328 11,062,938
Avaitable-for-gabe financial assels 1,402,017 1473168
Held-to-maturity investments 2,550,066 2410110
Investment classified as receivables 575,004 508,363
Investmeants in subsidiaries 51,660 aroza
Invastment in consolidated structurad entities 18T 466 211,808
Fixed assels 144,042 145421
Land ugse rights 13,657 14,277
intangible assets 1,831 1.588
Deferred tax assels 43,821 28281
Othar assats 1,671 106,344
Total assets 21,465,351 20,381.402
217 26
Liabilities:
Borrowings from central banks 546,633 438,660
Ceposits from banks and mon-bank financial institutions 132331 1.582.881
Placements frem banks and non-bank financial institutions 318,488 31,095
Finarcial kabilities at fair value through profit or loss 413,523 395,769
Megative fair vatue of derivatives 73,730 B3.332
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreemeants 53123 170,067
Deposits from customers. 16,064,638 15,114,983
Accrued staff costs 29,908 n.7ve
Taxes payahle 51,772 43,653
Interest payable 197,153 210,035
Provisions 8,543 7,336
Debt sacurities issued 538,989 3686491
Defarred tax liabilitias 39 L]
Other liabditias 95,324 5415
Total liabilities _ o . 18718234 185830.158
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256 | MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF RMB, UNMLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

66 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF THE BANK
(CONTINUED)

2017 2016
Equity:
Shara capital 250,011 250,011
Cher equity instruments Preference Shares 8,636 19,659
Capital ressrve 135,781 134,520
Inwestment revaluation reserve (24,463) 1213
Surplus reserve 198,613 175,445
General reserve 254,864 206,697
Retained earmings 856,109 766,312
Exchangs reserve fa44) (88)
o VORI s s e e G e Lo s TR 1551243
Total liabilities and equity 21,465,351 20,381,402
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors 27 March 2018,
Wang Zuji Chung Shui Ming Timpson Carl Walter
i AT, axpciive Bt N e e R T RO ASr-gNaCLTive
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66 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF THE BANK
(CONTINUED)

(thar sepaty
LTty -at o gt eent
Srars praténence ol rvalition Sumiis Genanl Retarad Eocrangs Toadl
capls shars TR FEEEE L] rasenve BETHGS FESEVE aqulty
Az 31 Decamber 2016 o 10 ] (1283 175,445 HEET TBEE [188) 1581.243
Movements during ihe year - s 121 23250 23,168 4,167 BaTey {254 185474
[1) Total compeshensive income
for the yaar - B 1. 2350 - - 291,880 (256 a4
(& Changesn shane capial
| Captal ijection by other squity
hifers. - sa817 - - - 5877
[3 Profit distribution
| Appmprigtion 1 surphka resen - =+ = = ek} = ZE163 : =
i Appogeigtion to general resenie = o = = r 48,67 (4167 . x
il (Dvidends paid to-ordinany
Sareholirs = = = 3 - = 3503 = (BRU503
hr Dhidends paid bo preflarence
sharehoiirs = = = # = G (105 £ 1,085
As ol 31 Decamber 2007 20011 THEME L5791 24463 TRER1D 2 B56.105 14 1757
Othar squty
Nt [ o= ]
Stera [elaronce Captdl eavaliation Surpus Genand Aelarad Excranga Totdl
sapda shares TR FEsEne FeeisvE fesane BETENGE Save equ.';‘
A5 ot 3 Decomber 2015 =001 s ] n 155052 ] E5B54E {1450 1420096
Movements during the year - - ]| 23,78 24 24378 07767 1272 LEIR
[1] Tobal comprehensive ncome
for the year - - e T8 - - 2408 1272 ati i b
[ Profit distribution
i Appropeation 19 Saphs resand - - - - =413 - Ed1y - -
B Appingetion b giceedl resen - - - - - 24378 (24378 - -
i Dhviciancts pesid to orclinary
g z = - v . - s - (BRSO
i Drwidands pasd b peeference
ol - - ~ - - - {1.067) = 1.067)
As Bt 3 Decomber 2016 350,01 MR ] 1243 175445 206697 ThEH2 185 1551043

67 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There are no significant events after the reporting period,

68 COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to confirm with the presentation and disclosures in the current period.

69 ULTIMATE PARENT
As stated in Note 1, the immediate and ultimate parent of the Group is Huijin and CIC respectively.
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{EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF RMB, UNMLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

70 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE
Up to the date of izsue of the financial statements, the ASE has issued the following amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are relevant to the Group. These amendments, new standards and interpretaticns are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2017 and have not been adopted in the financial statements.

Effective for

annual periods

Standards beginning on or after
{1} IFRS 8, “Financial Instruments™ 1 January 2018
(2} IFRS 15, "Revenue from Contracts with Customars” 1 January 2018
(3 IFRS 18, “Leases” 1 January 2019
(4} IFRS 17, “Insurance Contracts"” 1 January 2021

(1) IFRS 9, "Financial Instruments"”

IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014, It will replace the existing guidance in 1AS 38 Financial Instruments: Recagnition
and Measurement.

IFRS @ has three financial asset classifications categories for investments in debt instruments: amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income ("0CI") and fair value through profit or loss. Classification is driven

by the entity’s business madel for managing the debt instruments and their contractual cash flow characteristics,
Investments in equity instruments are always measured at fair value. However, management can make an
irevocable election to present changes in fair value in OCI, provided the instrument i not held for trading. If the
equity instrument is hald for trading, changes in fair value are presented in profit or loss. For financial liabilities
thera are two classifications categories: amortised cost and fair value through profit or loss, Where non-derivative
financial liakilities are designated at fair value through profit or loss, the changes in the fair value dug 1o changes in
the liability's own credit risk are recognised in OC), unless such changes in fair value would create an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss, in which case, all fair value movements are recognised in profit or loss, There is no
subsequent recycling of the amounts in OOCI to profit or loss, For financial lizbilities held for trading (including
derivative financial liabiiities), all changes in fair value are presented in profit or loss.

IFRS 9 introduces a new model for the recognition of impairment losses - the expected credit losses (ECL) modal,
which constitutes a change from the incurred loss model in 1AS 39. IFRS 9 contains a ‘three stage” approach,
which is based en the change in credit quality of financial assets since initial recognition, Assets move through

the thres stages as credil quality changes and the stages dictate how an entity measures impairment osses and
applies the effective interest rate method. The new rules mean that on initial recognition of a non-credit impaired
financial asset camied at amortised cost, a day-1 loss equal to the 12-month ECL is recognised in profit or loss.,
Where there is a significant increase in credit risk, impairment is measured using litetima ECL rather than 12-month
ECL.

Credit risk assessment and ECL estimates must reflect unbiased and probability-weighted amounts, and
incorporate all available information relevant to the assessments, including reasonable and supportable information
on past events, and current and forecasted economic conditions. In addition, ECL estimation should also consider
the time value of maney. In comparison with 143 39, IFAS 9 intends impairment recognition and measurament to
be more forward-iooking.

IFRS 9 applies to all hedging relaticnships, with the exception of portfolio fair value hedges of interest rate risk. The
new guidance better aligns hedge accounting with the risk management activities of an entity and provides relief
from the more “rule-based™ appreach of 145349,

The Group estimated that the adoption of IFRS 9 would reduce its net assets by approximately 1% as at 1 January
2018, mainly due to the application of ECL model.
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70 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE (CONTINUED)

(2

(3)

{4

IFRS 15, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining when to recognise revenue and how much
revenus to recognise through a 5-step approach. The core principle is that a company should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the company expects to be enfitled in exchange for those goods or serviges. It moves away from a revenue
racognition model based on an “earnings processes” to an “asset-liability" approach based on transfer of control.

IFRS 15 provides specific guidance on capitalization of contract cost and licence arrangements. It alzo includes.
a cohesive set of disclosure requirements about the nature. amount, timing and wuncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from the entity's contracts with customers.

IFRS 15 replaces the previous revenue standards: IAS 18 Revenue and 1AS 11 Construction Contracts, and the
related Interpretations on revenue recognition.

The Group anticipates that adoption of IFRS 15 will not have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

IFAS 16, “Leases”

IFRS 16, “Leases" addresses the definiticn of a lease, recognition and measurement of leases and astablishes
principles for reporting wuseful information to users of financial statements about the leasing activities of both
lesseas and lessors, A key change arising from IFRS 16 is that most operating leases will be accounted for on
statermnent of financial position for lessees. The standard replaces IAS 17 “Leases”, and related interpretations. The
Group iz currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 upon initial application.

IFRS 17, “Insurance Contracts”™

IFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 as replacement for IFRS 4 Inswrance Contracts. It requires a currant
measurement model where estimates are re-measured each reporting period. Contracts are measured using the
building blocks of;

. discounted probability-weaighted cash flows
. an explicit risk adjustment, and

. a contractual service margin ("CSM”) representing the uneamed profit of the contract which is recognised as
revenuea over the coverage period.

The standard allows a choice betwean recognising changes in discount rates either in the income statement or
directly in other comprehensive income. The choice is likely to reflect how insurers account for their financial
assets under IFRS 9.

An optional, simplified premium allocation approach is permitted for the Bability for the remaining coverage for
short duration contracts, which are often written by non-life insurers.

Thera is a modification of the general measurement model called the ‘variable fee approach’ for certain contracts
written by life insurers where policyholders share in the returns from underlying items. When applying the variable
fee approach the entity's share of the fair value changes of the underlying itemns is included in the contractual
service margin. The results of insurers using this model are therefore likely to be less volatile than under the
general mocal,

The Group is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 17 upon initial application.

China Construction Bank Corpaoration Annual Roport 2017
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2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
17.36 19.76 20.20 18.34 17.35
1405 16.24 18.32 15.01 15.75
15.90 17.19 19.22 16.37 16.63
17.36 19.35 18.36 16.76 17.29
UFJ
2017 12 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
17.35 17.40 17.45 17.00 17.32 17.46
16.99 17.10 16.88 16.57 16.87 16.87
17.14 17.26 17.10 16.80 17.09 17.25
UFJ
17.27 2018 14

2018 14 UFJ
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of China Construction Bank Corporation
(ajoint stock company incorporated in the People’ s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China Construction Bank Corporation (the “Bank”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group™) set out on pages 138 to 259, which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financia statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs’) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS") issued by the
Hong Kong Insgtitute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”™). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Caode of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit mattersidentified in our audit are summarised as follows:
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Allowances for impairment |osses on loans and advances to customers
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Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Allowances for impairment losses on loans and
advances to customers

Refer to notes 4(3)(f), 4(24)(a), 13, 25, 65(1) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Asat 31 December 2017, the gross balance of loans
and advances to customers and allowances for
impairment losses amounted to RMB12,903.4
billion and RMB329 billion, respectively.

Allowances for impairment |osses are estimated
using individual and collective assessments.

Individually significant loans and advances to
customers areinitially assessed for impairment.
Homogeneous groups of loans and advances to
customers not considered individually significant,
and those which were individually assessed but
were found not to have objective evidence of
impairment, are assessed for impairment on a
collective basis.

Identification of impairment indicators and
estimation of future cash flows for individual
assessment, parameters and assumptions applied to
the calculation methodology for collective
assessment require significant management’s
judgements. In addition, because of the large size of
the allowances for impairment losses on loans and
advances to customers, we focused on thisin our
audit.

Our procedures include the following:

We evaluated and tested the design and
operating effectiveness of internal controls
related to allowances for impairment losses on
loans and advances to customers, including the
identification of impairment indicators and the
impairment assessment process.

Individual assessment

Based on criteria that may indicate evidence of
impairment (including whether the borrowers
were experiencing financia difficulties or
breached |oan covenants), we performed
independent credit reviews on a sample of
individually significant loans and advances to
customers to assess whether these bal ances were
impaired and whether the impairment was
identified by management on atimely basis.

For the impaired |oans and advances from our
sample, we tested the estimated future cash
flows (including realisable value of mortgages
and pledges, and support from guarantors) and
discount rates against underlying supporting
information including external evidence where
available. We also independently tested the
calculations through re-performance.

Collective assessment

We tested the underlying loan information used
in the impairment models by agreeing the
relevant datato the Group’s loan systems and
the general ledger.

We evaluated the parameters and assumptions
(including historical trends of probability of
default and historical 1oss experience) used by
reference to market practices and challenged the
assumptions as to whether they reflect the
current economic environment and arein line
with recent loss experience and representative of
current credit risks. We also independently
tested the calculation through re-performance.

We found management’ s judgement exercised in
identifying the impaired loans for individual
assessment and in estimating the individual and
collective alowances for impairment losses on
loans and advances to customersto be
reasonable.
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Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Disclosure of estimated impact upon initial
application of IFRS 9 - expected credit |oss model

Refer to note 70 to the consolidated financial
statements.

IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments’ took effect on 1
January 2018 and the Group estimated the adoption
of IFRS 9 would reduce its net assets by
approximately 1% as at 1 January 2018. The impact
is mainly due to the application of the expected
credit loss measurement models in estimating the
loan |oss reserve on loans and advances to
customers measured at amortised cost, certain loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts.

IFRS 9 isacomplex accounting standard which
requires considerable judgement and interpretation
in its implementation, including the use of new
parameters and involvement of experts. The Group’
s estimation of the impact of theinitial
implementation of IFRS 9 on net assetsis ahighly
complex process and accordingly, we include this
as akey audit matter.

The procedures performed to assess the
reasonableness of the Group's disclosure on the
possible impact of theinitial adoption of IFRS9
included:

1. Obtained an understanding of how the Group has
implemented IFRS 9.

2. Understood and evaluated the expected credit
loss model methodology and devel opment
processes through reviewing documentation and
discussion with management, and the Group’s
experts.

3. On asample basis, evaluated the selection of
major parameters by comparing to externa
information, and judgements and interpretations
made by management.

4. Understood the Group’s key processes over the
preparation of information disclosure and inspected
the approval documentation.

Based on the above procedures performed, we
found management’ s judgements and key
assumptions applied on the expected credit loss
models to be reasonable.
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Consolidation assessment of, and disclosures about,
structured entities

Refer to notes 4(1), 4(24)(g), 21(2)(c), 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Asat 31 December 2017, structured entities mainly
included wealth management products, asset
management plans and trust plans. The amounts of
structured entities which are either consolidated or
not consolidated are disclosed in notes 21(2)(c) and
31 respectively.

The amount of structured entities was significant
and the assessment of consolidation or not involved
management’ s judgement.

We focused on the following key aspects:

1. The reasonableness of the consolidation
assessment made by management based on the three
elements of control and the appropriateness of
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
2. Whether the structured entities that were not
consolidated were appropriately disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements.

Our procedures included:

1. Evaluated and tested the related internal controls
that management adopted on the consolidation
assessment and disclosure of structured entities.

2. Tested structured entities on a sample basis to
assess management’ s judgement to consolidate or
not by checking against supporting documents
including contracts and evaluated them against the
following elements off control:

The Group’s power over the structured entities;

The Group’s exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from involvement with the structured
entities; and

The Group’s ability to use power over the
structured entities to affect the amount of the Group
'S returns.
3. Evaluated and checked the appropriateness of
disclosuresin the consolidated financia statements
relating to structured entities.

Based on the available evidence we found that, in
al materia respects, management’s consolidation
assessment in relation to structured entities was
reasonable and the disclosures were appropriate.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
atrue and fair view in accordance with |FRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statementsasa
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that
includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as abody, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assuranceis ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HK SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HK SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabl eness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosuresin the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financia statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in amanner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters.

We describe these mattersin our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Yip Siu Foon, Linda.
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